
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 ANNUAL REPORT 

2012/2013 

VENTERSDORP LOCAL MUNICIPALITY NW 401 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

Contents 

CONTENTS…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..2 

CHAPTER 1 - MAYORS’ FOREWORD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY………………………………………………………4 

 

COMPONENT A:  MAYOR’S FOREWORD………………………………………………………………………………………4 

 

COMPONENT B:  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY………………………………………………………………………………….…..5 

1.1 MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S OVERVIEW…………………………..........………………………………......……...........…5 

1.2 MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS, POPULATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW…………………………………….7 

1.3 SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW……………………………………………………………………………………………8 

1.4 FINANCIAL HEALTH OVERVIEW……………………………………………………………………………………………9 

1.5 ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW………………………………………………………………………..9 

1.6 AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT………………………………………………………………………………………………9 

1.7 STATUTORY ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS……………………………………………………………………………..10 

 

CHAPTER 2 – GOVERNANCE……………………………………………………………………………………………………12 

COMPONENT A:  POLITICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE…………………………………………………..12 

2.1   POLITICAL GOVERNANCE………………………………………………………………………………………………….12 

2.2   ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE…………………………………………………………………………………………15 

 

COMPONENT B:  INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS…………………………………………………………………….17 

2.3   INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS…………………………………………………………………………………….17 

 

COMPONENT C:  PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION…………………………………………………….17 

2.4   PUBLIC MEETINGS…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..17 

2.5   IDP PARTICIPATION AND ALIGNMENT………………………………………………………………………………….19 

 

COMPONENT D:  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE………………………………………………………………………………20 

2.6 RISK MANAGEMENT………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…20 

2.7 ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD……………………………………………………………………………………………20 

2.8 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT……………………………………………………………………………………………..20 

2.9 BY-LAWS…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………20 

2.10 WEBSITE………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..21 

2.11 PUBLIC SATISFACTION ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES…………………………………………………………………..21 

 

CHAPTER 3 – SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE (PERFORMANCE REPORT PART 1)………………………..…22 

COMPONENT A: BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY …………………………………………………….......................................22 

3.1 STATUS OF SEWER AND OTHER INFRASTRUCTURE COMPONENTS……………………………………………...22 

3.2 PERFORMANCE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS (CAPITAL PROJECTS)……………………………..……25 

3.3 BACKLOGS ON ACCESS TO BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY……………………………………………………………..27 

3.4 COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES…………………………………………………………...……………….............28 

3.5 SHARED SERVICE WITH DRKKDM ON MUNICIPAL HEALTH SERVICE………………………………………….…33 

3.6 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT…………………………………………………………………………………….…39 

3.7 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT………………………………………………………………………………………..43 

3.8 REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013…………………………………….76 

 

 



3 | P a g e  

 

 

 

CHAPTER 4 – ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE……………………………………………...……..78 

4.1 EMPLOYEE TOTALS, TURNOVER AND VACANCIES…………………………………………………………...……….82 

4.2 POLICIES…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………86 

4.3 PROPERTY MANAGEMENT……………………………………………………………………………………...…….…….88 

 

CHAPTER 5 – FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE…………………………………………………………………………………...91 

5.1. REVENUE…………………………………………………………………………………..………………………………......91  

5.2. EXPENDITURE…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..........92 

5.3. BUDGET PLANNING AND REPORTING…………………………………………………………………………….........93 

5.4. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT…………………………………………………………………………………….……..93 

5.5. DETAILS OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS………………………………………………………………………………….…95 

5.6. CREDITORS AGE ANALYSIS……………………………………………………………………………………………….96 

5.7. DEBTORS ACCOUNTS……………………………………………………………………………………………………....97 

 

CHAPTER 6 – AUDITOR GENERAL AUDIT FINDINGS…………………………………………………………………...…107 

COMPONENT A: 

6.1 AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT 2011/2012…………………………………………………………………………………107 

 

COMPONENT B: 

6.2 AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT 2012/2013……………………………………………………………………………120-143 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 2012/2013……………………………………………………………………………………144-233 

 

APPENDICES 

APPENDIX A – SCHEDULE OF EXTERNAL LOANS AS AT 30 JUNE 2013……………………………………………..234 

APPENDIX B – ANALYSIS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT………………………………………………….235 

APPENDIX C – SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF PROPERTY, PLAN AND EQUIPMENT………………………………….237 

APPENDIX D (1) – ACTUAL VERSUS BUDGET (REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE...…………………………..……….239 

APPENDIX D (2) – BUDGET ANALYSIS OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE…………………………………………….…….240 

APPENDIX E – DISCLOSURES OF GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES IN TERMS OF SECTION 123 MFMA, 56 OF 2003..241 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 | P a g e  

 

 

Chapter 1 
 
CHAPTER 1 – SPEAKER/MAYOR’S FOREWORD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

COMPONENT A:  SPEAKER/MAYOR’S FOREWORD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The 2012/2013 financial year was indeed a momentous year for our local Municipality since it is a period 

during which we concluded the appointment of our Section 56 Managers.  As the political head of the 

municipality it is a pleasure for me to present the third annual report under the present term of our Council. 

 

We have been receiving disclaimers for several years and the interventions and assistance were done by 

different Departments from Provincial and National level in making sure that the Municipality delivers 

according to its Constitutional mandate. Even though we know that the results will not be realized in the short 

term due to the challenges and problems we encountered as the Municipality, but what l am positive about is 

that we are going forward with service delivery gearing towards fulfilling our vision “to be shining through 

excellence” so that our mission of “providing sustainable services and promoting development” is 

realized. 

 

I therefore wish to extend my humble appreciation to our local community, our Councillors; senior 

management as well as the support received from the officials. 

 

 
________________________ 
HON. CLLR. C.N. PHOYANE  
SPEAKER/MAYOR  
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CHAPTER 1 
 
COMPONENT B: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S OVERVIEW 

 
Our long term vision as a municipality is to be Shining through Excellence.  We intend to achieve this 
through provision of sustainable services and promoting development. 
 
Our focus as the municipality is in line with the objects of Local Government, as provided for in Chapter 7 of 
our Constitution” under Section 152 (1), informed by the following strategic goals:- 
 

 Ensuring provision of infrastructure development and service delivery. 

 Promoting local economic development 

 Ensuring good corporate governance and public participation 

 Ensuring municipal transformation and organizational development, and  

 Ensuring municipal financial viability. 

 
We’ve been striving and guided by the following Business Values:- 
 
 Integrity 

 Teamwork, and 

 Service excellence 

 
Some of the weaknesses that impact on our performance in general are but not limited to: 
 
 Recurring disclaimer audit opinions for at least the last three financial years 

 A municipality that mostly plans for short-term to medium term 

 There is no integrated, formalized and comprehensive system that exist to monitor the performance of 

projects 

 There is a backlog with regard to basic services, i.e. electricity, water and sanitation, and rapid of sewer 

blockages. 

 The municipality is unable to track performance against project deliverables and audit completed 

projects to ensure adequate service delivery or take corrective measures. 

 Weak Supply Chain Management component – structure that is not properly staffed. 

 There is a mismatch of skills in some areas. 

 Delivery of housing that is negatively affected by dolomitic conditions. 

 Our organogram needs to be reviewed in making sure that we deliver services in accordance to the IDP. 

 Financial viability is a problem with a low rate of revenue collection and cash flow shortages, and no 

integrated financial management strategy exists. 

 Ageing infrastructure and a need to provide more serviced residential stands. 

 Attracting investment, tourists and maximizing over agricultural sector is a problem 

 Poor blue and green drop ratings 

 There is basically a general lack of tools of trade. 

 

We need to attend to all issues that hamper the smooth running of the municipality and provision of services 
to our people, and at least priorities the following in maximizing our performance:- 
 
1. Public Participation 

 
Council to show political will in dealing with issues such as:- 

 

 Illegal connections 

 Encourage qualifying households to register as indigent 

 Hold monthly public meetings and giving proper feedback. 
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2. Good Governance 

 

 Councillors to avoid interfering with administration. 

 Contribute properly to proper  functioning of IGR structures; 

 Build internal capacity 

 Practice professionalism; 

 Making sure that no council official nor a councilor do business with the municipality 

 Making sure that neither municipal official nor a councilor owes the council. 

 
3. Financial Management 

 

 Renegotiate and/or escape long term contracts, 

 Attending to all issues that impact negatively on our Revenue Enhancement Programme; including 

water and electricity losses. 

 Employ measures that promote proper billing 

 Root out cause of under collection 

 Managing our cash flow, Expenditure and debts accordingly. 

 Paying creditors on time. 

 
During the year under review, Council stabilized the top management structure by appointing the Chief 
Financial Officer; Director Corporate Services and Director Strategic Planning and LED.  

 
Performance Management System was also implemented and the SDBIP (Service Delivery Budget 
Implementation Plan) was approved by the Mayor and submitted to relevant authorities accordingly. 

 
As the driver of the IDP and Performance Management System (Monitoring and Evaluation) and on 
behalf of the administrative collective but also guided by the available resources and the operating 
structures; I take this opportunity to thank our principals under the leadership of the Speaker/Mayor:    
Cllr. C.N PHOYANE; the Audit Committee; Captains of Directorates; Managers and all officials who 
contributed in one way or the other in making sure that we deliver services to our local community. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________                                             
BJ MAKADE 
MUNICIPAL MANAGER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



7 | P a g e  

 

CHAPTER 1 
 

1.2 MUNICIPAL FUNCTIONS, POPULATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW 
 
ABOUT VENTERSDORP LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 

 
Ventersdorp Municipality is a local Authority that serves the community in and around the Ventersdorp 
boundaries.  Ventersdorp falls under Dr. Kenneth Kaunda District, it occupies a geographic area of 
approximately 3764.05 km. 
 
The Municipality is situated on the N14 linking the municipal area with Gauteng province in the West and 
Botswana Country. 
 
The municipality was classified as a Category B Municipality by the Municipal Demarcation Board, in terms 
of section 4 of the Local Government Municipal Structures Act, 1998. 
 
The Ventersdorp Local Municipality was previously known as Ventersdorp Munisipaliteit and today is fondly 
referred to as the Ventersdorp Local Municipality and it is a medium capacity municipality. 
 
The N14 development route was identified by the municipality as a flagship project for golden opportunities 
in the following sectors:  Housing, Business, Heritage, Tourism, Sport as well as recreation. 
 
As an organization with the primary responsibility of ensuring that the Ventersdorp area is able to realize its 
full potential in every aspect, the vision and mission of the Ventersdorp Local Municipality is as follows:- 
 

VVIISSIIOONN 

TO BE SHINING THROUGH EXCELLENCE 
 

MMIISSSSIIOONN 

TO PROVIDE SUSTAINABLE SERVICE AND PROMOTE DEVELOPMENT” 
 
 

Geographic Profile 
 
The municipal area of Ventersdorp covers an area of 3764.05 km2 with the following main land use 
categories:- 
 

Land Use % Coverage 

  

Urban Development 3.41 

Industries and mining 0.16 

Agricultural dry land 41.78 

Agricultural Irrigation 1.28 

Agricultural Intensive Livestock 27.00 

Agricultural Extensive Live stock 26.69 
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Demographic profile 
 
According to Stats SA (2011) the Ventersdorp has a total population of 56 702 people. Number of 
households 14 562, Formal (2 - Tshing and Ventersdorp) and Informal Settlement (8 - villages, 6 - squatter 
settlement and approximately 480 - farms). 
 

Population Details : Census 2011 

Ward  Male Female 

  0 - 4 5 - 14 15 - 34 35 – 64 65 + Total 0 - 4 5 – 14 15 - 34 35 - 64 65 + Total 

 Ward 1 347 497 797 447 79 2167 283 490 886 605 123 2386 

 Ward 2 275 438 715 634 125 2186 275 406 833 781 208 2503 

 Ward 3 1120 1826 2509 1759 513 7728 837 1556 2260 1779 434 6866 

 Ward 4 614 972 1680 1481 251 4997 533 924 1462 1268 232 4418 

Ward 5 851 1493 2171 1846 399 6760 725 1225 1896 1651 341 5838 

Ward 6 666 1069 1694 1626 353 5408 657 990 1770 1603 424 5443 

 
Socio Economic Status 
 
Education Profile  
 
The literacy rates have slightly improved from (46%) to (54%) therefore a general improvement of 8% over a 
5 year period.  Despite this improvement a portion of the population (20%) has no formal education, while 
69% of the total is still attending school, and currently unable to take part in the economy of Ventersdorp.  
 
The large percentage still attending school is promising in terms of a highly skilled labour force in the future 
which could positively contribute to the economy of the Ventersdorp.  At the same time the there is a need to 
capacitate people in the community to ensure that they access employment opportunities in Ventersdorp and 
throughout the province.  
 
Ventersdorp faces serious challenges, 96% of persons older than 15 years of age only has a matric 
qualification or less. Thus only about 4% have some form of tertiary education.  
 
HIV/AIDS  
 
The number of HIV infections in the Ventersdorp Local Municipality has increased significantly since 1996, 
from 1051 to an estimated 4799 (Source of data: Quantec). This amounts to a current infection rate of 
about 11% and is 7% of the total number of HIV+ people in the Dr Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality. 
 
 
Indigent Rate 
 
Ventersdorp Local Municipality’s indigent rate (2188). 
 
1.3 SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW 
 
SERVICE DELIVERY INTRODUCTION 

 
ACHIEVEMENTS 
 
Number of households in the Municipality: -    ± 14 562 
Number of registered indigent households     3353 
Number of indigent households with access to FBW    2188 
Number of indigent households with access to FBE    2188 
Number of indigent households with alternative energy    1165  
 
EQUITABLE SHARE 
 

Equitable Share provided for Free Basic Service 2012/2013 

   

Allocation Received Expenditure % Expenditure 

   

R45 869 000 24 358 956 53% 
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1.4      FINANCIAL HEALTH OVERVIEW 
 

The Municipality generated a surplus of R17 388 798 (2011/2012: R13 966 650).  The total assets of the 
municipality exceeded the total liabilities by R243 847 982(2011/2012: R205 631 586). 

 
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the going concerned basis.  The municipality is 
not expecting any significant changes in the levels of Government Grants. 

 
1.5 ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT OVERVIEW 
 
The organizational structure/organogram of Ventersdorp Local Municipality operates with five directorates as 
established in terms of: 
 

 Functions as promulgated by legislation and the MEC for Local Government; 

 The IDP and the; 

 Basic principles of organizational design. 
 
The five directorates include:-  
 

 Corporate Services 

 Financial Services  

 Engineering Services 

 Community Services 

 Strategic Planning & LED 

 Along with the Office of the Municipal Manager and the Office of the Mayor.      
 
The structure is currently reflecting a total number of 224 positions of which 147 positions are filled and 78 
positions are vacant. 
 
CHALLENGES 
 

 Employees Job Descriptions not finalised and signed by individuals 

 Job evaluation System not in place for personnel. 

 Section 56 Performance Assessment not fully functional. 
 
 
1.6 AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT 
 
The Auditor-General’s responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on 
conducting the audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) 
(PAA), the General Notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing.   
 
Previous financial year 2011/2012, Ventersdorp Local Municipality received Disclaimer.  Basis for this was 
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. 
 
Auditor General’s report for the financial year under review is contained in Chapter 6 of this report. 
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1.7 STATUTORY ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS 
 

No. Activity Timeframe 
 

 
1. 
 

Consideration of next financial year’s Budget and IDP process plan.  Except for 
the legislative content, the process plan should confirm in-year reporting formats 
to ensure that reporting and monitoring feeds seamlessly into the Annual Report 
process at the end of the Budget/IDP implementation period 

 
 
 
 
 
July 

2. Implementation and monitoring of approved Budget and IDP commences (In-
year financial reporting). 

3. Finalise the 4th quarter report for previous financial year 

4. Submit draft year 0 Annual Report to Internal Audit and Auditor-General 

5. Municipal entities submit draft annual reports to Municipal Manager 

6. Audit/Performance committee considers draft Annual Report of municipality and 
entities (where relevant) 

 
 
August 
 
 

7. Mayor tables the unaudited Annual Report 

8. Municipality submits draft Annual Report including consolidated annual financial 
statement and performance report to Auditor General  

9. Annual Performance Report as submit to Auditor General to be provided as input 
to the IDP Analysis Phase 

10. Auditor General audits Annual Report including consolidated Annual Financial 
Statements and Performance data 

September – 
October 

11. Municipalities receive and start to address the Auditor General’s comments  
 
November 

12. Mayor tables Annual Report and audited Financial Statements to Council 
complete with the Auditor-General’s Report 

13. Audited Annual Report is made public and representation is invited 

14. Oversight Committee assess Annual Report 

15. Council adopts Oversight report  
December 16. Oversight report is made public 

17. Oversight report is submitted to relevant provincial councils 

18. Commencement of draft Budget/IDP finalisation for the next financial year.  
Annual Report and Oversight Report to be used as input 

January 

 
COMMENT ON THE ANNUAL REPORT PROCESS 
 
The Annual Report is a measure of ensuring that there is regular, impartial feedback to stakeholders 
regarding the progress of the municipality with the implementation of its vision and mission. 
 
The 2012/ 2013 Annual Report was compiled in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government 
Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003(MFMA) and Local Government: Municipal System Act 32 of 
2000 and Circular 63 also taken into consideration.   
 
The purpose of this report is to:- 
 

 Provide feedback on the annual financial and non-financial performance of the Municipality. 
 

 Promote accountability to the community for the decisions made during the period July 2012 to June 
2013. 

 
This Annual Report covers the following areas:-  
 

 Mayors’ Foreword 

 Overview by the Municipal Manager 

 Municipal Functions, Population and Environmental Overview 

 Municipal Performance Highlights 

  Audit Committees Report 

 Auditors-General’s Report 

 Audited Performance Report 

 Audited Financial Statements  
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Annual Report must be aligned with the planning documents and municipal budget for the year reported on.  
The IDP, BUDGET, SDBIP, in-year reports, annual performance reports and annual reports should have 
consistence and similar information for understanding and linkage between plans and actual performance. 
 
In terms of the processes prescribed by the MFMA Section 127(2), the Mayor shall within seven months after 
the end of the financial year table in Council the Annual report of the Municipality.  Council, thereafter, refer 
the annual report to the Oversight Committee, then MPAC (Municipal Public Accounts Committee). 
 
Immediately after the annual report has been referred to the MPAC, the Accounting Officer shall make the 
Annual Report public and invite the local Community to submit their comments or inputs. 
 
Section 129 of the Local Government ; Municipal Finance Management act  of 2000, states that the 
Oversight Committee of the Council must consider the Annual Report of the Municipality by no later than two 
months from the date which the report was tabled in Council and adopt the oversight report containing 
statements whether the Council:- 
 

 Has approved the annual report with or without reservations  

 Has rejected the annual report  

 Has referred back the annual report for revision of those components that can be revised. 

 

Annual Report will assist the municipality to streamline operations and processes through combined 

committee, reduce costs, time and effort. There will be a limited need for the municipality to have different 

committees to deal with financial and non-financial related matters. 
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Chapter 2 
 

CHAPTER 2 - GOVERNANCE 
 
INTRODUTION TO GOVERNANCE 
 
The exercise of economic, political, and administrative authority to manage a population’s affairs at all levels.  
It comprises mechanisms, processes, and institutions through which citizens and groups articulate their 
interests, exercise their legal rights, meet their obligations, and mediate their differences.” 
 
Property rights and rule-based governance; the quality of budgetary & financial management; the efficiency 
of revenue mobilization; the efficiency of public expenditures; and transparency, accountability and 
corruption. 
 
COMPONENT A:  POLITICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 
 
INTRODUCTION TO POLITICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 
 
Politicians ensures communication with the community by means of Public Participation, IDP, and Budget 
consultations.   
 
Regular feedback to the community, administration transparency and compliance required legislatively, the 
process ensures the healthy relations with the community and it will minimize conflicts. 
 
2.1 POLITICAL GOVERNANCE 
 
INTRODUCTION TO POLITICAL GOVERNANCE 
 
The Ventersdorp Local Municipality is part of Shared Services Audit Committee with the Dr Kenneth Kaunda 
District. As Council has established a Municipal Public Account Committee (MPAC), The Oversight 
Committee Report is published separately in accordance to the Municipal Finance Management Act, No. 56 
of 2003, two months after the Annual Report is tabled. 
 
 

 
Cllr. C.N. Phoyane 

 
SPEAKER/MAYOR 

 
Proportional 

 
 

        
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
The Speaker/Mayor is the 
chairperson of the Council.  She 
performs the legislated duties 
including any ceremonial functions 
and exercises the powers delegated 
to the Mayor by the Municipal 
Council.  
 
As the Council Speaker she 
presides at the meetings of the 
Council, maintain order and ensure 
that meetings are conducted 
according to rules of order of the 
Council. 
 

 
Cllr. S. Moabi 

 
 Proportional 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Acting Whip ensure accountability of 
Councillors to the community, that 
code of conduct is respected and 
adhered to by all Councillors.  She 
ensures discipline during Council 
and Committee meetings. 
 
She facilitates all political debates 
and workshop for all Councillors. 
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Cllr. T. Motshabi 

 
Ward: 02 

 
 
 

  
 

 
Cllr. V. Qankase 

 
Ward: 06 

 
 
 
 

  
 

 
Cllr. W. Matinyane 

 
Proportional 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Cllr. J. Motladiile 

 
Ward:03 

 
 
 
 

  

 
Cllr. J. Mjuleni 

 
Ward:05 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Cllr. M. Matinyane 

 
Ward: 04 
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Cllr. J. Matome 

 
Ward: 01 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Cllr. L. Links 

 
Proportional 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Cllr. A. Jones 

 
Proportional 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Cllr. C.N. Mogwata 

 
Proportional 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
The Municipal Council of Ventersdorp consists of 12 Councillors.  Six (6) represents Wards and the rest are 
Proportional representatives, elected political parties on the basis of proportional representation.  The 
majority party in Council is the African National Congress. 
 
Councillors combine Community they serve and the municipality.  The preamble of the Code of Conduct 
widens the ambit of the Code of Conduct by emphasising the accountability of Councillors towards the 
community:  it states that Councillors must report back at least quarterly to constituencies on the 
performance of the Municipality. 
 
Ward Committees are the vehicles through which the notions of a participatory democracy and a 
representative democracy as outlined in Section 152 of the Constitution, that A ward committee may make 
recommendations on any matter affecting its ward through Ward Councillor, has such duties and powers as 
the local council may delegate to it in terms of Section 32. 
 
PR Councillors role is to handle queries and complaints in consultation with the Ward Councillors, assist in 
resolving of disputes and make referrals and assist in implementation of projects, support the Ward 
Councillors, attending Ward Committee meetings, Constituency meetings and Special Meetings. 
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The Council has Four Portfolio Committees.  These Committees meet at least once in two months.  They 
report and make recommendations to Council on matters falling within their sphere of operation. 
 
Committee for Service Delivery 
and Infrastructure Development 
 
Cllr. S. Moabi – Chairperson 
Cllr. W. Matinyane 
Cllr. J. Matome 

Committee for Finance 
Governance and Administration 
 
Cllr. T. Motshabi – Chairperson 
Cllr. S. Moabi 
Cllr. A. Jones 

Committee for Economic 
Development and Investment 
Promotion 
Cllr. J. Motladiile – Chairperson 
Cllr. C. Mogwata 
Clllr. V. Qankase 

Committee for Community 
Service 
 
Cllr. J. Matome – Chairperson 
Cllr. V. Qankase 
Cllr. J. Mjuleni 
Cllr. C.Mogwata 
Cllr.J.M. Motladiile 
Cllr. M. Matinyane 

 
 
2.2 ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 
 
INTRODUCTION TO ADMINISTRATIVE GOVERNANCE 
 
Section 82 of the Municipal Structure Act 117 of 1998 amended that the Municipality must appoint the 
Municipal Manager, who is the head of Administration and therefore Accounting Officer.  Section 51(i) of the 
Systems Act states that the municipality must organise its administration in a manner that enables it to hold 
the Municipal Manager accountable for the overall performance of the municipality. 
 
Municipal Manager must have the tools to answer to that accountability i.e. the administration must be 
managed in such a way that is enables the municipal manager to account for the performance of the entire 
administration. 
 
Municipal Manager must manage the communication between the political structure and office-bearers and 
the administration(S 55(1)(j) of the Systems Act).  The Municipal Manager has to exercise responsibilities 
subject to the policy directions of the Council.  As the Accounting Office, the Municipal Manager is also 
responsible for all income and expenditure, all assets and discharge of liabilities of the municipality and the 
compliance with the municipal finance management legislation. 
 
The Municipal Manager and Directors forms the Senior management core and all directors are accountable 
to the Municipal Manager in terms of strategic management and oversight of their departments. 
 
 
TOP STRUCTURE 
 
The administration of Ventersdorp Local Municipality is headed by Municipal Manager and consists of six 
Departments. Namely 
 
1. Department of Municipal Manager 
2. Department of Corporate Services 
3. Department of Finance 
4. Department of Infrastructure Services 
5. Department of Community Services 
6. Department of Strategic Planning and LED 
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TOP STRUCTURE 

 

 

 
 

 
Mr. BJ Makade 

Municipal Manager 

 
The Municipal Manager heads the 

administration of Ventersdorp 
Local Municipality and provides 

the link between the political and 
administrative arms of the 

Municipality 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Mr. L.D. Mcameni 

Director Corporate Services 

 
This department is responsible for 

Administration, Legal Support, 
Human Resource Management 

and IT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Mr. M.I. Manoto 

Director Financial Services 

 
This Department is responsible for 
the financial administration of the 

municipality, as prescribed by 
legislation. 

 

 

            
 

 
 

Mr. O.G Moremedi 
Director Infrastructure 

 

 
This Department is responsible for 

all Water, Sanitation, Technical, 
Electricity and Roads Services of 

the Municipality 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Mrs. B.M.B. Mosepele 

Director Community Services 

 
This Department is responsible for 
Environmental Health, Traffic, Fire 

Brigade, Security and Library 
Services 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Mr. S. Sidu 

Director Strategic Planning and 
LED 

 
This Department is responsible for 

Housing, Town Planning, IDP 
Processes and LED Services. 

 

 
COMMENT 
 
The municipality has a workforce, with a total staff compliment of 176 employees.  There are clear 
communication channels between workers and the management, Organisational standing rules and 
procedures are in place which exercises a stable internal environment. 
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COMPONENT B:  INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
 
 
2.3 INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
 
NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE 
 
Ventersdorp Local Municipality is a member of the Local Government body, SALGA (South African Local 
Government Association) both at Provincial and National Level. 
 
Elected Councillors are accordingly deployed into various working Committee groups of SALGA.  Employees 
and Councillors participates in structures such as Pension Fund and Medical Aid bodies, to ensure proper 
handling of their affairs affecting Council and employees. 
 
PROVINCIAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE 
 
The Speaker/Mayor and the Municipal Manager attends and participate in the North West Premier’s 
Coordinating Committee meetings, to discuss issues affecting Province and the Municipality. 
 
The Speaker/Mayor and Officials attend and participate various Provincial Forums e.g. Provincial Speakers 
Forum. 
 
DISTRICT INTERGOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURES 
 
Councillors and Officials represents Ventersdorp Local Municipality in DR Kenneth Kaunda District 
Municipality, where issues of mutual interests are discussed, such as IDP and Budget etc. 
 
RELATIONSHIP WITH MUNICIPAL ENTITIES 
 
None 
 
COMPONENTS C:  PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION 
 
OVERVIEW OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY AND PARTICIPATION 
 
Ward Committees assist Ward Councillors in their execution duties which includes handling complaints and 
feedback to communities.   
 
Ward Councillors convenes community meetings as in when required to discuss matters affecting the 
community and give feedback on matters reported on  a monthly basis. 
 
2.4 PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
COMMUNICATION, PARTICIPATION  
 
FUNCTION OF THE IDP UNIT  
 
To coordinate, manage the IDP Processes, and ensure that monitoring and implementation thereof is done. 
 
CAPACITY WITHIN THE IDP UNIT 
 
There are two positions in the IDP unit:- 
 
o IDP Manager position which was filled on the 02 April 2013 
o IDP Officer is also appointed 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVES THAT THE UNIT LEADS 
 
To ensure good corporate governance and public participation 
To ensure the provision of Infrastructure development and Service delivery 
To promote local economic development 
To ensure municipal transformation and organizational development 
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CORPORATE OBJECTIVES THAT THE UNIT SUPPORTS  
 
The IDP Manager manages the IDP related activities under the guidance of the Municipal Manager to ensure 
the effective control thereof.  
The IDP Manager plans and manages activities of the division to ensure the timeous review of the IDP by 
managing and monitoring the following: 
 
 Responsible for the monitoring of  contracts  for IDP and research activities to ensure the 

effective and efficient control 

 Responsible for general management function regarding PMU to achieve maximum benefit 

 
Perform strategic development related activities to determine productivity 
Perform client and Public service functions to ensure proper communication 
Interacts with the both public and private sector departments and institutions/persons to ensure that the 
execution of the post’s responsibilities is met. 
 
PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS OF THE SECTION FOR 2012/2013 
 

Approved Process Plan 2012/2013 
Adopted IDP 2012/2013 
Approved Public Participation Programme  
Adverts/ notices were placed 
IDP documents were printed 
IDP Rep Forum established and functional. 

 

KEY MILESTONES IN THE IDP PROCESS 
 

Ventersdorp Local Municipality is now at a preparatory stage to embark on a review of its draft 2014/2017 
IDP and Budget. The following are the key milestones areas for the review:- 
 
a) Establishment of Ward/Area based IDP/Budget and Budget Representative Forum 

b) Community/Ward based statistical survey to assess the level of development and factual 

 circumstances need 

c) Development of the community ward plans for all the six wards 

d) Community informed public participation and communication strategy 

e) Capacity building on IDP and Budget for Councilors, Management, Ward Committees, 

 Representative Forum and Community Development Workers  

 
PROJECTS/ PROGRAMMES 
 

 IDP process Plan 
 Review of IDP document 
 Placement of Advertisements/ Notices 
 Printing of 30 IDP documents 
 Establishment of IDP Representative Forum 
 Development of the Public Participation Program 
 Development of Municipal Ward based Plans 
 Councilors’ IDP induction program (to be confirmed) 

 
WHEN WAS THE DRAFT IDP TABLED BEFORE COUNCIL AND WHEN WAS IT   PUBLICIZED FOR 
FINANCIAL YEAR UNDER REVIEW (2012/13) 
 
Final IDP/Budget was tabled on 31 May 2013.  The advert for draft IDP was advertised for public comments 
from the 27 March 2013 to 25 April 2013 information was disseminated locally and the draft IDP document 
was disseminated in strategic areas for public comments.  
 
NUMBER OF COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION MEETINGS, HOW MANY WERE SUCCESSFUL AND HOW 
MANY WERE UNSUCCESSFUL  
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The schedule of Public Participation Meetings was developed and approved by the IDP/Budget/PMS 
Committee. The Public Participation meetings were conducted by the Mayor’s office. The Public Participation 
meetings were held in all the six (6) municipal wards of Ventersdorp. 
 

SUMMARY OF PUBLIC PARTICIPATION MEETINGS (PREPARATION FOR BUDGET 2012/2013 

 

 
COMMENT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE PUBLIC MEETINGS HELD 
 
The Ventersdorp Local Municipality recognised Ward Committee in all 6 Wards to enhance public 
participation and accountability.    The public participation meetings held as platform for effective interaction 
and accountability for Council and the community. 
 
2.5 IDP PARTICIPATION AND ALIGNMENT 
 

IDP Participation and Alignment Criteria Yes/NO 

  

Does the municipality have impact, outcome, input, output indicators? Yes 

Does the IDP have priorities, objectives, KPI’s, development strategies? Yes 

Does the IDP have multi-year targets? Yes 

Are the above aligned and can they calculate into a score? Yes 

Does the budget align directly to the KPI’s in the strategic plan? Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs align to the section 56 managers? Yes 

Do the IDP KPIs lead to functional are KPIs as per the SDBIP? Yes 

Were the indicators communicated to the public? Yes 

Were the four quarter aligned reports submitted within stipulated time frames No 

Section 26of Municipal Systems Act 2000  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DATE 

 
COUNCILLOR 

 
WARD 

 
VENUE/PLACE 

 
NUMBER OF 

PARTICIPANTS 

 
11/05/2012 

 
Cllr. Matome 
 

 
Ward 1 & Ward 04 

 
Ext 2 Hall 

 
110 

 
11/05/2012 

 
Cllr. Motshabi 
 

 
Ward 2 
 

 
Tshing Old Stadium 

 
99 

 
17/05/2012 
 
 

 
Cllr. Motladiile 

 
Ward 3 :Boikhutso, 
              Tsetse 
              Ga-Mogopa 
              Welgevonden 
              

 
Community Hall 
 

 
262 

 
17/05/2012 

 
Cllr. Mjuleni 
 

 
Ward 5 : Boikhutsong & 
               Goedgevonden 
               Rysmierbult 
 

 
Community Hall 
 
 

 
78 

 
17/05/2012 
 

 
Cllr. Qankase 

 
Ward 6 

 
Ext 5 Hall 

 
No Report 
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COMPONENT D:  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
OVERVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Corporate Governance includes the political, administrative, inter governmental governance and public 
accountability and participation to ensure that the municipality is managed to the required desires of the 
community within the rule, process and law. 
 
2.6 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Ventersdorp Local Municipality established Risk Management during 2012/2013,  Shared Service 
Internal Auditors assist in facilitating the risk assessment process, risks were identified and Action plan was 
compiled. 
 
2.7 ANTI-CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 
 
FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION STRATEGY 
 
The Ventersdorp Local Municipality has a draft Fraud and Anti-Corruption Strategy in place which should be 
adopted in the next financial year. 
 
2.8 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 
 
OVERVIEW OF SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 
 
Description of the activity 
 
The Supply Chain Management is located in the Budget and Treasury Office but currently operating from the 
Office of the Municipal Manager. This function is responsible for the following:- 
 
Review of the Supply Chain Policy 
Compilation of the Supply Chain Management procedure manual 
Compilation of the Supply Chain processes 
Compile a list of accredited prospective providers 
Reporting of the implementation of SCM. 
 
Current Situation 
 
Currently this section is responsible for processing of orders on all procurement done for the Municipality, the 
advertisement of all Tenders are also done through the Supply Chain Office, the challenges facing this 
section is that intensive training for all personnel in that section is required. Training is also required for all 
the members of the Bid Committees. The Disposal Management Committee must be established in terms of 
the Supply Chain Regulations. 
 
Supply Chain Management Strategies  
 

 A preferred list of suppliers/service providers, based on the principle of supporting the local 
economy, will be prepared. Purchases from any other suppliers will have to be motivated prior to 
purchase. 

 To have a procedure manual develop and implemented. 

 To make sure that all documents are safely kept for Audit purpose. 

 To train staff in other departments in the internal procedures of the SCM 
 
2.9 BY-LAWS 
 
COMMENT ON BY-LAWS  
 
In instances where there are not by-laws, same will be developed and gazetted accordingly.  The 
municipality will also ensure that necessary public participation processes are followed accordingly. 
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2.10 WEBSITE 
 
Municipal Website: Content and Currency of Material Yes/ No 

  

Documents published on the Municipality’s Website Yes/No 

  

Current annual and adjustments budgets and all budget-related documents Yes 

All current budget-related policies Yes  

The previous annual report 2011/2012 Yes  

The annual report 2011/2012 published No  

All current performance agreement required in terms of section 57 (1)(b) of the Municipal Systems Act (2000) 
and resulting scorecard 

Yes 

All quarterly reports tabled in the Council in terms of section 52(d) during 2012/2013 Yes 

 
2.11 PUBLIC SATISFACTION ON MUNICIPAL SERVICES 
 
No public satisfaction on municipal services survey was conducted during 2012/2013 financial year. 
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Chapter 3 
 
CHAPTER 3 – SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE (PERFORMANCE REPORT PART 1) 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
This chapter provide a brief narrative of all the services provided by the Municipality and the performance 
highlights for the year 2012 /2013 
 

Effective and efficient Service Delivery:  Implementation of all Capital projects by the beginning of 
every financial year 
Arrange and ensure that monthly meetings for monitoring and supervision of service providers 
Enter into service level agreements with all service providers:  Deliverables clearly stated in terms 
of key performance areas and key performance indicators. 
Develop clauses of non-performance and measures to be taken against service providers 
immediately 
Develop contracts for Council adopted repair and maintenance documents for daily routine 
maintenance for the Infrastructure Services 
Provide monthly supply deficiency and electricity and water 
Install tracking devices in all Council vehicles 
Develop service shelter for all Municipal Fleet 
Develop database for old and new infrastructure assets 
 
Key functions of the Department 
 
Provision and maintenance of Municipal roads & Storm water infrastructure 
Provision and maintenance of electricity infrastructure 
Provision and maintenance of water networks 
Provision and maintenance of sewage networks & sanitation 
Provision of solid waste management 
 
Strategic Objectives of the Department 
 
To provide access to water and sanitation 
To provide access to electricity 
To provide access to roads & storm water 
To provide access to solid waste removal 
To provide access to public amenities 
 
COMPONENT A: BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY 

 
3.1 STATUS OF SEWER AND OTHER INFRASTRUCTURE COMPONENTS IS AS FOLLOWS:- 
 

Area  Current capacity Spare capacity 

 2011/2012 2012/2013 2011/2012 2012/2013 

Ventersdorp   0.6 Ml  0.6 Ml  0  0 

Tshing   3.0 Ml  3.0 Ml  0  0 

Moosa park  0.3 Ml  0.3 Ml  0  0 

Toevlug   0.2 Ml  0.2 Ml  0  0 

Villages  0.8 Ml  0.8 Ml  0  0 
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ELECTRICITY  
 
Electricity capacity can be seen in the following tables:- 
 
Substation  Installed capacity  Used capacity  Reserved capacity  

 2011/2012 2012/2013 2011/2012 2012/2013 2011/2012 2012/2013 

Ventersdorp  9Mva  9Mva  10Mva  10Mva  1 1 

Tshing  4.3Mva  4.3Mva  4.3Mva  4.3Mva  0  0 

Moosa park 0.5Mva  0.5Mva  0.5Mva  0.5Mva  0 0 

Toevlug  0.5Mva  0.5Mva  0.5Mva  0.5Mva  0 0 

Villages 3.7Mva  3.7Mva  3.7Mva  3.7Mva  0 0 
 

BUILDING PLANS  
 

Building plans  2011/2012 2012/2013 

Applications 
outstanding 30 
June 2011 

Application 
received 
2011/2012 

Applications 
outstanding 30 
June 2012 

Application 
received 
2012/2013 

Applications 
outstanding 30 
June 2013 

Ventersdorp  0 15 0 0 0 

Tshing  0 32 0 0 0 

Moosa park 0 0 0 0 0 

Toevlug  0 0 0 0 0 

Villages 0 3 0 0 0 

 
The following table indicate the backlogs Council is facing regarding water sanitation, roads, refuse and 
electricity 
 

WATER 
BACKLOG 

2011/2012 2012/2013 

Backlog  Target  Achieved  Backlog  Target  Achieved  

Number of households 
not receiving minimum 
standard of services. 

1793 1002 0 1793 1002 0 

% of households 
identified as backlogs. 

24 14 0 24 14 0 

Spending on new 
infrastructure to eliminate 
backlogs.(R0.00) 

R4.2m 0 0 4.2m 1 377 000 1 377 000 

Spending on the renewal 
maintained of existing 
infrastructure. (R0.00) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total spending to 
eliminate backlogs. 
(R0.00) 

0 0 0 0 1 377 000 1 377 000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SANITATION  
BACKLOG 

2011/2012 2012/2013 

Backlog  Target  Achieved  Backlog  Target  Achieved  

Number of households 
not receiving minimum 
standard of services. 

1256 1456 0 1256 1456 0 

% of households 
identified as backlogs. 

1220 1002 0    

Spending on new 
infrastructure to eliminate 
backlogs.(R0.00) 

0 0 0    

Spending on the renewal 
maintained of existing 
infrastructure. (R0.00) 

1220 1220 0    

Total spending to 
eliminate backlogs. 
(R0.00) 

0 0 0    
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ROADS  
BACKLOG 

2011/2012 2012/2013 

Backlog  Target  Achieved  Backlog  Target  Achieved  

Number of Km not 
providing minimum 
standard of services. 

939.255km 50.149km 48.155km 891.09 20.4 17.4 

% of Km identified as 
backlogs. 

5 5 5 9.4% 2.28% 1.95% 

Spending on new 
infrastructure to eliminate 
backlogs.(R0.00) 

184m 18 0 22.7 24.7 22.7 

Spending on the renewal 
maintained of existing 
infrastructure. (R0.00) 

1.6m 1.5m 0.9m    

Total spending to 
eliminate backlogs. 
(R0.00) 

184m 166m 166m 22.7 24.7 22.7 

 
ELECTRICITY  

BACKLOG (70kw) 
2011/2012 2012/2013 

Backlog  Target  Achieved  Backlog  Target  Achieved  

Number of households not 
receiving minimum 
standard of services. 

2225 342 342 844 972 329 

% of households identified 
as backlogs. 

30 15.4 15.4 12.1% 33.1% 38.9% 

Spending on new 
infrastructure to eliminate 
backlogs.(R0.00) 

2 400 000 2 400 000 2 400 000 3 300 000 3 300 000 3 300 000 

Spending on the renewal 
maintained of existing 
infrastructure. (R0.00) 

0 0 0 3 300 000 3 300 000 3 300 000 

Total spending to eliminate 
backlogs. (R0.00) 

2 400 000 2 400 000 2 400 000 3 300 000 3 300 000 3 300 000 

 
REFUSE REMOVAL  

BACKLOG 
2011/2012 2012/2013 

Backlog  Target  Achieved  Backlog  Target  Achieved  

Number of households not 
receiving minimum 
standard of services. 

1388 0 0 1388 0 0 

% of households identified 
as backlogs. 

19 0 0 19.8 0 0 

Spending on new 
infrastructure to eliminate 
backlogs.(R0.00) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Spending on the renewal 
maintained of existing 
infrastructure. (R0.00) 

1388 0 0 0 0 0 

Total spending to eliminate 
backlogs. (R0.00) 

1388 0 0 0 0 0 
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3.2 PERFORMANCE OF “EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS 
 
The table below summarizes the performance in terms of implementation of capital projects:- 
 

PROJECT NAME    Ward Funding CONSULTANT CONTRACTOR BUDGET Expenditure Status 

Welgevonden Internal Road    03 MIG Kings & Ass D & D Electrical JV R6 000 000 R5 583 084.72 93.1 % 

Boikhutso Internal Road    03 MIG NEP Consulting Sunrise-Boikemelo JV R7 000 000 R8 086 114.37 100% 

Boikhutsong Internal Road     05 MIG NALKO 
Engineering 

NONDO  Trading 
Enterprise 

R5 000 000 R4 889 156.39 100 % 

Goedgevonden Internal 
Road (planning phase) 

   05 MIG Kings & Ass Nkomazi  R1 044 001 R663 108.64 100% 

Electrification of households  
– Appeldraai  

   03 DME EMC Consulting 
Engineers 

D & D Electrical  Projects 
and Delevex 528 cc JV 

R1 500 000 R1 210 465.46 100% 

Electrification of Households 
– Boikhutsong 

    05 DME EMC Consulting 
Engineers 

Malesela Transmission & 
Distribution (PTY) LTD 

R2 000 000 R1 826 643.25 100% 
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Bulk Water Supply (250 
connections) 

   Ward PIG PRDC  
(08/06/2012) 

Not yet appointed R1600000 R0.00 0% 

Bulk Water Supply (1000 
connections) 

    PIG Kings & Ass 
(08/06/2012) 

Not yet appointed R2 600 000 R1 377 406.14 53% 

Goedgevonden Internal 
Road 

   05 MIG Kings & Ass Nkomazi R9 000 000 R8 046 053.67 89.4% 

Tshing Ext 2 Internal Road    01 MIG T.M. Khoza & 
Associates 

Diphatse Trading R6 319 798 R6 223 554.88 98% 

Tshing Ext 3 Internal Road   04 MIG NALKO Solly Concrete R11 400 000 R10 440 889.01 91% 

Appeldraai – Electrical Bulk 
Supply 

  03 DME Mokemedi 
Engineering 

Rekohn Electrical R3 370 000 R2 824 783.04 Complete 

Tshing Ext 6 Electrical 
Connections 

  Ward DME Ingomoso 
Engineers 

02/08/2012) 

Rekohn R2 200 000 R186 158.01 89.8%  
Complete 

Boikhutso 59 Electrical 
Connections 

   03 DME INGPLAN 
Consulting 
Engineers 
(02/08/2012) 

Rekohn R650 000 R574  498.18 Complete 
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3.3   2012/13 BACKLOGS ON ACCESS TO BASIC SERVICES 

  Water (on site) Sanitation Refuse removal Electricity (in house) 

Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual 

No Info No Info  1019 0 0 1388 0 903 329373 

2012/13   Access to adequate services per municipal 

 Housing  Water (on site) Sanitation Refuse removal Electricity (in house) 

Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual 

   1019 1500 1019 1500 1019 7000 5612 903 373 

STATUS ON THE PROVISION OF FREE BASIC SERVICES 

  

Electricity Water Sanitation Refuse removal 

No of indigent 
households 

receiving free 
service 

Units per 
household 

(kwh) 

No of 
indigent 

households 
receiving 

free service 

Units per 
house-

hold 

No of 
indigent 

households 
receiving 

free service 

Units/ R value 
pm per house- 

hold 

No of 
indigent 

households 
receiving 

free service 

Units/ R value 
pm per house- 

hold 

(kl) 

        

MUNCIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT (MIG) 
2012/13 

INDIGENT POLICIES AND REGISTERS  
2012/13 

  

Allocations Amount 
spent 

% spent Reviewed 
/developed  
indigent 
policies 

Indigent 
policy 
implemented 

Does the  
municipality 
have an  
indigent register 
in place 

24 373 000.00 20 680 205.26 85% yes yes yes 
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3.4 COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
The key functions of the Community Services Department are the following: 
 

 Cemeteries 
 Horticultural services 
 Information of Library services 
 Law enforcement and Traffic services 
 Licensing and Testing 
 Fire and Rescue services 
 Tshedimosetso Thusong Service Centre (MPCC) 
 Development of risk and disaster plan 
 Logistical support to Disaster Management 
 Sports Facilities and Amenities Maintenance 

 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE THAT THE DIRECTORATE LEADS 
 
o These objectives are the following: 
o To provide basic Fire Fighting services. 
o To provide Information and Library services to the community. 
o Develop and promote Disaster preparedness, recruitment of volunteers, Disaster plan 

and logistical support to other Directorates. 
o To conduct joint operation with other law enforcement agencies. 
o Ensure effective and efficient coordination and provision of public services at the 

Thusong Service Centre. 
o The management of Horticultural services. 
o The management of Cemeteries. 
o To render Law enforcement and Traffic services. 
o To provide Licensing and testing services. 
o To provide maintenance of sports facilities and amenities 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE THAT THE DIRECTORATE SUPPORTS 
 
o The following objectives are supported by the Directorate: 
o Public Information and Educational Relations 
o Promotion of a safe, clean and healthy environment 
o Promotion of Early Childhood Development 
o Enforcement of by-laws relating to Street trading, Public nuisances and animals, Public 

amenities, Fences and fencing as well as the Commonages by-law. 
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 CEMETERIES STATISTICS 
 

Undertakers Jul  
  –  
Sep 
2012 

Total in 
rand(s) 

Oct 
– 
Dec 
2012 

Total in 
Rand(s) 

Jan 
 – 
Mar 
2013 

Total in 
Rand(s) 

Apr 
 – 
June 
2013 

Total in 
Rand(s) 

Eli-Shammah 43 R12 930.33 42 R13 029.66 41 R12 719.43 25 R7 755.75 

Dorotian 08 R3 207.75 06 R1 861.38 02 R620.46 05 R1 551.15 

Doves/Saffas 05 R1 517.02 11 R3 412.53 08 R2 481.84 06 R1 861.38 

Martins 10 R3 102.30 17 R5 273.91 10   R4 032.99 

Faith Funerals 01 R276.10       

DJ Funerals 11 R3 378.40 05 R1 551.15 03 R930.69 02 R620.46 

Avbob     01 R310.23 02 R620.46 

Boikanyo 02 R620.46   02 R620.46 03 R930.69 

Rekathusa 02 R620.46  R1 240.92 02 R620.46 02 R620.46 

Moseki 07 R2 112.35  R2.171.61 04 R1 240.92 04 R1 240.92 

Prestige Funerals 01 R276.10       

Faith Funerals 01 R276.10       

Rock of Ages 01 R310.23   01 R310.23 01 R310.23 

Batho pele Funerals   02 R620.46     

Funeral 2000     01 R310.23 01 R310.23 

Eternity Funerals      01 R310.23 03 R930.69 

Pinky Funerals   01 R310.23     

Ventersdorp Funerals       03 R930.69 

Brown Mosiapoa Funeral       01 R310.23 

New Generations funeral       01 R310.23 

Bali Funerals     01 R310.23   

International Funerals       01 R310.23 

Mabusela Funerals       01 R310.23 

L 91 28 351.50 95 29 471.85 77 23 887.71 74 22 957.02 
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INFORMATION AND LIBRARY SERVICES 
 
The following had been the divisional activities of the Library services section: 
 
STATISTICAL REPORT OF VENTERSDORP COMMUNITY LIBRARIES 
 

CATEGORY JUL – SEP 2012 OCT – DEC 2012 JAN – MAR 2013 APR –  JUN 2013 

Membership 

Adult 722 801 826 799 

Children  104 116 118 112 

     

Circulation 

Adult 

English Fiction 
 
Afrikaans Fiction 
English Non 
Fiction 
 
Setswana 

 

843 

 

855 

 

711 

 

670 

2 136 2 176 2 164 2 251 

695 491 452 319 

458 320 329 179 

     

Juniors  

English fiction 
 
Afrikaans fiction 
Non-fiction 
 
Setswana 

 

544 

 

440 

 

411 

 

348 

213 317 262 248 

576 403 335 214 

 

375 

 

359 

 

293 

 

86 
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 FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICES 
 
The primary aim of this section is:- 
 

 Incident stabilization 

 Fire prevention 

 Minimization of damage to property against fire 

 Humanitarian help against environmental vulnerability 

 Fire safety inspection 

 Implementations of fire break in accordance with the fire brigade 

 Review house and business plans 

 Awareness campaigns 
 

REACTIVE SERVICES Jul– Sep 2012 Oct – Dec 
2012 

Jan – Mar 2013 Apr – Jun 
2013 

Fires 

House fires 02 01 01 05 

Shack fires 05 02 08 04 

Lapa fires 00    

Veld fires 37 02 02 31 

Others 01   02 

     

Motor Vehicles Accidents 

Involving vehicles 07 27 29 29 

Involving pedestrians 00 00  03 

     

Special services  

Spillage  05 01 01 08 

Hazardous materials 01 00   

Water supply 17 23 42 16 

Bees invasion 00 01 03  

Others 00 07 09 16 

     

 

Proactive Services 

Building inspection 02  01  

Public education 05 04 03 02 

Complaints      

Permits     

Hydrants  01 02   

Roadblocks 01 03 04  

Fire breaks     

Events 05 02 04 01 

Social Relief 02    

Approval of Plans 06 02 08  
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DRIVING LICENCE TEST RESULTS REPORT 
 

 

MONTH 

 

PASSED 

 

FAILED 

 

ABSENT 

July 2012 61 119 59 

August 2012 19 70 08 

September 2012 47 43 07 

October 2012 70 180 12 

November 2012 49 127 14 

December 2012 36 128 00 

January 2013 70 145 06 

February 2013 50 150 08 

March 2013 63 118 04 

April 2013 49 119 12 

May 2013 54 160 20 

June 2013 56 137 18 

TOTAL 624 1 496 168 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LAW ENFORCEMENT AND TRAFFIC SERVICES 
 
This section is responsible for Licensing and Traffic services.    
 
The primary aim is to enhance effectiveness, efficiency, service delivery and public safety in order to meet the  
Vision and mission statement of Ventersdorp Local Municipality.  The following are the functions of this section: 
 
Licensing Office 
 

 Registration and Licensing of motor vehicle 

 Conversion of Drivers licenses 

 Issuing of special and temporary permits 

 Issuing of personal and private license numbers 

 Deregistration of motor vehicle 

 Filing of all registration and licensing documentation per registration number 

 
ACTUAL PERFORMANCE LICENSES JULY 2012 – JUNE 2013 

 

INSTITUTION JUL – SEPT 

2012 

OCT – DEC 2012 JAN – MAR 2013 APR – JUNE 

2013 

 
Provincial income 

 
R1 135 185.48 

 

R799 087.24 

 

R1 445 838.64 

 

R1 145 866.31 

 
Municipal income 

 
R437 764.37 

 

R436 975.81 

 

R646 161.71 

 

R580 582.81 

 
Prodiba income 

 

R33 300.00 

 

R32 550.00 

 

R44 625.00 

 

R37 650.00 

 
Prodibamunc income 

 
R65 328.00 

 

R63 798.00 

 

R87 465.00 

 

R73 794.00 

TOTAL R1 671 577.85 R1 332 411.05 R2 224 090.35 R1 837 893.12 
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3.5 SHARED SERVICE WITH DR.KENNETH KAUNDA DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 
 

MUNICIPAL HEALTH SERVICES VENTERSDORP 
 

NARRATIVE REPORT: JULY 2012 –JUNE 2013 
 

HUMAN RESOURCE ISSUES/VENTERSDORP DEPLOYEES 
 

 Mrs. Fortunate  

 Mr. Tumelo Mosebi 

 Lerato Mogapi-Environmental Health Practitioner was appointed as from the 1st of 
July 2012. 

 Xoliswa Tyalakhulu-Adminisrative Clerk -was appointed as from 1st April 2013. 
 
ACHIEVEMENTS 
 
AWARENESS CAMPAIGNS 

 

 Clean Up campaign that was held in Tshing on the 05th July 2012 

 
 

 Capacity Building of Caterers of Ventersdorp  
Capacity building of all caterers that are on the database of DrKKDM and Ventersdorp 
municipality was conducted on the 31st August 2012. 
 

 
Cllr Matome with the different Presenters 

 

 
Caterers with their aprons from Dr.KKDM 

 National Arbor Day Celebration 
National Arbor Day celebration was held at Thuto Boswa High School on the 05th September 

2012 at Tshing location where in the learners were debating about the importance of trees. 
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Cllr Matome is planting a tree 

 

 
Award given to the winner 

 

 World Food Day Celebration 
On the 18th October 2012 world food day celebration was held at Alex `s taxi rank where the 
community of Ventersdorp were educated and conscientized about the importance of safe 
food and the dangers associated to consumption of unfit foodstuffs. 
 

 
Cllr is making an opening 

 

 Capacity Building of Formal Food Handlers 
Capacity building of all food handlers working at the formal food premises was conducted on 
5Keys to Safer Food on the 12th December 2012. 
 

 
Presenters of that event whilst listening to other presenter 
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Posters that were given to different shops 
 
 

 Capacity of Home Based care Givers that was conducted at Kopano and Tsholofelo Home Base Care on the 
07th March 2013 

 

 
 
 
 

 Provincial Water Week Celebration that was held on the 20th March 2013 

 
 
 

 Health and Hygiene Door to Door campaign that was held on the 24th April 2013 at Aapeldraai 

 
 
Community members listening to the EHP`s during education sessions 
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CLEAN UP CAMPAIGNS 
 

Municipal Health Services is conducting the clean ups on a monthly basis to assist the 

municipality to minimize the illegal dumping and to ensure that the community is staying 

in a conducive environment. Different wards are targeted to ensure that entire 

Ventersdorp in kept clean. Clean up campaigns were conducted in the following dates 

and different spots: 

 

 
Cleaning team waiting for the truck to collect the bags 

      
Area during the cleaning                                                      Area after it was cleaned 

Different dates that the clean ups were conducted:- 
 
 05 July 2012 
 15 August 2012 
 27September 2012 
 25 October 2012 
 29 November 2012 
 24 and 25 January 2013 
 28 February 2013 
 17 March 2013 
 21 May 2013 

 
ENVIRONMENTNATAL FORUM MEETING 
 

Environmental forum meeting sits quarterly and it was held on the following dates: 
 

 01st August 2012  

 30th November 2012  

 15 March 2013 

 20 June 2013 
 
The aim is to ensure that the municipality and different stakeholders discuss the issues 
affecting the environment. 
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INDIGENT BURIALS 
 
Twelve families were assisted with the burial of their loved one to the amount of R60 700, 00 

 

DATE BENEFICIARY FUNERAL 
UNDERTAKER 

AMOUNT 

07/07/2012 Lawrence Pute  Eli-Shammah Funerals R5500,00 

10/07/2012 Frans Modise Eli Shamma funerals R5900,00 

20/08/2012 Baby Matlho Martins R1800,00 

24/10/2012 Lesego Seleke Eli-Shammah Funerals R3500,00 

20/11/2012 Simon Molosi Eli Shamma Funerals R5500,00 

28/11/2012 Monica Looi Eli- Shammah Funerals R5500,00 

03/01/2013 Amos Gum Eli-Shammah Funerals R5500,00 

14/01/2013 Dipuo Seleke Eli Shammah Funerals R5500,00 

04/03/2013 Ernest Wynkwaart Eli Shammah Funerals R5500,00 

05/04/2013 Martha motlhabane Eli-Shammah Funerals R5500,00 

29/04/2013 Johannah Lerite Eli-Shammah Funerals R5500,00 

03/06/2013 Mantwa Motsamai Eli Shammah Funerals R5500,00 
 
TRAINING/WORKSHOPS/CONGRESS ATTENDED 
 

DATE COURSE ATTENDEES 

30July-03 August 2012 Legal Framework for Integrated Waste 
Management 

Fortunate 

14-15 August 2012 Employment Equity Training Fortunate 

20-24 August 2012 Environmental Risk Assessment and 
Management 

Tumelo 

20-24 August 2012 Introduction to Integrated Waste 
Management for Environmental 
Managers 

Fortunate 

24 August 2012 Food Labelling Training Lerato 

06-07 September 2012 Climate Change Fortunate 

07 September 2012 Employment Equity Training Lerato 

23 October 2012 Employment Equity Training Tumelo 

05-07 November 2012 Waste Management Training Lerato 

12-14 November 2012 All Africa Congress Tumelo 

19 November 2012 Sound Level Meter Training Lerato 

6-10 May Taking of statements Fortunate, Lerato and 
Tumelo 

13-17 May 2013 NOSA Lerato 

29 May 2013 Blue Drop Training Lerato 

3-7 June 2013 Law Enforcement  Tumelo 

 
CHALLENGES 

During the period July 2012-June 2013 the following challenges were experienced: 
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GENERAL 
 

CHALLENGE RECOMMENDATION 

Lack of Data Base 
There is currently no database for all the 
premises hence it is difficult to weigh the 
performance of staff as it is calculated according 
to the total number existing 

 
Consultant be appointed to do the 
database of all the areas to enable the 
MHS to report on the exact number. 
 
 

Shortage of Staff including Admin Clerk 
To provide effective and efficient MHS to the 
community 

 
An extra EHP be appointed and an 
Admin Clerk 

Lack of Inter Departmental Relations 
MHS and the municipality are working in silos 
hence some of the issues that can be tackled 
together takes too long to be resolved 

 
Letter must be send to MM of the 
municipality to request interdepartmental 
relation be developed and strengthened 

Unavailability of Performance Management 
System and Rewards System 
Systems that must ensure excellent performance 
of staff and to encourage staff to go extra miles 

 
 
MHS must develop PMS system that 
must work within the department and 
agree on the rewards system 

Lack of Storage Facility for the Promotional 
materials 
MHS Ventersdorp requires a storage facility as 
the awareness campaigns are conducted on a 
quarterly basis to ensure safe storage of the 
promotional materials 

 
 
Mobile storage be procured during the 
adjustment budget 

  
CHALLENGE PER AS PER KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 

KPA  CHALLENGES RECOMMENDATIONS 

Water  Quality Monitoring Absence of budget for water 
samples at Ventersdorp 
Municipality 
 
Recurring sewage overflows 
causing environmental 
pollution. 

CFO of Ventersdorp must be 
consulted and ensure that there 
is budget allocated for Water 
sampling 
 
Timeous attendance of 
complaints by Technical 
department. 

Food Control Absence of License officer at 
the municipality which results 
in EHP`s inspecting illegal 
food premises 
 

MM of Ventersdorp must commit 
with the exact date to allocate 
the officer to perform licensing 
function 

Disposal of condemned 
foodstuffs at landfill site 
which end up at the 
scavengers using those 
foodstuffs. 

Purchase of a compactor truck 
to be utilized for food 
condemnations 

Waste management No sustainable waste 
management projects from 
the municipality 
 

Encourage the municipality to 
initiate the waste projects to 
minimize illegal dumping 
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Illegal dumping due to lack of 
education 
 

Intensive community education 
initiatives on environmental 
matters.  

 
Unpermitted landfill sites in 
Ventersdorp Municipalities 
 
 

 
District Municipality to assist 
with the funds for  
construction of the approved 
landfill sites 
 

Informal waste recycling 
initiative conducted by 
private person’s results in 
illegal dumping.  

Recycling initiatives at local 
municipalities needs to be 
supported. 

Environmental Pollution 
Control 

Pollution Control Officer is 
not visible at Ventersdorp to 
assist and support the EHP`s 
with pollution issues 
 
 
There is continuous burning 
of waste due to lack of 
knowledge regarding air 
quality issues and the 
impacts on the environment. 
 

Pollution Control Officer must 
visit other locals to assist in 
pollution issues and to 
familiarize himself/herself with 
the area.  
There is a greater need to 
involve the communities on 
climate change issues that affect 
them and their environment on a 
daily basis in order for them to 
understand, become aware and 
then make informed decision to 
reduce the impacts and save the 
environment. Education is the 
key. 
 

Surveillance and 
Prevention of  
Communicable Disease 

No response team that is 
functional in the area 

Department of Health be taken 
on board to establish an 
outbreak response team 

 
 
3.6 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVES THAT THE UNIT LEADS 
 
LED 
 
 Growth and Investment.  
 Agricultural and Rural Development 
 Mining and Energy  
 Manufacturing and trade 
 Tourism Development  
 Construction and Infrastructure  
 SMME development 
 Training and Skills Development 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE THAT THE UNIT SUPPORT  
 
Because of the staff compliment, some of the pillars are not effective. Currently the unit is 
concentrating on  
 
 Agriculture, SMME Development & Training. 
 Registration of businesses / co-operatives through SEDA  
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 Development of business plans through SEDA  

 Training  

 Workshops through SEDA  

 Business advice  

 Application for funding of projects  

 
PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS 

 
Transport Planning Services 
 
Introduction 
 
According to the National land Transport Act (NTA ACT 2009) the municipality is designated as local 
transport authority which is supposed to handle local public transport matters that also encompass 
trucks and various land transportation.  
Currently the municipality has started a stakeholder’s forum as a precursor to local public transport 
forum. The forum has representatives from the GVTA and local metered taxi. Strategic planning 
director is holding monthly meeting to deal with local taxi industry issues. The management is 
currently handling the Expenditure of the local taxi rank to accommodate all taxis in one central rank. 
There are 37 registered and licensed taxis operators and 6 metered taxis. The department assisted 
the local taxi association to be registered as one and only local taxi association. Department is busy 
to formalize and support the meter taxis to operate legally and serve the community within procedure 
and legal framework. 
  
Trade and Investment Services 
 
Objectives 
 
 Pro-actively promote and facilitate, job creation opportunities through trade and investments in all 

the key thriving sectors 
 Create an enabling environment for inward investment 
 Establish a viable, competitive industry locally and internationally 
 Build Ventersdorp image as a preferred investment destination 
 Retain and Expenditure and the existing industry, whilst continuing to attract new investments 
 Strategic Approach 
 Diversify the economic base and create new economic opportunities 
 Target key growth sectors in domestic and international markets 
The department has advertised investment projects for investment funding by various developers and 
investors. At least dozen prospective applicants replied and have since presented before a 
committee. The process is at contract signing stage with various successful service providers who 
were appointed for various developmental projects.  
 
Town Planning Report 
 
The town has three new extensions that are being developed. These extensions are Tshing Extension 
8, Ventersdorp Extensions 10, 11 and 12. The Extensions have a combined erven of 1019 of which 
990 are residential erven.    
These extensions where developed to help us with our housing backlog and to create a more 
integrated town. The extensions General Plan was sent for approval to the Surveyor General and as 
soon as it is approved a township register will be opened and the proclamation of the area will take 
place. 
The farms Elandskuil RE/206, Elandskuil RE3/205 and Elandskuil RE205 where bought and we are in 
the proses of appointing developers for the properties. 
 
Housing Report / Performance 2006-2013 

Tshing Proper – The remaining houses are 350 of 432 (82 constructed) the remaining houses were 

not built most of the beneficiaries has structures that they have built for themselves, and they have 

been approved during the subsidy application processes as far as 2006. 

The department has stopped the project and has terminated the contract of turnkey developer was 

responsible for that project. 
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Former MEC has also discouraged the renovations of people who have structures and qualified in 

terms of housing subsidy system we have requested the department to appoint a developer who can 

finished this project since 2012, to date they haven’t make the appointments 

Fikele housing project-   the project is for 1000 units 415 houses units a not yet build, this project  has 

many challenges,  that are related to dolomite, we have  requested the department to redirect  the 

project  to boikhutso   because the area of boikhutso  has no dolomite .(no further study is done) 

303 housing projects. This project has the very similarities with a tshing proper; the same contractor 

was terminated in this project. 

Land infill – the environmental pro bono has helped the municipality with the EIA PROCCESSES, WE 

HAVE BEEN PRAPARING the beneficiaries’ through HSS. 

105 housing projects – this project has been completed. 

Extension 5 – the project is completed less than 10 houses has  structural defects, the department 

should  extend the scope of work when appointing  developer for 303 and tshing proper to assist with 

houses in Ext 5. 

 PROJECTS AND PROGRAMMES  
 
LED UNIT REPORT 
 
Projects background 
 
EPWP is a Labour Intensive Programme initiated by Government which provides Public and 
Government assets or services funded from Public Resources. EPWP is one element within a 
broader Government strategy which aims to reduce poverty through the alleviation and reduction of 
unemployment.  The LED unit has implemented the EPWP programme from September 2012 to June 
2013 
 
Budget   :  R 1 501 095.90  
Employment  :  163  
 
Areas worked : 
 

Project site Project type Number of Participants 

Mogopa Village Cleaning  14  

Nursery Agricultural  14  

Appledraai Agricultural  13  

Cecilia Home agricultural 14  

Tsetse Village Environmental maintenance 14  

Cultural Village Tourism  22  

Lossi Park Tourism  18  

Ruismirbult Environmental maintenance 14  

Goedgevonden & Boikhutsong Environmental maintenance 18  

Youth Centre  Environmental rehabilitation 22  

 
CWP REPORT 
 

Site Age 14 Months 

Total Number of Participants 837 

Site Name Ventersdorp 

Number of Wards 6  

Participants Benefited for June 860 
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BUDGET 
 

Budget item Amount Percentage of total 

Wages              R7,666,000.00 83% 

Protective gear & equipment R 370,000.00 4% 

Materials and tools R 180,000.00 2% 

*Training R 76,000.00 1% 

Bank costs R 216,648.00 2% 

*Project management fee R 723,121.00 8% 

TOTAL R 9 ,230,429.00 100% 

 
ACTIVITIES PER WARD 

Ward  Activities 

1 Sweeping street  

2 Maintaining school yard, Garden, System devise and cleaning class rooms   

2 Identifying poor/unemployed households, cleaning for old people who aren’t able to 
clean for themselves, Identifying matters needing other stakeholders and submitting 
reports to specific stakeholders.    

2 Removing unwanted bush at the unfinished local park. 

3 Maintaining grave yards, Sweeping Streets, Maintaining gardens. 

3 Maintaining crèche yard and cleaning classrooms   

4 Maintaining sports ground, community hall, cemeteries, clearing public spaces and 
street sweeping. 

5 Maintaining sports ground, community hall, cemeteries, clearing public spaces and 
street sweeping, cleaning and maintaining the community clinic. 

5 Maintaining crèche yard, garden and classrooms. 
Community hall, School yard and classrooms. 

6 Clearing bushes, illegal dumping sites, maintaining community hall, maintaining 
crèche, street sweeping and clearing of public spaces. 
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3.7       ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2012/2013 
 

KPA 1 BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY AND INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 
DIRECTORATE: ENGINEERING SERVICES 

Project ID. Supervisor Responsibl
e Person 

Key Performance 
Area (KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators (KPI) 

Annual Target Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base Line Budget  Expenditure Actual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/  
Challenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio 
of 
Evidence 

DME  Director 
Engineering 
services 

Mr 
Moremedi 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Provision of 923 
households with 
access o basic 
electricity at 
Boikhutsong(59 
households) and 
Tshing(820 
households)and 
Boikhutsong(44 
Households) and 
Appeidraai bulk 
supply 

923 
Households 
with access to 
electricity by 
June 2012 

provided 923 
households by 
June 2013 

  No access to 
basic 
electricity 

    Provided 109 
households with 
basic Electricity at 
Boikhutsong,44 
households 
provision was 
redirected for 
electricity bulk 
purchase,110 
households 
provided with 
basic Electricity 
Appeldraai and 
600 connection   
was regazetted 
for 2013/2014 
and 220 
connection 
completed at 
Tshing Ext 6` 

Regazetting 
due to town 
planning 
activities 
especially 
Tshing Ext 6 

Finalize  of 
pegging 
stands 

council 
resolution 

MIG Grant Director 
Engineering 
services 

MR 
Moremedi 
& Mrs S 
Human 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Provision of 5.5 km 
Tar road - Tshing 
Ext 3 

Design and 
documentatio
n for provision 
of 5.5 km Tar 
road at Tshing 
Ext 3 by end of 
June 2012 

Tarred 5.5 km 
roads by June 
2013.  

  inaccessible 
road at 
Tshing  

    4 km road tarred 
at Tshing  

The response 
of the 
market 
allowed the 
municipality 
to tarred 
only 4 km 

Planning to 
be well done 
for proper 
implementati
on 

completio
n report  

DWA Director 
Engineering 
services 

Mr 
Moremedi 
& DWA 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Upgraded  Bulk 
Water supply to 
Ventersdorp 

Upgrading of 
Bulk Water 
supply for 
6183 
households by 
end June 2013 

 Supplied 6183 
households by 
June 2013. 

        The water Bulk 
was upgraded by 
completing bulk 
water pipeline  
and completed 
shuttering for 
concrete walls 

Sourcing 
scares 
material 

Forward 
Plenary  

Physical 
verificatio
n and 
progress 
report 
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MIG Grant 

    

  

 
Provision of 3.5 km 
Tar road - 
Boikhutso village 

 
Design and 
documentatio
n for provision 
of 3.5 km Tar 
road at 
Boikhutso 
village by end 
of June 2012 

 
3,5 kmx6mTar 
road for 
Boikhutso  

  

  

     
3.5 km road 
tarred at 
Boikhuso village 

 
none  

 
none  

 
Physical 
verificatio
n and 
progress 
report and 
close out 
report 

MIG Grant     

  

Provision of 2.5 km 
Tar road - 
Boikhutsong village 

Design and 
documentatio
n for provision 
of 2.5 km Tar 
road at 
Boikhutsong 
village by end 
of June 2012 

   

  

    2.5 km road were 
tarred at 
Boikhutsong  

None  none  Physical 
verificatio
n and 
progress 
report and 
close out 
report 

MIG Grant Director 
Engineering 
services 

Mr 
Moremedi  

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To replace the  AC 
pipes with PVC 
pipes (phase 1) 

Replacement 
of AC pipes 
with PVC pipes  

Replaced 
phase 1of the   
1500 
connections by 
June 2013. 

  

  

    Submission for 
project 
evaluation  with 
department of 
waters  affairs, AC 
pipes to PVC 
were not done 

waters affairs 
delayed the 
implementati
on 

To fast track 
the decision 
of water 
affairs  
(Project 
replaced with 
Ext 2 Road 
Development
) 

  

MIG Grant Director 
Engineering 
services 

Mr 
Moremedi  

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Provision of 2.5km 
Tar Road - Tshing 
Ext. 2 - Phase 1  

Design and 
documentatio
n for provision 
of 2.5 km Tar 
road at Tshing 
Ext. 2 by end 
of June 2012 

Surfaced 
road(2.5) by 
2013 

  

  

    Completed sub-
base and Base 
course 

decision of 
council 
delayed the 
implementati
on 

Implementati
on followed 
accordingly 
by council 

council 
resolution 

MIG Grant     

  

Provision of 3.0 km 
tar roads - 
Welgevonden 
village 

Design and 
documentatio
n for provision 
of 3.0 km Tar 
road at 
Welgevonden 
by end of June 
2012 

Surfaced 
road(3.0) by 
2013 

  

  

    Completed sub-
base and Base 
course 

Tight Budget Adequate 
funding by 
MIG 

Physical 
verificatio
n and 
minutes of 
progress 
meetings 

MIG Grant Director 
Engineering 
services 

Mr 
Moremedi  

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Provision of 4.5 km 
tar roads - 
Goedgevonden 

Tarred 4.5 km 
road by June 
2013.  

  Tarred 
4,5 km 
road 

      2,5 km of road 
tarred at 
Goedgevonden 

Tight Budget Adequate 
funding by 
MIG 

Physical 
verificatio
n and 
minutes of 
progress 
meetings 
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MIG Grant Director 
Engineering 
services 

Mr Fanie 
Zoko 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

maintained 
network, street 
lights and 
substation 

To maintain 
our electrical 
network, 
streets lights 
and substation 
to ensure 
reliable supply 
at all times  

Maintained 
network, 
street lights 
and substation 
by June 2013. 

To
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 o
u

r 
el

ec
tr

ic
al

 

n
et

w
o

rk
, s

tr
ee

ts
 li

gh
ts

 a
n

d
 

su
b

st
at

io
n

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 r
el

ia
b

le
 

su
p

p
ly

 a
t 

al
l t

im
es

  

      Maintenance of 
old Infrastructure 
network 
&purchasing of 
transformers, 
streetlights 
repaired, 
Replacement of 
broken poles  

  Proof of 
receipts, 
Physical 
Verificatio
n 

Operation
al Budget  

Director 
Engineering 
services 

Mr Fanie 
Zoko 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To maintain the 
entire roads 
network in 
Ventersdorp and 
Tshing 

To maintain 
the entire 
roads network 
in Ventersdorp 
and Tshing 

 Maintained 
roads network 
in Ventersdorp 
and Tshing by 
June 2013. 

To
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 t
h

e 
en

ti
re

 r
o

ad
s 

n
et

w
o

rk
 in

 V
en

te
rs

d
o

rp
 a

n
d

 

Ts
h

in
g 

      Roads were 
Maintained by 
Patching  of 
potholes, and 
cleaning of roads 

None  None  invoices 
and 
physical 
verificatio
n 

 
Operation
al budget  

Director 
Engineering 
services 

Mr Fanie 
Zoko 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To maintain the 
sewage Network for 
the entire 
Ventersdorp and 
Tshing 

To maintain 
the sewage 
Network for 
the entire 
Ventersdorp 
and Tshing 

 Maintained   
sewage 
Network for 
the entire 
Ventersdorp 
and Tshing by 
June 2013. To

 m
ai

n
ta

in
 t

h
e 

se
w

ag
e 

N
et

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

th
e 

en
ti

re
 

V
e

n
te

rs
d

o
rp

 a
n

d
 

Ts
h

in
g 

      Sewer were 
maintained by 
unblocking of 
sewerage pipes 
and monitoring 
the sewerages 
timeously 

None  None  Complains 
register 

Operation
al Budget  

Director 
Engineering 
services 

Mr Fanie 
Zoko 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To ensure regular 
refuse removal 
from households 
and Businesses 

To ensure 
regular refuse 
removal from 
households 
and Businesses 

Ensured 
regular refuse 
removal from 
households 
and Businesses 
by June 2013. 

To
 e

n
su

re
 r

eg
u

la
r 

re
fu

se
 r

em
o

va
l f

ro
m

 

h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s 

an
d

 

B
u

si
n

es
se

s 

      Weekly collection 
households 
refuse removal is 
done 

Refuse 
removal 
services is 
not rendered 
in villages 

Engage 
council 
regarding the 
village refuse 
removal 

Diesel 
vouchers 
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KPA 1 – BASIC SERVICE DELIVERY AND INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 
DIRECTORATE:COMMUNITY SERVICES 

Project ID. Supervisor Responsibl
e Person 

Key Performance 
Area (KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators (KPI) 

Annual Target Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base Line Budget  Expenditure Actual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio 
of 
Evidence 

Departme
nt of 
Sports, 
Arts and 
Culture 
(DSAC) 

Director: 
Community 
Services 

V. Ngejane Service Delivery & 
Infrastructure 
Development 

To promote library 
services through 
library programmes 

A programme 
a month for 
Ventersdorp, 
Tshing and 
Mogopa 
libraries 

36 library 
programmes 
for the three 
libraries by 
June 2013 

  The libraries 
have been 
implementin
g the 
monthly 
programmes 

   45 programmes none  none  Attendanc
e register 

DSAC Director 
Community 
Services 

V. Ngejane 
Se

rv
ic

e 
D

el
iv

er
y 

&
 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

  

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To facilitate the 
building of Tshing 
library 

Submission of 
the letter to 
DSAC 
indicating the 
availability of a 
library site 

A completed 
Tshing library 
by june 2013 

  Tshing library 
has been 
operated at 
an Extension 
2 community 
hall 

    No new library 
built and the 
progress was that 
Council was 
informed of the 
decision by DSAC 
of deferring the 
project to 
2015/16  

Project 
deferred to 
2015/16 
financial year 
by DSAC 

The side hall 
at Extension 2 
will continue 
to be used in 
the meantime 
that the 
project is 
awaited  

DSAC's 
letter 

DSAC Director 
Community 
Services 

V. Ngejane 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

 In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

  

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To submit a 
business plan to 
DSAC that will assist 
the libraries to be 
effective 

Submission of 
a business plan 
to DSAC 

Approval and 
usage of the 
DSAC grant by 
March 2013 

  DSAC has 
allocated R 
320 000 
conditional 
grant to 
Ventersdorp 

   R 320 000 
transferred to the 
Municipality on 
the 15 April 2013 

none  none  A copy of 
the 
business 
plan 

Operation
al 

Director 
Community 
Services 

B.M.B. 
Mosepele 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To oversee the 
services that are 
offered at the 
Thusong Service 
Centre 

Appointment 
of a centre 
clerk 

Appointed 
personnel by 
30 September 
2013 

  

N
o

 t
h

u
so

n
g 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
en

tr
e 

cl
er

k 

    Personnel not 
appointed. An 
employee has 
been placed at 
the Thusong 
Service Centre 

none  none  Temporary 
placement 
letter 

Operation
al 

Director 
Community 
Services 

G.A.M. 
Modise 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To maintain sports 
facilities and 
amenities 

Maintenance 
and 
management 
of sport 
facilities 

Fully 
maintained 
facilities by 30 
June 2013 

  

V
an

d
al

is
m

 o
f 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

    Broken fence was 
re-built, grass was 
cut. 2m wall was 
built and refuse 
removed 

none  none  Invoices of 
the bricks 
bought for 
the wall 

Operation
al 

Director 
Community 
Services 

B.M.B. 
Mosepele 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To place or appoint 
a supervisor and 
additional 
personnel 

Placement of 
parks and 
cemeteries 
supervisor 

Appointed 
personnel by 
30 June 2013 

  

O
ld

 a
n

d
 r

eg
u

la
rl

y 

si
ck

/i
ll 

p
er

so
n

n
el

     Not Achieved Posts are 
advertised in 
phases 

none  List of 
advertised 
posts 
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Operation
al 

Director 
Community 
Services 

S. 
Mathope 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To promote public 
safety and 
awareness 

To respond 
promptly to 
calls and 
conduct 
awareness 
campaigns 

12 Firefighting 
campaigns and 
prompt 
responses by 
June 2013 

  

Th
e 

ch
al

le
n

ge
 o

n
 t

h
e 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f 

fi
re

 s
er

vi
ce

s 

to
 t

h
e 

D
r 

K
K

 D
is

tr
ic

t 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

it
y 

    15 campaigns none  none  Occurrenc
e book 

Operation
al 

Director 
Community 
Services 

J. Nixon 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To promote public 
safety and 
awareness 

Appointment 
of a traffic 
officer 

Appointed 
personnel by 
June 2013 

  

Sh
o

rt
ag

e 
o

f 
tr

af
fi

c 

o
ff

ic
er

s 

    Assistant 
Superintendent 
appointed 

none  none  Appointm
ent letter 

Operation
al 

Director 
Community 
Services 

J. Nixon 
Se

rv
ic

e 
D

el
iv

er
y 

&
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To promote public 
safety and perform 
licensing 
transactions 

To conduct law 
enforcement 
activities 

400 law 
enforcement 
tickets, weekly 
speed camera 
and 4 
roadblock 

        49 492 speed 
camera cases 2 
237 905 income. 
No roadblocks 
were conducted 

The 
roadblock 
bus had 
mechanical 
problems 

SMSes were 
sent to 
transgressors 
to motivate 
them to pay 
fines 
 
 
 

Report on 
payment 
rate 

Operation
al 

Director 
Community 
Services 

J. Nixon 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

  

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

  Daily banking 
and monthly 
reconciliation 

Daily banking 
and 12 
reconciliations 
by June 2013 

  

No 
consistency 
in daily 
banking 

    R 2,007,447         
Twelve 
reconciliations 
done 

none  none  Monthly 
reports 

Operation
al 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Director 
Community 
Services 

Director 
Communit
y Services 

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
&

 I 

in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

  

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To promote safety 
through Vehicle 
Testing Station 

Daily testing of 
vehicles for 
road-
worthiness 

R 240 000 
income on 
testing 
vehicles by 
June 2013 

  

      Station not yet 
operating. The 
Province was 
engaged. Council 
approved the 
structure of the 
Vehicle Testing 
Station  

The positions 
were not 
budgeted 
for. 

Budget 
allocation to 
be made in 
the next 
financial year 
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KPA 2 LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Responsibl
e Person 

Key 
Performance 
Area (KPA) 

Objectives Key Performance Indicators (KPI) Annual Target Annual Revised 
Target 

Base Line Budget  Expendituree
nditure 

Actual  Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Challen
ges  

Planned Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio 
of 
Evidence 

R. Maboe 

Lo
ca

l E
co

n
o

m
ic

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To create 
jobs. 

Jobs below and exceeding 3 
months. 

50 jobs created 
through LED 
initiative including 
capital projects 
facilitated by June 
2013. 

None  Creation of jobs 
will be dependent 
on funding and 
projects from 
sector 
departments 

    175 EPWP 
beneficiaries 921 
captured on MIS, 
but only 860 are 
getting a stipend 

None  None  List of 
beneficiari
es  

R. Maboe 

Lo
ca

l E
co

n
o

m
ic

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To 
implement 
co-ops for 
compliance 
with 
legislation. 

Number of co-ops within the LED 
database- 58 

Facilitated 
registration of 12 
new co-ops by 
June 2013. 

None  Most of the 
certificates are 
outdated and not 
functional. 

None  None  6 co-ops & 2 close 
corporation  

registration is 
dependent upon 
members, if they 
do not deposit 
fees for 
registration, then 
the registration 
cannot be 
processed 

Application forms 
for registration 
should be 
accompanied by a 
registration fee  

Registratio
n 
certificates 
& proof of 
payment 

R. Maboe 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Lo

ca
l E

co
n

o
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To review 
the LED 
strategy 
for 
compliance 
with the 
legislation. 

LED strategy reviewed. LED strategy and 
plans aligned with 
PGDS by Dec 2013. 

None  Outdated LED 
Strategy 

None  None  Advert inviting 
prospective 
investors and 
developers for the 
municipal 
development 
projects was 
placed on national 
newspaper, closing 
date was on the 
15th Feb13 

prospective 
developers/invest
ors not yet 
appointed 

appointment of 
prospective 
developers/invest
ors  

Copy of 
advert  

R. Maboe 

Lo
ca

l E
co

n
o

m
ic

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To conduct 
workshops 
for  
SMME's 

Number of workshop held  Conducting 8 
SMME's 
workshops to 
capacitate SMME's 
by June 2013. 

None  Municipality is 
always dependent 
on the district 
municipality for 
training of SMMEs 
& Co-ops 

None  Funds from 
Dr. KK & 
DEDECT 

8 workshops & 2 
trainings 

None  None  Copy of 
register 

R. Maboe 

Lo
ca

l  
Ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 D

ev
e

lo
p

m
en

t 

To 
resuscitate 
the LED 
forum. 

Number of meetings to 
resuscitate the LED forum. 

Monthly held LED 
forums by June 
2013. 

None    None None 8 meetings held 
with different 
sectors & 1 District 
Forum meeting 
held 

None  Prospective 
investors and 
developers have 
been invited to 
submit proposals 
from municipal 
development 
projects and 
programmes  

Schedule 
of 
meetings & 
attendance 
register  
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R. Maboe 

Lo
ca

l E
co

n
o

m
ic

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To hold 
exhibitions. 

Number of exhibition held for 
SMME's. 

1 exhibitions 
annually June 
2013. 

None  The municipality is 
dependent on Dr. 
KK for annual 
attendance of 
exhibitions 

Dr. KK Dr. KK  None exhibitions are 
only held in 
September month, 
Dr. KK district did 
not participate in 
the last exhibitions 
hence Ventersdorp 
Municipality did 
not participate  

Municipality 
should plan and 
budget for its own 
exhibitions 

None 

R. Maboe 

Lo
ca

l E
co

n
o

m
ic

 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To 
establish 
the LED 
oversight 
committee 

Established LED oversight 
committee. 

Functional LED 
committee by June 
2013. 

None  None  None  None  None  No need for the 
establishment of 
the Oversight 
Committee as 
there is MPAC  

None  None  
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A 2 : GOOD GOVERNANCE -OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
Project ID. Supervisor Res Person Key Performance 

Area (KPA) 
Objectives Key Performance 

Indicators (KPI) 
Annual 
Target 

Revised 
Annual 
Target 

Base Line Actual Performance Budget  Expenditure Reason for 
Deviation 

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Operational T. Nkomo T.Nkomo 

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 

P
U

B
LI

C
 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 To train all 
councillors. 

Number of 
Councillors to be 
Trained 

Trained 12 
councillors 
by June 
2013. 

    9 councillors were 
trained  

    Tight Schedule  

Operational T. Nkomo T.Nkomo 

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 To train all 
ward 
committee 
members. 

Number of ward 
committee members 
to be trained 

60 trained 
ward 
committee 
members by 
30 June 
2013. 

30 trained 
ward 
committee 
members by 
30 June 
2013. 

  46 trained ward 
committee 
members. 

    IDASA is planning 
training for 3/4 
quarter 

Municipalit
y contact 
DLGTA for 
training 
opportuniti
es 

Operational T. Nkomo P.Mtshali 

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 
To establish 
the women’s 
forum. 

Establishment of 
women’s forum 

1 women's 
forum 
established 
by June 
2013. 

    Target not achieved 
an Interim 
committee was 
established 

    Gender 
Coordinator post 
not filled 

Filling of 
Gender 
Coordinato
r post in 
2013/14. 
To hold 
women 
summit in 
2013/14 in 
order to 
establish 
the Forum 

 
Operational 

 
T. Nkomo 

 
P.Mtshali 

G
O

O
D

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

A
N

D
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

P
U

B
LI

C
 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

 
To develop 
the gender 
policy 

 
Policy Development 

 
1 Gender 
policy 
developed by 
June 2013. 

     
Target not achieved 
progress registered 
is that the 
municipality is still 
benchmarking 

     
benchmarking 
process 

 
To develop 
Gender 
policy by 
October 
2013. 

Operational T. Nkomo I. Nche 

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 To establish 
the disability 
forum. 

Establishment of 
Disability forum 

1 Disability 
Forum 
established 
by 30 June 
2013.  

    Target not achieved 
but the interim 
structure was 
established. 
Disability summit 
was held. 

    the summit 
resolve that there 
should be a 
workshop of the 
disabled people 
before the 

workshop 
and 
Disability 
Forum 
establishm
ent by 
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establishment November 
2013 

Operational T. Nkomo I. Nche 

G
O

O
D

 G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To develop 
the disability 
policy. 

Policy Development Policy on 
disability 
developed by 
30 June 
2013. 

    Target not achieved     Deferred to 13/14 Policy on 
disability 
will be 
developed 
by 
November 
2013. 

Operational T. Nkomo T.Nkomo 

G
O

O
D

  

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
  

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

  

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To hold 
imbizos . 

numbers of Imbizo 4 imbizos 
held by 30 
June 2013. 

    1 imbizo held      4 stakeholders 
meetings were 
held instead of 
izimbizos 

to hold to 
izimbizos 
by 2013/14 

Operational T. Nkomo T. Nkomo 

G
O

O
D

  

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E 
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

 P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To hold ward 
committee 
meetings. 

Ward meetings  12 ward 
committee 
meetings 
held by June 
2013. 

    12 ward committee 
meetings were held  

    None None 

Operational T.Nkomo B.Timmerma
n 

G
O

O
D

 G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 To establish 
the youth 
forum. 

Establishment of 
youth Council. 

1 youth 
Council 
established 
by June 
2013. 

    Youth Council was 
established. 

    None None 

Operational T.Nkomo B.Timmerma
n 

G
O

O
D

  

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
  

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

  

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To develop 
the youth 
policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Policy Development 1 youth 
policy 
developed by 
June 2013. 

    1 youth policy 
developed and 
approved by the 
Council. 

    None None 
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INTERNAL AUDIT UNIT 

Project ID. Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key Performance 
Area (KPA) 

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base Line Budget  Expenditu
re 

Actual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Challen
ges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To facilitate 
risk 
assessment. 

Performed risk 
assessment. 

Risk 
assessment 
reported by 
September 
2012 

  

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 

re
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 

  N/A The risk 
assessment 
performed and 
report was 
submitted on 
the 5th June 
2013, and 
forwarded to 
AC Members 

N/A N/A 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   
G

O
O

D
 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 To develop 
an internal 
audit plan. 

Approved audit plan. Approved 
audit plan by 
December 
2012. 

  

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 a
u

d
it

 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

.   N/A  2012/13 audit 
plan was 
approved 

N/A N/A 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To issue 
internal audit 
reports per 
approved 
audit plan. 

Number of audit 
reports issued for 
PMS, and other 
audits per approved 
audit plan. 

6 audits 
conducted as 
per approved 
audit plan by 
30 June 
2013. 

  

6 
au

d
it

s 
co

n
d

u
ct

ed
 

in
 2

0
11

/1
2

 

    4 Audits 
conducted. 

The consulting 
service for IT was 
not done due to 
unavailability of IT 
Director at NWPIA 
as they were busy 
with review of 
PFMA AFS.  The 
consulting will be 
done in the first 
quarter of 
2013/14 as per 
the agreement 
with NWPIA.  The 
AG's follow up 
was not done as 
most of action 
was completed by 
management. 

outstandin
g audits 
planned for 
2013/14 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To review 
internal audit 
(IA) charter. 

Review internal 
audit charter. 

Reviewed 
and 
approved 
internal audit 
charter by 30 
June 2013. 

  

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 in
te

rn
al

 a
u

d
it

 

ch
ar

te
r 

fo
r 

2
01

1
/1

2.
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reviewed IA 
Charter 

N/A N/A 
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Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 

P
U

B
LI

C
 P

A
R

TI
C

IP
A

TI
O

N
 To review 

audit 
committee 
charter (ac) 

Review audit 
committee charter. 

Reviewed 
and 
approved 
audit 
committee 
charter by 30 
June 2013. 

  

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 a
u

d
it

 

co
m

m
it

te
e

 c
h

ar
te

r.
 

  N/A Reviewed  AC 
Charter 

N/A N/A 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To facilitate 
the audit 
committee’s 
effectiveness
. 

Number of audit 
meetings held and 
audit committee 
reports submitted to 
council. 

6 set minutes 
and audit 
committee 
reports by 30 
June 2013. 

  

A
u

d
it

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 in

 p
la

ce
. 

  N/A 4 audit 
meetings held 
and audit 
committee 
reports 
submitted to 
council. 

N/A N/A 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

Internal 
quality 
Assurance. 
(IQA) 

Number of IQA 
reports. 

Internal 
quality 
assurance 
report by 30 
June 2013. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 In

te
rn

al
 q

u
al

it
y 

as
su

ra
n

ce
 d

o
n

e 
in

 2
01

0
/1

1
. 

  N/A target not 
achieved 

NT plans the 
review per 
municipality 
instead of a 
shared services. 

The IQA 
was 
deferred to 
2013/14.   
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PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS                     

Project ID. Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key Performance 
Area (KPA) 

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base Line Budget  Expenditu
re 

Actual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Challen
ges 

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To 
implement a 
5 year 
Strategic 
Plan for 
Council to 
ensure 
effective 
direction. 

5 year Strategic Plan 
for Council 
implemented. 

Implemented 
5 year 
Strategic 
Plan for 
Council by 
June 2013. 

Review 5 
year strategic 
plan of the 
municipality 

O
u

td
at

ed
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n
 

    2012/13 IDP, 
Budget and 
SDBIP were 
reviewed and 
adopted by the 
Council. Only 
management 
bosberaad held 
due to tight 
schedule of 
Council 

N/A N/A 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 To provide 
municipal 
strategic 
planning. 

Review and adopt 
PMS framework 
2012-2013. 

Adopted 
PMS 
Framework 
by 
2012/07/30 

  

D
ra

ft
 P

M
S 

fr
am

e
w

o
rk

. 

     2012-2013 
PMS 
framework 
reviewed and 
adopted 

N/A N/A 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To provide 
municipal 
strategic 
planning. 

Number of signed 
Performance 
Agreements by Sec 
56 Managers and 
SDBIP. 

Signed 
2012/13 PA's 
by July 2012. 

  

N
o

n
e 

 

    5 PAs signed by 
Municipal 
Manager, Dir.: 
Strategic 
Planning, Dir.: 
Corporate 
service, Dir.: 
Community 
Services and 
CFO. 

N/A N/A 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To provide 
municipal 
strategic 
planning. 

Number of Quarterly 
reports Developed 
And Submitted. 

4 Quarterly 
reports 
developed by 
June 2013. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N
o

n
e 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  4 Quarterly 
reports 
developed and 
submitted to 
Council dlgta & 
IA. 

N/A N/A 
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Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 To provide 
municipal 
strategic 
planning. 

2011/2012 Annual 
performance report 
developed and 
adopted. (sec 46) 

Approved 
2011/12 
annual 
performance 
report by 
Council by 
August 2012. 

  

N
o

n
e 

 

    2011/2012 
Annual 
performance 
report 
developed. 

N/A N/A 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   

G
O

O
D

 

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
 

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

 

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 To provide 
municipal 
strategic 
planning. 

2012- 2013 mid-year 
performance report. 

Adopted 
report by 
2013/01/30 

  

N
o

n
e 

 

    2012- 2013 
mid-year 
performance 
report adopted. 

N/A N/A 

Operational B. J Makade   B. J Makade   
G

O
O

D
  

G
O

V
ER

N
A

N
C

E
  

A
N

D
 P

U
B

LI
C

  

P
A

R
TI

C
IP

A
TI

O
N

 

To table the 
Annual 
Report to 
comply with 
Section 121 
of the 
MFMA. 

2011/2012 Annual 
report tabled before 
council. 

Tabled 
2011/2012 
annual 
report before 
Council by 31 
January 
2013. 

  

N
o

n
e 

 

    2011/2012 
Annual report 
compiled, 
tabled and 
adopted by the 
council. 

N/A N/A 
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ADMINISTRATION  
Project ID. Supervisor Responsibl

e Person 
Key 
Performance 
Area (KPA) 

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI) 

Annual Target Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base Line Budget  Expenditure Actual 
Performan
ce  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

                              

Operational  M.Nzimankul
u 

J. Bhabha 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 

an
d

 in
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 d
ev

e
lo

p
m

en
t To ensure good 

governance 
through 
institutional 
transformation, 
intergovernmenta
l co-operation and 
to ensure 
accountability. 

Effective 
functioning of 
council measured 
in terms of the 
number of council 
meetings per 
annum. 

6 meetings held 
by June 2013. 

It
 w

as
 r

es
o

lv
ed

 a
t 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l t

h
at

 c
o

u
n

ci
l s

it
ti

n
gs

 w
ill

 b
e

 

 B
i-

m
o

n
th

ly
. 

4 meetings NA NA 6 Ordinary 
and 8 
special 
Council 
sitting in 
the first 
quarter 

None None Council 
Minutes and 
Resolutions 4 meetings 

4 meetings 

3 meetings 

Operational  M.Nzimankul
u 

J. Bhabha 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 

an
d

 in
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 d
ev

e
lo

p
m

en
t 

To ensure good 
governance 
through 
institutional 
transformation , 
intergovernmenta
l co-operation and 
to ensure 
accountability 

Effective 
functioning of 
committee 
management unit 
measured in 
terms of the 
number of 
committee 
meetings per 
annum. 

36 meetings 
held by June 
2013. 

C
o

u
n

ci
l r

es
o

lv
ed

 t
o

 h
o

ld
 

O
rd

in
ar

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l m
ee

ti
n

g 
o

n
ce

 in
 t

w
o

 

m
o

n
th

s.
 

12 
meetings 

NA 25 
Portfolio 
Committe
e meetings 
held 

None None Council 
Minutes and 
Resolutions 12 

meetings 

12 
meetings 

12 
meetings 

Operational  M.Nzimankul
u 

A.Mopedi 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 in
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To have a fully 
functional records 
management. 

 Fully functional 
records 
management as 
per RMA 56 of 
1996. 

A fully 
functional 
records 
management 
by June 2013. 

n
o

n
e 

 

Consolidat
ion of all 
records. 

N.A there is 
paper 
based 
record 
managem
ent that 
functions 

there is lack 
of human 
resources 
and there is 
no electronic 
filing system 

to recruit 
adequate 
staff and 
implement 
electronic 
filing system 

manual filing 
system, 
record 
register Filing and 

numbering
. 

Destructio
n of all 
files due 
for 
destructio
n 

  

Operational  M.Nzimankul
u 

A.Mopedi 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 

o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 

an
d

 

in
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t To have a fully 

functional registry 
managed. 

Fully functional 
registry 
management as 
regulated. 

A fully 
functional 
registry 
management 
by June 2013. 

n
o

n
e 

 

      Systems 
are 
developed 
in registry 
and the 

Shortage of 
staff and 
untrained 
stakeholders 

Filing of 
posts and 
training of 
stakeholders 

Records 
Management 
Policy and 
the file plan 
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  registry is 
upgraded 
for 
security 
purposes 
 
 
 
 

Operational  M.Nzimankul
u 

A.Mopedi 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 

o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 

in
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Adopted records 
management 
system. 

Development and 
implementation 
of records 
management 
policy 

Developed 
records 
management 
policy by 
December 
2012. 

n
o

n
e 

 

  N.A N.A Policy 
Developed 

N.A N.A Record 
Management 
Policy   

  

  

Project ID. Supervisor Responsibl
e Person 

Key 
Performance 
Area (KPA) 

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI) 

Annual Target Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base Line Budget  Expenditure Actual 
Performan
ce  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operational  M.Nzimankul
u 

M.Nziman
kulu 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 

in
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Development and 
implementation 
of management of 
information  

Develop and 
implement access 
to information 
policy. 

Adopted access 
to information 
policy by 
December 
2012. 

D
ra

ft
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 

M
an

u
al

 

Adopted 
manual. 

     Access to 
informatio
n Manual 
has been 
finalized 

The Manual 
must be 
translated 
into 
Setswana 
and Afrikaans 
before it can 
be adopted. 

send the 
manual for 
translation 

Copy of draft 
access to 
information 
Manual 

 

3 

4 

Operational  M.Nzimankul
u 

M.Nziman
kulu 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 

an
d

 in
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

To ensure that all 
reports on by-
laws are reported 
to Council. 

Number of all 
reports submitted 
to Council. 

Submission of 
by-laws by 
Council by June 
2013. 

n
o

n
e 

 

Develop 
by-laws. 

    By-laws 
have been 
revised ,  
updated 
and 
adopted 

not yet 
implemented 
because of 
shortage of 
staff 

to appoint 
relevant staff 
members 

Council 
Minutes and 
Resolution Public 

Comments
. 

Adoption 
by Council 

4 

Operational  M.Nzimankul
u 

M.Nziman
kulu 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 

o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
 

an
d

  

in
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t To ensure good 

governance 
through 
institutional 

Revised by-laws to 
ensure effective 
and up-to date by-
laws. 

Number of 
revised by-laws 
submitted to 
Council by June 

  

1     By-laws 
have been 
revised 
and By - 

None None copies of By-
Laws 
 
 

2 

3 
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transformation, 
intergovernmenta
l-al co-operation 
and to ensure 
accountability. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2013.  4 laws 
updated 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

MUNICIPAL TRANSFORMATION AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT   

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
Project ID. Supervisor Res Person Key 

Performance 
Area (KPA) 

Objectives Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI) 

Annual Target Revised   
Annual 
Target 

Base Line Budget Expenditure Actual 
Performan
ce 

Reason for 
Deviation 

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operational.  M. Human. F.I. Kole. Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Compilation of 
the Draft 
Workplace Skills 
Plan and Annual 
Training Report. 

Draft documents 
(WSP) (ATR) by 31 
May 2013. 

Draft WSP and 
ATR by 31 May 
2013. 

  Draft WSP 
& ATR 
2012. 

N.A. N.A. Draft WSP 
and ATR 
compiled 
by 31 May 
2013. 

N.A. N.A. Draft WSP 
and ATR. 

Operational.  M. Human. F.I. Kole. Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Draft WSP and 
ATR to be 
submitted to 
Council. 

Date for the 
Submission of the 
Work Place Skills 
Plan to Council. 

Submission of 
WSP and ATR to 
Council by 31 
May 2013. 

  Report 
submitted 
to Council 
on the 
24th of 
July 2012. 

N.A. N.A. The report 
was 
submitted 
to Council 
on the 
30th of 
July 2013. 

The report is 
due for 
submission 
to LGSETA on 
the 30th of 
June 2013. 
The report 
was only 
completed 
during the 
last week of 
June 2013 as 
a result of 
tight 
schedules of 
some key 
participants 

The 
compilation 
process to be 
fast tracked. 
A draft to be 
ready by the 
end of April 
for 
submission 
to Council by 
the end of 
May. Annual 
Targets to be 
revised in the 
SDBIP for 
2013/2014. 
MM to 
intervene 
with 
stakeholders 
not 
participating.  

Report to 
Council and 
Council 
Resolution. 
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Operational. M. Human. F.I. Kole. Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Submission of 
WSP/ATR to 
LGSETA. 

Date for the 
Submission of the 
Work Place Skills 
Plan to LGSETA. 

Submission of 
WSP/ATR to 
LGSETA by 30 
June 2013. 

  30-Jun-12 N.A. N.A. The 
reports 
was 
submitted 
to LGSETA 
on the 
28th of 
June 2013. 

N.A. N.A. Acknowledge
ment of 
Receipt by 
LGSETA. 

 
Operational.  M. Human. F.I. Kole. Municipal 

organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Training attended 
in terms of the 
Skills 
Development 
Plan. 

Percentage 
Compliance to 
targets in Skills 
Development 
Plan. 

100% Training 
attendance by 
30 June 2013. 

  23%  R 250 
000.00                                       
R 250 
000.00  

R 109 671.50 50% Lack of Cash 
Flow. Funds 
are utilized 
for training, 
but the said 
programmes 
is not 
included in 
the Skills 
Development 
Plan of 
Council and 
therefore the 
percentage 
on training 
attendance 
reflects to be 
low. 

The matter 
to be 
reported to 
the MM for 
intervention 
- Reported.  

Monthly 
report / 
Annual 
Training 
Report  

Operational.  M. Human. F.I. Kole. Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Review the 
Composition of 
the Training 
Committee. 

Date for 
submission of 
report to Council 
on the review. 

Submitted 
reports to 
Council by 30 
September 
2012. 

  None  N.A. N.A. Compositi
on of the 
Training 
Committe
e not 
reviewed. 

Budget 
Constraints 

Revenue 
Enhancemen
t 

Skills 
Development 
Policy. 

Operational.  M. Human. F.I. Kole. Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

All Training 
Committee 
Members to be 
appointed 

Date of letters to 
appointed 
members. 

Appointed 
members of the 
committee by 
30 October 
2012. 

  None  N.A. N.A. Members 
appointed 
in terms of 
the 
current 
(standing) 
Skills 
Developm
ent Policy. 

The review of 
the 
composition 
of the 
committee is 
subject to 
the review of 
the Skills 
Development 
Policy.  

Policy to be 
reviewed in 
2013/2014 

Council 
Resolution/ 
Policy 
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Operational. M. Human. F.I. Kole. Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Functional 
Training 
Committee.  

First meeting by 
31 July 2012. 

Fully functional 
training 
committee by 
31 July 2012.                                       
4 meetings. 

  None  N.A. N.A. 3 
Meetings 
arranged, 
but not 
attended 
by 
members. 

Lack of 
commitment 
from 
members. 

The matter 
to be 
reported to 
the MM for 
intervention 
- Reported.  

Invitation to 
the 
Meetings. 

Operational.  M. Human. F.I. Kole. Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Submission of 
Quarterly Reports 
to LGSETA and 
COGTA. 

Number of 
Reports to 
LGSETA/COGTA 

4 Quarterly 
Reports.  

  4 N.A. N.A. 4 N.A. N.A. Copies of 
reports. 

Operational.  M. Human. F.I. Kole. Municipal 
organisational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Review of the 
Skills 
Development 
Policy. 

Date for   
Submission of the 
Draft Skills 
Development 
Policy to Council. 

Submitted 
policy to 
Council by 31 
August 2012. 

  None  N.A. N.A. Policy not 
reviewed. 

Training 
Committee 
not 
functional. 

Planning to 
Review the 
Policy in 
2013/2014. 

  

Operational  M. Human F. Chauke Municipal 
organisational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Functional OHS 
Committee 

Number of 
Occupational 
Health and Safety 
Committee 
Meetings held 

12 meetings 
held by June 
2013. 

  None  N.A. N.A. 8 meetings Poor 
attendance 
of the 
members. 

N
o

n
e

 

Minutes of 
the 
Meetings. 

Operational  M.Human F. Chauke Municipal 
organisational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Training for OHS 
Committee 
members 

Attendance 
register and 
certificates issued 

Number of 
trained OHS 
committee 
members by 30 
September 
2012. 

  None  Inculded in 
the 
Training 
Budget 

 R 35 000.00  14 
Members 
trained by 
30 
September 
2012. 

N.A. N.A. Certificates. 

Operational  M.Human F. Chauke Municipal 
organisational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Development of 
an OHS 
Evacuation Plan 

Date for   
Submission of the 
Draft OHS 
Evacuation Plan to 
Council 

Submitted Draft 
Evacuation plan 
to Council by 31 
August 2012. 

  None  N.A. N.A. Evacuation 
Plan not 
developed
. 

No access 
control. 

Service 
Provider to 
be appointed 
and/or 
Security 
Services/Acc
ess Control 
Strategy to 
be put in 
place before 
an 
Evacuation 
Plan can be 
developed..  
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Operational. L.D. 
Mcameni. 

M. 
Human. 

Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Submission of 
Employment 
Equity Reports to 
the DOL. 

Date for the 
Submission of the 
Employment 
Equity (EE) 
Reports to the 
Department of 
Labour (DoL). 

Submitted EE 
Reports to DOL 
by 31 October 
2012. 

Manual 
submissions 
to the DOL 
by 31 
October 
2012. 
Electronic 
submissions 
to the DOL 
by 16 
January 
2013. 

06-Jan-12 N.A. N.A. Reports 
submitted 
electronica
lly to the 
DOL on 
the 14th of 
January 
2013.  

The DOL 
allows for 
electronic 
submissions 
up to the 
16th of 
January 
2013.  

N.A. Employment 
Equity 
Reports 31 
August 2012. 
Acknowledge
ment letter 
of receipt 
from the 
DOL. 

Operational  L.D. 
Mcameni 

M. Human Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Submission of 
Employment 
Equity Reports to 
Council 

Date for the 
Submission of EE 
Reports to Council 

Submitted EE 
Reports to 
Council by 31 
January 2013. 

  Report 
submitted 
to Council 
on 30 
January 
and 29 
February 
2012. 

N.A. N.A. Report 
submitted 
to council 
on the 
13th of 
June 2013. 

No ordinary 
council 
meetings 
held. 

  Report to 
Council and 
Council 
Resolution.  

Operational  L.D. 
Mcameni 

M. Human Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Functional 
Employment 
Equity Forum 

Number of EE 
Forum Meetings 
held 

4 EE forums 
held by June 
2013 

  0 N.A. N.A. 2 Lack of Staff. To review 
the structure 
of HR. 

Minutes of 
the 
Meetings. 

Operational  L.D. 
Mcameni 

M. Human Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Quarterly Reports 
to Council on 
compliance to EE 
Plan 

Number of  
Reports to Council 

4 Quarterly 
Reports 
submitted to 
Council by June 
2013. 

  0 N.A. N.A. No reports 
submitted 
to Council.  

The 
Employment 
Equity Forum 
must be 
functional 
and an 
Employment 
Equity Plan 
must be in 
place in 
order to 
monitor the 
implementati
on of the 
Employment 
Equity Plan. 
The forum 
has only 
commenced 
with planning 
of an 
Employment 
Equity Plan 
for the next 
five years in 
December 

Reports to be 
submitted to 
Council once 
the forum is 
fully 
functional. 
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2012. Lack of 
staff. 

Operational  L.D. 
Mcameni 

M. Human Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Functional LLF Number of LLF 
Meetings held 

12 LLF meetings 
to be held by 
June 2013. 

  2 N.A. N.A. 4 Meetings 
was 
subjected to 
conclusion of 
the 
Placement 
Process. 

N.A. Minutes of 
the 
Meetings. 

Operational  L.D. 
Mcameni 

M. Human Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Submission of 
Departmental 
Monthly Reports 
to Council 

Number of 
reports to Council 

12 reports to be 
submitted to 
Council by June 
2013. 

  12 N.A. N.A. 12 N.A. N.A. Reports to 
Council/Coun
cil Resolution 

Operational  L.D. 
Mcameni 

M. Human Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Development of a 
Retention Policy  

Date for the  
submission of the 
Draft Retention 
Policy to Council 

Submitted Draft 
Retention 
Policy to 
Council by 31 
December 
2012. 

  None. N.A. N.A. No policy 
developed
. 

Lack of Staff. Review 
structure of 
HR. Fill 
Vacancies. 

  

Operational  L.D. 
Mcameni 

M. Human Municipal 
organizational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Development of a 
HIV/Aids Policy 

Date for the  
submission of the 
Draft HIV/Aids 
Policy to Council 

Submitted 
HIV/AIDS policy 
to council by 
December 
2012. 

  None. N.A. N.A. No policy 
developed
. 

Lack of Staff. Review 
structure of 
HR. Fill 
Vacancies. 

  

Operational  L.D. 
Mcameni 

M. Human Municipal 
organisational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

Establishment of 
an Employee 
Wellness 
Programme  

Date for the  
submission of the 
Employee 
Wellness 
Programme to 
Council 

Approved EWP 
by Council by 
December 
2012. 

2013-2014 
Financial 
Year 

None. N.A. N.A. No EWP 
developed
. 

No budget 
provision. 

Budget 
provision. 

  

Operational  L.D. 
Mcameni 

M. Human Municipal 
organisational 
and 
institutional 
development. 

To fill 3 
Vacant/Critical 
positions on Top 
Management 
Level by 30 
September 2012 

Number of filled 
positions by 30 
September 2012 

3 positions 
filled by 30 
September 
2012. 

  None. N.A. N.A. 3 N.A. N.A. Appointment 
letters 
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DIRECTORATE FINANCE 
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal 

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Supply chain 
Management 

To
 e

n
su

re
 f

in
an

ci
al

 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 in

st
it

u
ti

o
n

al
 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

an
d

 t
ra

n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
 

Implement
ation of the 
existing 
SCM policy                         

Quarterly 
Reports 
submitted to 
council  

Quarterly 
Reports 
submitted 
to council 
by June 
2013                                                           

  

4
 R

ep
o

rt
s 

su
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 
co

u
n

ci
l 

  R5,104,785.0
8 
R1,330,789.9
8 

4 SCM 
reports 
submitted to 
council, 
provincial and 
National 
treasury                         

none  none  acknowledg
ement 
letter and 
council 
resolution 

Operati
onal 

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Supply chain 
Management 

  0% of tenders                                                   
awarded to 
BEE 
companies 

70% of 
tenders 
awarded to 
BEE 
companies 
2013 

  40%     Tenders are 
awarded to 
BEE 
companies 
for more than 
70& 
contractors         

none  None Quarterly 
reports 

Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal 

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Supply Chain 
Management 

To
 e

n
su

re
 f

in
an

ci
al

 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 in

st
it

u
ti

o
n

al
 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

an
d

 

tr
an

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

 

  % of request 
for quotation 
awarded to 
BEE 

50% of RFQ 
awarded to 
BEE 
companies 
by June 
2013 

  

2
0

%
 

    Quotations 
awarded to 
BBE Company 
for than 50% 
off the 
purchases 

none   none  Quarterly 
reports 

Operati
onal 

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Supply Chain 
Management 

In
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

an
d

 
Tr

an
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
 To manage 

and 
monitor  
contract 
timeously 

To develop a 
functional 
contract 
management 
plan 

Monitoring 
the 
Expenditur
e registry 
and the 
renewal of 
all 

  
N

o
 c

o
n

tr
ac

t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

p
la

n
     contract 

register in 
place 

  The 
contract 
manageme
nt plan 
must be 
developed 
and need 

copy of 
contract 
register 
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contracts 
by June 
2013 

to be 
monitored. 
(administra
tion or 
SCM) 

Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal 

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Supply Chain 
Management 

    Supply chain 
Management 
procedure 
manual 

Approved 
supply 
chain 
Procedure 
manual by 
June 2013 

  

N
o

 S
u

p
p

ly
 C

h
ai

n
 

P
ro

cu
re

 M
an

u
al

     Finalized 
procedure 
manuals  

none  None copy of 
procedure 
manuals 

Operati
onal 

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Supply Chain 
Management 

    Validity of bid 
does not 
exceed time 
frame 

Bids to be 
awarded 
within the 
time frame 
by June 
2013 

        all bids 
advertised 
awarded 
within time 
frame 

none  None Memo, 
report 

Weekly 
sittings for  all 
bid 
committees 

All bids to 
be 
evaluated 
and 
adjudicated 
within time 
frames by 
June 2013 

        Effective 
evaluation 
meetings 
took place 
from March-
June 2013 

No quorum 
for meetings 
to continue 

  Minutes, 
attendance 
register 
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REVENUE MANAGEMENT 
Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure  Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal 

M De Villiers Revenue 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 

Data 
Cleansing 

Accurate 
information 
on accounts  

Accurate 
information 
on 
accounts by 
31 August 
2012 

  

D
is

cr
ep

an
ci

es
 o

n
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 

    No data 
cleansing 
done 

Personnel 
with access to 
account 
masters have 
limited time 
to do data 
cleansing 

 the 
projects to 
overall to 
the next 
financial 
year 

  

Personnel 
with access to 
accounts 
masters have 
limited time 
to do data 
cleansing 

Intern is 
currently 
delegated 
to assist 
with 
correction 
of 
supplemen
tary 
valuation 
roll 

Appointme
nt letter 

Personnel 
with access to 
accounts 
masters have 
limited time 
to do data 
cleansing 

Intern and 
indigent 
officer are 
currently 
delegated 
to assist 
with 
correction 
of 
supplemen
tary 
valuation 
roll 
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Operati
onal 

M De Villiers Revenue 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Implement
ation of 
policies 

All budget 
related 
policies 
implemented. 
Tariffs, 
Indigent, 
Credit and 
debt 
collection 
policy. 

All policies 
be 
implement
ed by 30 
June 2013 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
o

lic
ie

s 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d

 

    11 budget 
related 
policies and 2 
by laws 
reviewed and 
implemented 

None None copies of 
the policies 

Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal 

M De Villiers Revenue 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Establishm
ent of 
Credit 
control 
Section 

Officials 
allocated to 
deal with 
credit control 
matters 

Established 
credit 
control 
section by 
31st August 
2012 

  

N
o

 c
re

d
it

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

it
y 

    Reviewed 
organogram 
for credit 
control 
section but 
an intern 
placed to 
provide 
service for 
collection 

The current 
structure 
need to be 
reviewed to 
include a 
section for 
credit control 

Structure is 
currently 
under 
review 

letters and 
Monthly 
report 

The structure 
is currently 
under review 

Two interns 
are 
currently 
doing debt 
collection 
and credit 
control 

appointme
nt letter 

  Officials in 
the 
revenue 
reviewed 
structure 
will be 
appointed 
before end 
of 
September 
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Operati
onal 

M De Villiers Revenue 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Increase 
payment 
level of 
services 

Increase 
payment 
level of 
services up to 
70% on 
current 
account 

70% 
payment 
level 
maintained 
by June 
2013 

  

5
8

%
 p

ay
m

en
t 

le
ve

l 

    67,5 payment 
of level 
maintained 

No electricity 
cuts are 
currently 
performed - 
Nungu 
contract on 
hold 

Do internal 
collections 
and 
electricity 
cuts 

quarterly 
reports 

  Debt 
collection 
and credit 
control are 
done in-
house 
 
 

  

Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

discrep
ancies 
on 
accoun
t 

Budget  Expenditure Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal 

M De Villiers Revenue 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Registratio
n of 
indigent 
consumers 
and 
providing 
subsidies 

All indigent 
household 
within 
Ventersdorp 
registered as 
indigent 

Registered 
qualified 
indigent 
households 
by June 201 

  

N
o

t 
al

l h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s 

ar
e 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 a

s 
in

d
ig

en
t 

    More than 
2500 
indigents 
registered 
after 
provision of 
alternative 
energy was 
provided to 
indigent 
households 
on June  

Political role 
players did 
not approve 
indigent 
applications 
yet 

Roll-out of 
free 
alternative 
energy 
increased 
the number 
of indigents 

  

Operati
onal 

M De Villiers Revenue 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Implement
ation of 
Supplemen
tary 
valuation 
Roll 

Changes in 
the Valuation 
roll be done 
in order to be 
Valuation roll 
with the 
Venus system 

Implement
ed 
valuation 
roll by 30 
June 2013 

  

V
ar

ia
n

ce
 o

n
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

V
al

u
at

io
n

 r
o

ll 
an

d
 t

h
e

 
V

en
u

s 
Sy

st
em

 

    Service 
provider is 
appointed 
and starting 
with 
valuation roll 
from 1 July 
2013 

  Submission 
of valuation 
roll 
Expenditur
e in 
December 
2013 
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Operati
onal 

M De Villiers Revenue 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 

Reduction 
of debtors 
over 60-90 
Day 

Reduction of 
Debtors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Redacted 
debtors by 
30 June 
2013 

  

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 D

eb
to

rs
 

    Debtors book 
actually 
increased to 
R48 million 
due to lack of 
appointment 
of permanent 
officials 

No collection 
process in 
place 

Letter were 
send to all 
debtors 
higher than 
R10 000 & 
R20 000 

  

Issuing of 
letters is 
happening 
slowly but 
efforts are 
made to 
fast-track 
the process 

Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal 

M De Villiers Revenue 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Issuing of 
clearance 
on time 

Timeous 
issuing of 
clearances. 

Timeous 
issuing of 
clearances 
by 30 June 
2013 

  

M
in

o
r 

d
el

ay
s 

o
n

 

ac
co

u
n

ts
 t

h
at

 a
re

 in
 

ar
re

ar
s 

    Clearance 
certificates 
issued on 
time 

      

Operati
onal 

M De Villiers Revenue 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Records 
Manageme
nt 

All records 
kept for audit 
purpose 

All records 
kept for 
audit 
purpose by 
30 June 
2013 

  

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 m
is

si
n

g 
d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

 

    Payment 
vouchers and 
other 
financial 
records are 
kept safely 
and properly 
for audit 

  Records of 
financial 
transaction 
are kept 
properly 
for audit 
purposes 
and future 
use 
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EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT 
Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal 

E Hall Expenditure 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 

Monthly 
reporting 
preparation 
to 
committees 
& council 

Reports 
completed & 
submitted by 
10th of each 
month 

12 reports 
submitted 
to council 
by June 
2013 

  

A
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

re
p

o
rt

s 
to

 p
re

p
ar

e
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12 
Expenditure 
reports 
submitted to 
council, 
provincial and 
national 
treasury 

      

Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure  Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal 

E Hall Expenditure 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

Bank 
reconciliati
on 

Bank recons 
completed by 
the 10th of 
each month 

12 bank 
recons 
submitted 
to council 
by June 
2013 

  

Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
re

co
n

ci
lia

ti
o

n
 

to
 p

re
p

ar
e

 

    12 Bank 
recons 
completed 
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Operati
onal 

E Hall Expenditure 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 m
an

ag
em

en
t Financial 

system: 
Updating of 
daily 
transaction
s 

Daily updates 
of invoices & 
payments 

260 
transaction
s by June 
2013 

  

A
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

d
ai

ly
 

u
p

d
at

es
 

    System gets 
updated daily 
when day-
end is done 

      

Operati
onal 

E Hall Expenditure 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

Financial 
system: 
Month-
ends 

Month-ends 
to be 
performed 
before 10th 
of each 
month 

12 reports 
submitted 
to Council 
by June 
2013 

  

A
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

m
o

n
th

-e
n

d
s 

to
 

p
er

fo
rm

 

    12 Month-
ends 
performed in 
time for 
generation of 
reports to be 
on time 

      

Operati
onal 

E Hall Expenditure 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 

Timeous 
payment of 
invoices 

Payment 
within 
300days from 
date of 
invoice/state
ment 

100% 
payment of 
invoices by 
30 June 
2013 

  

%
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d

 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

85% of 
creditors are 
paid within 
30 day 

  Processing 
of 
payments 
will be 
done in 
large 
volume in 
June 

  

Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal 

E Hall Expenditure 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

Timeous 
payment of 
salaries & 
Wages 

Payment by 
due date 
every month 
(on/before 
25th) 

12 
payments 
done by 
June 2013 

  

Q
u

an
ti

ty
 o

f 
sa

la
ri

es
 

ru
n

s/
p

ay
m

en
ts

 

    12 salary 
payments 
done on 24th 
of every 
month 
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Operati
onal 

E Hall Expenditure 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

Timely 
Third-party 
payments 

Third-party 
payments 
paid before 
month end 
and/or 7th of 
each month 

12 
payments 
done by 
June 2013 

  

Q
u

an
ti

ty
 t

h
ir

d
 p

ar
ty

 p
ay

m
en

ts
     12 third party 

payments 
done by 30 
June 

      

Operati
onal 

E Hall Expenditure
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 

Reconciliati
on of 
control 
votes & 
suspense 
accounts 

Reconciliation
s completed 
within 10 
working days 
after month-
end 

12 
reconciliati
ons done 
by 30 June 
2013 

  

Q
u

an
ti

ty
 o

f 
re

co
n

ci
lia

ti
o

n
s 

to
 p

re
p

ar
e

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  12 Control 
votes and 
suspense 
accounts up 
to date, 
except for the 
Salary control 
vote 

Salary 
department is 
under-staffed 

Position for 
salary clerk 
is 
advertised 
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Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal 

E Hall Expenditure 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 

Regular 
stock 
taking 

Stock to be 
taken 
quarterly 

4 stock 
taking done 
by June 
2013 

  

Q
u

an
ti

ty
 o

f 
st

o
ck

 

ta
ke

s 
to

 p
er

fo
rm

 

    3 stock 
counts 
performed 
during the 
year and the 
last stock 
count at 30 
June 

Stock count 
could not be 
performed 
due to staff 
attending 
Municipal 
sport Games 
during end of 
Sept 2012 

Stock count 
are 
scheduled 
for 10 
October 
2012 

  

                      Stock count 
was 
performed on 
17 Jan 2013 

    

Stock count 
was 
performed on 
17 Jan 2013 

    

Stock count 
was 
performed on 
28 Feb - 2 
March 2013 

    

Stock count 
performed at 
year end with 
AG 

    

Operati
onal 

E Hall Expenditure 
Management 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 v

ia
b

ili
ty

  

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

timely 
submission 
of vat21 

vat 201 
submitted 
every second 
month 

12 vat 201 
submitted 
by June 
2013 

  

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
va

t 
 

2
0

1
's

 t
o

 s
u

b
m

it
 

      12 vat 21 
monthly 
returns 
submitted to 
SARS 
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BUDGET AND TREASURY  
Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure  Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal  

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Budget and 
Treasury 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Commence
ment of 
proper 
planning 
for the next 
budget  

Schedule of 
Key Deadline 
with 31 
August  2012 

Approved 
Schedule 
deadline 
with 31 
August 
2012 

  

N
o

n
co

m
p

lia
n

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 s

ch
ed

u
le

 

    Key budget 
schedules 
report 
submitted to 
council 
provincial and 
national  
treasury 

      

Operati
onal  

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Budget and 
Treasury 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

commence
ment of 
proper 
planning 
for the next 
budget  

Approval of 
draft policies 
and final 
policies 
during March 
and May 

Approved 
Policies by 
June 2013 

  

p
o

lic
ie

s 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

n
n

u
al

ly
 

    11 budget 
related 
policies and 2 
by-laws 
submitted to 
council, 
provincial and 
national 
treasury 

      

Operati
onal  

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Budget and 
Treasury 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Submission 
of Budget 
Annual 
Budget 
returns 

Submitted 
Budget 
returns 

100% 
compliance 
on returns 
forms 

  

9
8

%
 o

f 
re

tu
rn

s 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 N

T
     12 

compliance 
reports 
submitted to 
council, 
provincial and 
treasury 

      

Operati
onal  

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Budget and 
Treasury 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Submission 
of section 
71 Reports 
to PT and 
NT 

12 Reports 
submitted 

All section 
71 reports 
to be 
submitted 
to PT and 
NT monthly 

  

R
ep

o
rt

s 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 P

T
 

an
d

 N
T 

    12 section 71 
reports 
submitted to 
council, 
provincial and 
treasury 
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Operati
onal  

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Budget and 
Treasury 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Submission 
of quarterly 
reports to 
council 

4 Quarterly 
reports 
submitted 

4 Quarterly 
reports to 
be 
submitted 
by June 
2013 

  

R
ep

o
rt

s 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 

to
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 

    4 Quarterly 
reports 
submitted to 
council, 
provincial and 
national 
treasury 

      

Operati
onal  

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Budget and 
Treasury 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 

Operational 
Budget 
Deficit 

No deficit in 
the 
2013/2014 
Budget 

Avoided 
deficit in 
the 
2013/2013 
budget 

  

D
ef

ic
it

 in
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

B
u

d
ge

t     The 
operational 
budget 
spending 
stand at 
99.35% of the 
budgeted at 
year end 

      

Operati
onal  

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Budget and 
Treasury 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Capital 
budget 
Deficit 

No deficit in 
the Capital 
Budget 

No deficit   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      The budgeted 
capital 
Expenditure 
spending 
stands at 72% 
at year end 
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Project 
ID. 

Supervisor Responsible 
Person 

Key 
Performanc
e Area 
(KPA) 

Objectives Key 
Performance 
Indicators 
(KPI) 

Annual 
Target 

Annual 
Revised 
Target 

Base 
Line 

Budget  Expenditure  Actual  
Annual 
Performance  

Reason for 
Deviation/Ch
allenges  

Planned 
Remedial 
Action 

Portfolio of 
Evidence 

Operati
onal  

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Budget and 
Treasury 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Maintainin
g of 30% 
salary bill 
over the 
Expenditur
e  

30% salary 
bill by June 
2013 

30% salary 
bill by June 
2013 

        33% of the 
budget was 
achieved 

      

 
Operati
onal  

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Budget and 
Treasury 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

10% of the 
operating 
Expenditur
e to be 
allocated to 
Repairs and 
Maintenan
ce of Assets 

10% 
maintenance 
Expenditure 
budget 

10% 
maintenanc
e 
Expenditur
e by June 
2013 

        8,35% of total 
budget set 
aside for 
maintenance 
and repairs 

  The 10% 
repairs and 
maintenanc
e budget 
will achieve 
in 

  

Operati
onal  

CWK 
KGOSIEMANG 

Budget and 
Treasury 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 V

ia
b

ili
ty

 

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Asset 
Manageme
nt 

GRAP Asset 
Register 

Unbundling 
of all 
infrastructu
re Assets 
by June 
2013 

  

N
o

 G
R

A
P

 A
ss

et
 R

eg
is

te
r 

    GRAP Asset 
register 
compiled and 
reconciled to 
the ledger 

  PT is 
assisting in 
unbundling 
of assets 
and 
compilation 
of a GRAP 
Asset 
register 

  

GRAP 
compliant 
asset 
register 
completed 
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3.8 REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE ON THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OFVENTERSDORP LOCAL MUNICIPALIY (“VLM”) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013 
 
The Audit and Risk Committee (“the Committee”) is pleased to present its report for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2013.  
 
Committee Composition 
 
The Committee is established in accordance with the prescripts of the MFMA No 56 of 2003, 
section 166. The Committee comprised of 3 (three) independent members at 30 June 2013, 
who were neither in the employ of the municipality nor any of its entities.  In addition, no 
members are political office bearers. 
 
Number of Meetings held during the financial year 
 

Member No of Scheduled Meetings No of Meetings Attended 

R Kenosi 6 6 

R Visser 6 6 

I Motala 6 5 

 
Roles and Responsibilities 
 
The Committee conducted its affairs in accordance with its mandate as set out in its Charter and 
executed its responsibilities in terms of its statutory duties and the requirements of King III. 
 
Internal Audit 
 
The Internal Audit Activity (“the IAA”) under the direction of the Chief Audit Executive continues 
to provide assurance to the Committee on the internal controls within the VLM.  During the 
period under review numerous projects were undertaken, the results of which were presented to 
the Committee.  The implementation on corrective action on internal control weaknesses 
identified remains ineffective, due to little or no follow up having been performed by 
management.  This is mainly attributable to capacity constraints. 
 
In the year to follow, the Committee will continue to monitor progress on implementation to 
ensure that internal controls are effectively and efficiently monitored and reviewed. 
 
Performance Management  
 
Performance Management reporting at the VLM has improved in the period under review but 
still requires effective on-going monitoring. 
 
Risk Management 
 
In the latter part of the year a risk assessment was performed.  The Committee will perform 
oversight on the management of risks in the new financial year. 
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Compliance with legislation 
 
Compliance with the MFMA and other applicable legislation remains an area that needs to 
be monitored closely by management and as a result an area of concern for the Committee. 
 
Internal Controls 
 
The Committee reviewed the internal controls systems of the VLM on an ongoing basis 
throughout the year and remains concerned that corrective action is not implemented timely 
and/or at all, mainly as a result of capacity constraints and a lack of effective leadership.  
   
Financial Reporting 
 
We remain concerned that financial reporting is a challenge mainly due to the lack of 
adequate financial skills and competencies.  This risk however was curtailed by the 
intervention of Provincial Treasury during the period under review.  The committee is 
however of the view that the municipality needs to appoint staff with the required 
competence and expertise. 
 
 
Conclusion 
 
The Committee concurs with the disclaimer audit opinion of the Auditor General South 
Africa.  Despite the intervention by Provincial Treasury and additional controls implemented 
during the period under review these were insufficient to yield a positive impact on the 
results of the audit.  We thus recommend that management ensures that for the 2013/14 
financial year corrective actions are implemented on a consistent basis and evaluation and 
monitoring is performed on an on-going basis to improve the internal control environment 
which will result in an improved audit opinion.  
 
 
___________________________________ 
R. A Kenosi 
Chairperson: Audit and Risk Committee 
Ventersdorp Local Municipality  
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Chapter 4 
 
CHAPTER 4 – ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE (PERFORMANCE REPORT 
PART 11) 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The Ventersdorp Local Municipality attempts:- 
 
To ensure good corporate governance and public participation 
To ensure the provision of Infrastructure development and Service delivery 
To promote local economic development 
To ensure municipal transformation and organizational development 

 
Perform strategic development related activities to determine productivity 
Perform client and Public service functions to ensure proper communication 
Interacts with the both public and private sector departments and institutions/persons to ensure that 
the execution of the post’s responsibilities is met. 
 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 

The PMS Framework Policy was adopted by Council.  The appointed Accounting Officer and section 

56/7 managers signed their Performance Agreement.  SDBIP and all quarterly reports were adopted 

by Council. 

 

 
 
The Ventersdorp Local Municipality Structure is as follows:- 
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MUNICIPAL TRANSFORMATION & ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
COUNCIL 
 
Ventersdorp Local Municipality has 12 Councillors.  The term of office for a Councillor is five years 
and ends when the next Council is declared elected.  Councillors are accountable to local 
communities and must report back at least quarterly to constituencies on Council matters, including 
the performance of the municipality in terms of the established indicators.    
 
 
 

 
 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
 

The table below reflects the Approved, Filled and Vacant Posts per department as at 30 June 2013. 

 

Department Approved Posts Filled Posts Vacant Posts 

Office of the Mayor 10 9 1 

Office of the Municipal Manager 3 2 1 

Corporate Services 25 22 3 

Financial Services 32 23 9 

Engineering Services  87 53 34 

Community Services 57 31 26 

Strategic Planning and LED 10 7 3 

Total 224 147 77 

  66% 34% 

 

Vacant 
(36%)

Filled 
(64%)

30 June 2012                                         
Total Number of Positions (224)

Vacant
34%Filled

66%

30 June 2013
Total Number of Positions (224) 
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The filled positions represent 66% and the vacant positions 34% of the total approved posts for the 

2012/2013 Financial Year in comparison with the 64% for filled positions and 36% for vacant positions 

for the 2011/2012 Financial Year. 

COMPETENCY LEVELS OF MUNICIPAL MANAGER AND SECTION 57 MANAGERS 
 

NAME OF 
MANAGER 

DEPARTMENT 
CONTRACT 

ENTRY DATE 
CONTRACT 
END DATE 

QUALIFICATIONS 
RACE & 
GENDER 

B.J. Makade  Municipal Manager 2011/11/03 2016/11/02 Masters in Development and 
Management 
BA Honours in Development and 
Management 
CPMD  

African 
Male 

L.D. Mcameni  Director Corporate Services 2012/08/01 2017/07/31 Degree of Bachelor of Social  
Science 

African 
Male 

M.I. Moruti  Director Financial Services 2013/01/01 2018/12/31 B. Com Degree 
Leadership 

African 
Male 

S.A. Sidu  Director Strategic Planning and 
LED 

2012/07/09 2017/07/08 Degree of Bachelor of Science African 
Male 

B.M.B. Mosepele  
 

Director Community Services 2008/09/18 2013/09/18 Masters in Arts 
CPMD 
HONS (Governance and 
Management) 

African 
Female 

O.G. Moremedi Director Engineering Services 2008/09/01 2013/09/01 Diploma in Survey African 
Male 

 
COMMENT ON COMPETENCY LEVELS 
 
An Accredited Service Provider has been appointed in making sure that Directors, Managers and 
DTO Officials start with necessary training in order to meet the necessary competency levels. 
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INTRODUCTION TO THE MUNICIPAL PERSONNEL 

 
4.1 EMPLOYEE TOTALS, TURNOVER AND VACANCIES 
 
Ventersdorp Local Municipality reflected a total staff complement of 176 employees (146 Permanent 
Employees + 19 Employees that still needs to be placed + 11 temporary employees) as on 30 June 
2013. 
 
EMPLOYMENT EQUITY PROFILE 
 
The municipality is held accountable in respect of the National Key Performance Indicators for an 
Employment Equity Plan. 
 

The table below reflects the breakdown of Staff per Occupational Levels and Gender as at 31 
August 2013 

 

Occupational 
Levels 

 
Male 

 
Female 

 
Foreign Nationals 

Total 

A C I W A C I W Male Female 

Top management 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 6 

Senior management 2 0 0 1 2 0 0 3 0 0 8 

Professionally qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management 

12 2 0 1 5 0 1 3 0 0 24 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior 
management, supervisors, 
foremen, and 
superintendents 

13 1 0 0 9 3 0 3 0 0 29 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making 

23 0 0 0 12 0 0 1 0 0 36 

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 

43 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 44 

TOTAL PERMANENT 98 4 0 2 29 3 1 10 0 0 147 

Temporary employees 15 0 0 2 11 1 0 0 0 0 29 

GRAND TOTAL 113 4 0 4 40 4 1 10 0 0 176 

 
 
The table below reflects the Employment Equity Targets for the Financial Year 2012/2013. 

 
Description African Coloured Indian White Male Female Disability 

Target 145 8 4 22 117 62 3 

Actual 127 5 1 13 100 46 2 
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 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 

 
The municipality is held accountable in respect of the National Key Performance Indicators for the 
implementation of a Workplace Skills Plan and the following training has been provided to improve 
Skills Development. 

 
The table below reflects Training attended by Staff and Councillors for the Financial Year 
2012/2013. 

Course attended African Coloured Indian White Male Female Councillor Official 

Municipal Finance 
Management 

5 0 0 1 3 3 0 6 

Job Analysis, 
Recruitment & 
Selection (SALGA) 

4 0 0 0 4 0 1 3 

Budgeting, 
Procurement & 
Asset management 

2 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 

UIF Electronic filing 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 

Misconduct 
Investigation & 
Report writing 

4 0 0 0 3 3 1 5 

Conducting 
Performance 
Management (PMS)  

1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 

Local Government 
Advance 
Accounting 
Certificate (LGAAC) 

4 0 0 0 2 2 0 4 

LGRC Basic 
Computer 
Training(DBSA) 

15 0 0 0 9 6 0 15 

Compliance on 
Employment 
Equity(SALGA) 

1 0 0 1 1 1 0 2 

Introduction to 
Waste Management 
Training programme 
(July 2012) 

1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 

Integrated Waste 
Management 
Training programme 
(July 2012) 

1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 

PMS Training 
(SALGA) 

2 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 

LLF Training 
(SALGBC) 

10 0 0 1 8 3 2 9 

MV/HV Cable 
Jointing and 
Termination 

1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 

Bid Committee 
Training 

8 0 0 0 4 4 0 8 

Payroll, SARS & 
Bank Recon 

0 0 0 2 0 2 0 2 

Pre-Trade test 
preparations 

2 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 

Microsoft Excel 
Training 

7 1 1 1 0 10 0 10 

Municipal Finance 
Management 

5 0 0 1 3 3 0 6 

Job Analysis, 
Recruitment & 
Selection (SALGA) 

4 0 0 0 4 0 1 3 

Budgeting, 
Procurement & 
Asset management 

2 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 

UIF Electronic filing 1 0 0 0 1 3 0 1 

Misconduct 
Investigation & 

4 0 0 0 3 3 1 5 



 

84 | P a g e  

 

 
The tables below reflect the Council’s actual training Expenditure and levies paid, as well as 
monies received from LGSETA for the past Financial Years. 

 

The percentage of the municipality’s 
training budget actually spent on 
implementing its Workplace Skills 
Plan. 

Budget (R)  Actual (R)  % SPENT 

2012/2013  2012/2013  2012/2013 

215 000  91 006  42% 

2011/2012  2011/2012  2011/2012 

90000  40546  45% 

2010/2011  2010/2011  2010/2011 

       97100         37933            39% 

2009/2010  2009/2010  2009/2010 

250000  221796  89% 

 

 
2009/10 

(R) 
2010/11 

(R) 
2011/12 

(R) 
2012/2013 

(R) 

Skills Development Levies Paid 193 307.16 205 733.95 258 085.00 305 951.10 

Mandatory Grants Received 96 653.57 102 866.98 118 227.66  

     

 PERSONNEL EXPENDITURE 

 

The table below reflects the Personnel Expenditure trends over the Last Four Years. 

 

 
 

AUDITED PERSONNEL EXPENDITURE 

 BUDGET  ACTUAL  VARIANCE  % SPENT 

 2012/2013  2012/2013  2012/2013  2012/2013 

Salaries 
Wages and 
Allowances 

34 760 774  31 609 035  3 151 739  91% 

Total 
Operating 
Expenditure 

   99 269 237  124 507 985  (25 238 748)  125% 

Salaries % on 
Total 
Operating 
Expenditure 

35%  25%     

 2011/2012  2011/2012  2011/2012  2011/2012 

Salaries 
Wages and 
Allowances 

31 089 155  26 627 135  4 462 020  86% 

Total 
Operating 
Expenditure 
 

105 500 065  97 974 711  7 525 354  93% 

        

Salaries % on 
Total 

29%  27%     

Report writing 

Conducting 
Performance 
Management (PMS)  

1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 

Local Government 
Advance 
Accounting 
Certificate (LGAAC) 

4 0 0 0 2 2 0 4 

Total 89 1 0 7 57 45 10 93 
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Operating 
Expenditure 

 2010/2011  2010/2011  2010/2011  2010/2011 

Salaries 
Wages and 
Allowances 

27736751  26083049  1653702  94% 

Total 
Operating 
Expenditure 

89548544  96198727  (6650183)  107% 

        

Salaries % on 
Total 
Operating 
Expenditure 

31%  27%     

 2009/2010  2009/2010  2009/2010  2009/2010 

Salaries 
Wages and 
Allowances 

28854664  24646561  4208103  85% 

Total 
Operating 
Expenditure 

76612612  89512165  (12899553)  117% 

Salaries % on 
Total 
Operating 
Expenditure 

38%  28%     

 2008/2009  2008/2009  2008/2009  2008/2009 

Salaries 
Wages and 
Allowances 

25909743  22114787  3794956  85% 

Total 
Operating 
Expenditure 

73365326  78585218  (5219892)  107% 

Salaries % on 
Total 
Operating 
Expenditure 

35%  28%     

The table below reflects Salary Related Expenditure Information for the Financial Year 2012/2013. 

 

Description Budget Actual 

Salaries 

34 760 774 

22 134 998 

Pension/Provident Funds and Medical Aid 5 691 863 

Other short-term costs 121 305 

Overtime Payments 1 472 812 

Travel, Accommodation, and subsistence 2 188 057  

Total 31 609 035 

 
The table below reflects membership towards Pension/Provident Funds and Medical Aid Funds for 
the Financial Year 2012/2013. 
 

6 PENSION / 
PROVIDENT FUNDS 

NUMBER OF 
MEMBERS 

 5 MEDICAL AID SCHEMES 
NUMBER OF 
MEMBERS 

Municipal Councillors Pension Fund 1  Bonitas Medical Fund 23 

Municipal Gratuity Fund 14  Hosmed Medical Scheme 4 

National Fund for Municipal Workers 34  Key Health Medical Scheme 14 

SALA Pension Fund 10  LA Health Medical Scheme 48 

SAMWU National Provident Fund 84  Samwumed Medical Scheme 46 
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The Medical Aid Funds are accredited by the South African Local Government Bargaining Council 
(SALGBC).  
 

The table below reflects Outstanding Monies owed to the Municipality by employees as at 30 June 
2013  

 

Account Holders 

Arrears 
June 2010 

Arrears 
June 2011 

Arrears 
June 2012 

Arrears 
June 2013 

(R) (R) (R) (R) 

Councillors 9 145.20 30 374.71 17 713 52 589 

Employees    111 182.48 

 

The table below reflects the Annual Remuneration for Councillors and Directors for the Financial 
Year 2012/2013. 

 

Designation Annual Remuneration Package 

Mayor 635 442 

Councillors  2 099 224 

Municipal Manager 950 850 

Director Corporate Services 736 996 

Director Financial Services 502 171 

Director Engineering Services 800 843 

Director Community Services 800 843 

Director Strategic Planning and LED 776 105 

 
4.2 POLICIES 

 

Page 
No 

Name of Policy Date adopted 
by Council or 
Comment on 
Failure to 
adopt 

Council 
Resolution 

HR POLICIES 

    

1. Recruitment and Selection Policy 19/05/2010 C099/2009-2010 

2. Skills Development Policy 25/07/2006 A133/2006 

3. Experiential Training Policy 17/08/2010 C001/2010-2011 

4. Overtime Management Policy 29/11/2007 A294/2007 

5. Travelling and Subsistence Allowance Policy 31/05/2013 C161/2012-2013 

    

BUDGET RELATED POLICIES 

    

6. Petty Cash Policy 

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1

3
 

C
1

6
1

/2
0

1
2
-2

0
1
3
 

7. Budget Policy 

8. Indigent Policy 

9. Tariff Policy 

10. Funding and Reserve Policy 

11. Cash and Investment Policy 

12. Rates Policy 

13. Supply Chain Management Policy 

14. Subsistence and Travelling Policy 

15. Assets Management Policy 

16. Bad Debt Written Off Policy 

17. Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy 
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OTHER POLICIES OF THE MUNICIPALITY 

    

18. Community Safety Forum Policy 04/09/2012 C063/2012-2013 

19. Provincial Liquor Policy 31/01/2012 C124/2011-2012 

20. Community Bursary Policy and Recommended 
Beneficiaries 

29/02/2012 C149/2011-2012 

21. Policy on Disposal of Immovable Council Assets 27/02/2013 C128/2012-2013 

22. Draft IT Security Policy for Ventersdorp LM 13/06/2013 C166/2012-2013 

23. Proposed Integrated Solid Waste Management 
Policy 

13/06/2013 C168/2012-2013 

24. Draft Public Participation Policy 24/04/2012 C178/2011-2012 

25. Draft Youth Development Policy 26/06/2012 C241/2011-2012 
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4.3 PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 
 
DISPOSAL OF MUNICIPAL PROPERTIES IN PROCESS 2012/2013 

 
DATE 

 
C/R 

 
NAME OF PURCHASER 

 
STAND DESCRIPTION 

 
SELLING PRICE 

 
STATUS 

 

 
REGISTRATION 

DATE 

 
DEV 

YES/NO 

 
ADVERT COST 

 
ACC NR 

02/12 137/12 A F M Church 218 Tshing R16 000-00 In process    00100823 

09/97  African Orthodox Church 570 Tshing R  4 047-00 In process  No   

08/10 K L K A Banda 3099 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In process  No R321-48 00000034 

01/04   17/04 L Boikanyo 49/303 R  1 500-00 In process   Yes  00100101 

01/07 A91/20
04 

Biotrace Trading Park – De Beerstr R6 000.00 In process  No   

02/12 137/12 C M F I Church 4516 ext 5 Tshing R12 850-00 In process    00100812 

03/11   55/10 K G Freddie 3027 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In process    00100815 

11/03 239/03 Katlego Bakery 502 Ysselweg R  3 000-00 In process   Yes  00100099 

03/11 55/10 P P Lefifi 3029 Tshing R10 400-00 In process    00100781 

05/12 137/12 L S Lekoane 3023 Tshing R10 400-00 In process    00100820 

05/12 137/12 L S Lekoane 3023 Tshing R10 400-00 In process    00100820 

10/03 214/03 P S Maoba 3115 Tshing R10 400-00 In process   Yes  00100110 

02/07   31/07 M O  Magome 3119, 3120, 3121 Tshing R10 400-00elk In process  No R193-80 00000003 
00000004  
00000005 

01/12 106/12 M M Mataboge 54/303 VSD R220 000-00 In process    00100817 

  S Matsimela 1149 ext 2 Tshing R  2 700-00 In process     

05/12   87/06 K A R Maunatlala 534 Tshing R  1 320-00 In process    00100796 

02/12 137/12 K A R Maunatlala 3030 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In process    00100800 

05/04 107/04 K Mistry Park v Riebeeckst R  9 000-00 In process  No  00511066 

04/12 137/12 S S Mmotsa 3065 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In process    00100801 

05/12   87/06 K E Moate 433 Tshing R  1 400-00 In process     

04/12 137/12  G Modise 3061 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In process    00100809 

04/12   87/06 P L M Mokgara 613 Tshing R  2 220-00 In process 04/2013   00100797 

  S S Mongale 529 Tshing R40 900-00 In process     

04/12 137/12 A Mopedi 3100 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In process    00100805 

11/08 Tender O D More 798 ext 7 VSD R50 000-00 In process  Seleke  00000037 

01/04   20/04 P Mosepele 999 Tshing R  6 000-00 In process  VR  00100114 

  T S Motshabi 3021 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In process 06/2013   00100784 

05/12 137/12 P Mtshali 3056 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In process 01/2013   00100808 

05/06   86/06 T G Nteo 3078, 3079, 3080 & 3082 
Tshing  

R10 400-00elk  In process    R212-00 00100700  
01001738 
01002738 
01003738 

04/12 137/12 W Ntengo 3039 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In process    00100804 

03/11   55/10 P S Phetoe 3024 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In Process    00100786 

01/12 106/12 K W Phiri 50 Toevlug R100 000-00 In process    00100818 

11/07 306/07 Ruri Early Learning Cent 1434 ext 2 Tshing R  1 500-00 In process   R  96-90 00000029 
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06/07 145/07 T E Segale 3084 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In Process   R176-70 00000020 

05/07 107/07 B E Sehume 3060 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 In process   R176-70 00000012 

05/12 137/12 P R Siko RE/508 VSD R134 000-00 In process    00100810 

05/05 105/05 United Apost Faith 4524 ext 5 Tshing R 12 850-00 In process  Seleke R240-00 00100450 

09/11 41/11 Waste Gang Recycling 496 VSD R  20 000-00 Registered 05/2013   00100816 

  Zion St Engenas 1510 ext 2 Tshing R  4 048-00 In process  VR   

5/12 137/12 Zoe Bible Church 3353 ext 5 Tshing R 12 850-00 In process     



 

90 | P a g e  

 

 
PROPERTIES REGISTERED 07/2012 – 06/2013 

 
 

DATE 
 

C/R 
 

NAME OF PURCHASER 
 

STAND DESCRIPTION 
 

PURCHASE  
PRICE 

 
STATUS 

 
REGISTRATION 

DATE 

 
ADVERT 
COSTS 

 
REF NR 

03/12 137/12 I Kole 3034 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 Registered 12/2012  00100802 

01/05 307/07 Living Jesus Ministries 3620 ext 5 Tshing R14 000-00 Registered 10/2012  00100486 

10/05   12/05 L L P Molale 3096 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 Registered 11/2012  00100401 

02/07   87/06 L Monye   641 Tshing R  3 600-00 Registered 10/2012  00100135 

03/12   87/06 G T Galefose    332 Tshing R  1 620-00 Registered 01/2013  00100800 

05/12   87/06 R J Kesenogile   465 Tshing R  1 370-00 Registered 05/2013  00100811 

06/08 132/08 M A Maine  3042 ext 4 Tshing  R10 400-00 Registered 03/2013  00100159 

03/11   55/11 E P B Matthews   3022 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 Registered 02/2013  00100790 

04/12 137/12 D T Modise  3035 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 Registered 02/2013  00100803 

08/07 2 12/07 T S Mosalakae  3101 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 Registered 05/2013  00000025 

07/07 183/07 E S Rampete  3072 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 Registered 03/2013 R 96-90 00000015 

04/12 137/12 T J Sithole   3043 ext 4 Tshing  R10 400-00 Registered 04/2013  00100807 

09/11   41/11 Waste Gang Recycling    496 VSD R20 000-00 Registered 05/2013  00100816 

03/11   55/10 K S Manaka 3028 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 Registered 06/2013  00100782 

03/11   55/10 T S Motshabi 3021 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 Registered 06/2013  00100784 

05/12 137/12 J T Mothlaolwa 3019 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 Registered 06/2013   

05/12 137/12 N C Mothupi 3045 ext 4 Tshing R10 400-00 Registered 06/2013   

 204/11 L S Mothupe 4068 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 04/2013   

 204/11 T I Molefi 3373 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 05/2013   

 204/11 D S Legwase 4049 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 05/2013   

 204/11 M P Qhobane 4019 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 05/2013   

 204/11 K H Motlhajwa 4067 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 05/2013   

 204/11 P Modise 4439 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 05/2013   

 204/11 J M Motlhajwa 4566 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 06/2013   

 204/11 T J Nape 4494 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 06/2013   

 204/11 L J Qasane 3710 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 06/2013   

 204/11 G O Moepeng 4529 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 06/2013   

 204/11 T A Serobatse 3322 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 08/2013   

 204/11 B J Ndlovu 3306 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 08/2013   

 204/11 R D Kekae 3321 ext 5 Tshing Housing Project Registered 08/2013   
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Chapter 5 
 
CHAPTER 5 - FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The Finance Management Directorate or better known as the Budget and Treasury Office forms part 
of the Strategic Directorates of the Ventersdorp Local Municipality, though not fully functional, the 
Budget and Treasury Office assist the Municipality to achieve the right results and standard of 
performance as required by the MFMA. 
 
OPERATING STRUCTURE 
 
 The Budget and Treasury Office is responsible for Financial Management and reporting matters in 
terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of 2003 as well as other legislation on 
Municipal Finance. The department also provides the following services: 
 
 Revenue Management 

 Expenditure Management 

 Budget Planning and reporting 

 Supply Chain Management 

 
5.1  REVENUE MANAGEMENT 
 

Description of Activities 
 
This section is responsible for the following:- 
 
Monthly Billings 
Cash Collection 
Rates Levying 
Issuing of Clearances 
Indigent Registration 
Sundry Debtors 
 
Current Status 
 
Due to an entrenched culture of service non-payment of services, the Municipality has a weak 
revenue base and the situation will be addressed through the Revenue Enhancement Strategy and 
the implementation of the Credit Control and Debt Collection Policies. The Municipality has entered 
into a contract with service provider to do the Debt Collection. The project on smart metering system 
has commenced, but was freeze due to public interference and aggressive behavior towards 
contractors.  The Unit on Debt Collection will be established in the new Financial Year; currently 
twelve employees are employed in this section and proper job description to be drafted for each 
employee. 
 
Revenue Raising Strategies 
 
All Consumers must be registered and billed for services rendered. 

A debt collection unit must be staffed to monitor the billing and payment of services. 

To have correct information of consumers for billing purpose (Meter Readings) 

Fast tracking of formalization of villages 

Attraction of investors for property development in order to enhance rates income 
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5.2  EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT 
 
Description of the activities 
The section is responsible for the following:- 
 

Bank Reconciliation 
Loans and Investments 
System Administration 
Creditors Payments 
Salaries Payments 
VAT 
Insurance 
Stores 
 
Current Status 
 
The Municipality has since 2001/2002 received unfavorable Audit Report from the Auditor General. 
The Municipality is hoping to decrease the number of queries raised by the AG’s Office in the New 
Year. Action Plan for the 2012/2013 queries was developed and attention to correct these issues is 
already underway. Some of the issues resulting in the Unfavorable Audit opinion include: 
Monthly Reconciliations not reviewed, 
Going concern issue, 
Opening Balances not corrected, 
Supply Chain Management 
Supporting Documents not complete, and 
Asset Register. 
 
Financial Management Strategies 
 
Development of a functional organizational structure that is staffed with appropriate personnel who 
contribute to the efficiency of the Municipality. 
The implementation of internal control that ensure the management of inventory, management of 
cash flow. 
Stocktaking of stores to be undertaken on a quarterly basis and any significant variances reported to 
Council. 
Increasing share of inter-governmental grants to pay for unfunded mandates. 
Vigorously pursuing cost cutting. 
 

 

Period 

 

Amount billed 

 

Cash received 

Collection rate as 

at 30 June 2012 

July 2012 4 093 898 1 834 597 45% 

August 2012 6 455 579 2 269 710 35% 

September 2012 4 929 228 2 776 806 56% 

October 2012 4 085 816 2 450 239 60% 

November 2012 3 691 914 2 976 009 81% 

December 2012 4 208 898 4 027 170 96% 

January 2013 3 573 415 2 222 691 62% 

February 2013 4 064 925 2 236 380 55% 

March 2013 3 628 951 2 040 735 56% 

April 2013 3 477 945 2 198 614 63% 

May 2013 3 843 502 3 727 557 97% 

June 2013 4 475 282 3 055 710 68% 

Total 50 529 353 31 816 218 63% 
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5.3  BUDGET PLANNING AND REPORTING 
 
Description of the activity 
 
This section is responsible for the following:- 
 

Drafting of the Municipal Budget and the Adjustment Budget, 
MFMA Compliance, 
MFMA Reporting, and 
Asset Management. 
Annual Financial Statement 
 
Current Status 
 
The Budget Office is currently under staffed and still striving to archive 100% compliance with the 
Implementation of the MFMA. The biggest challenge in this section is the GRAP Compliant Asset 
Register. A service provider was appointed to assist and the project is still underway. Two personnel 
are currently in charge of the office.  
 
Capital and Operating Financial Strategies 
 
The Municipality must ensure that the available monies are to be used strictly according to the 
approved Budget. 
Funds allocated for a specific purpose are to be used for that purpose only. 
The Budget and Reports are in line with MFMA requirements. 
Where Capital projects are to be funded by other organization, the Municipality must ensure that the 
funds have been secured prior to their inclusion in the Capital Budget. 
All Assets, whether fixed or movable are to be recorded in an Asset Register which is electronically 
maintained. 
The Asset Register is updated when Assets are acquired or disposed. 
On an Annual basis at least there must be reconciliation between the physical Asset holding and that 
reflected in the Asset Register. 
Where Capital Assets are transferred from other spheres of Government, Budgetary provision for 
Operational Maintenance of those Assets must be included. 
 
 
5.4 SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT  

 
2012/2013 
financial 
year  

No: of 
tenders 
awarded 

Total value of 
tenders 
awarded  

No: of tenders 
awarded to 
Ventersdorp 
based 
companies  

Total value of 
tenders 
awarded to 
Ventersdorp 
based 
companies 

% of tenders 
awarded to 
Ventersdorp 
based 
companies. 

July – 
September 
2012 

NONE  NONE  NONE  NONE   
0% 

October – 
December 
2012 

NONE  NONE  NONE  NONE   
0% 

January  - 
March 2013 
 

 
03  

 
R4 392 090 11 

NONE  NONE   
0% 

April – June 
2013 
 

 
03 

 
R11 453 213.68 

NONE  NONE   
0% 
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Provision of goods and services from R20 000 to R200 000, advertised on website for 7 days 
awarded to local companies. 

2012/2013 
financial 
year  

No: of 
tenders 
awarded 

Total value 
of tenders 
awarded  

No: of tenders 
awarded to 
Ventersdorp 
based 
companies  

Total value of 
tenders 
awarded to 
Ventersdorp 
based 
companies 

% of tenders 
awarded to 
Ventersdorp 
based 
companies. 

July – 
September 
2012 
 

 
4 

 
21 608.00 

 
2 

 
71 708.00 

 
50% 

October – 
December 
2012 

 
5 
 

 
204 134.89 

 
4 

 
171 188.89 

 
80% 

January  - 
March 2013 
 

 
11 

 
310 865.57 

 
11 

 
145 886.73 

 
7303% 

April – June 
2013 
 

 
25 

 
104 568.30 

 
11 

 
485 404.11 

 
44% 

 
QUOTATION AND TENDERS AWARDED 
  
Quotation above R100 000 
 

 
Electro Torque 

 

 
Transformer 

 
R100 180.01 

 
Actom 

 

 
Transformer 

 
R133 341.24 

Tenders above R100 000 
 

 
Diphatse Trading 
Project 

 

 
Upgrade internal road Tshing Ext 
2 

 

 
R5 683 318.00 

 
Rekohn 
Electrical 

 

 
Electrification of 600 household 
Tshing Ext 6 
 

 
R4 731 868.68 

 
Rekohn 
Electrical 

 

 
Bulk Electricity Supply 
Appeldraai 
 

 
R290 358.31 

 
Rekohn 
Electrical 

 
Electricity Supply Boikhutso 

 
R503 731.80 
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5.5 DETAILS OF THE CONDITIONAL GRANTS 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name of Grant 
Opening 
Balance 

Received Expenditure 
Closing 
Balance 

Reasons 
for delays 

Compliance with 
Grant Conditions 

Reasons 
for 

deviation 

Equitable Share 0  45 869 000 45 869 000 0  Yes  

Finance Management Grant 0 1 500 000 1 500 000 0  Yes  

Municipal System 
Improvement Grant 0 800 000 341 753 458 247  

Yes  

Municipal Infrastructure Grant 12 352 694 23 101 150                19 939 291 15 514 553  Yes  

Library Grant 109 635 320 000 163 371 266 264  Yes  

Water Affairs 287 951 600 690 600 690 287 951  Yes  

Water Affairs( Bulk Water 
Grant)      

  

Expenditure and Public Works 
Programme 143 215 1 000 000 1 143 215 -2 422  

Yes  

Provincial Infrastructure Grant 4 200 000  1 377 406 2 822 594  Yes  

INEP 1 031 074 6 700 000 7 493 025 238 049  Yes  

Project Management Unit 71 612 1 215 850 740 915 546 547  Yes  

Cleaning Campaign 68 264  62 598 5 666  Yes  

District Municipality  7 490 920 7 490 920 0  Yes   
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          5.6 MONTH: JUNE 2013 CREDITORS AGE ANALYSIS (HR191 REPORT & OLD BOOK-YEAR CREDITORS) 
 
 
 

VENTERSDORP LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 

 

Suppliers/institution Current 30 Days 60 Days 90 Days Total Year End Creditors GRAND Total 

ALPHA SPAR                                                   792.05 792.05 792.05 
AUDITOR GENERAL                                   44 168.42 43 045.88 17 363.34 442 362.61 546 940.25 8 349 144.26 8 896 084.51 
BUSINESS CONNEXION                                 90 494.36 0.00 1 000.00 91 494.36 91 494.36 
CAB HOLDING (PTY) LTD                              8 893.15 8 893.15 8 893.15 
Central Route 0.00 0.00 
CMA STEYN                                          96.46 96.46 96.46 
CMS WATER ENGINEERING                              0.00 122 287.80 122 287.80 
COMPENSATION COMMISSIONER                          90 771.55 90 771.55 1 174 384.62 1 265 156.17 
CONTOUR TECHNOLOGY                                 17 394.09 17 394.09 17 394.09 
DAVID MAROPE MOLOANTOA                             624.00 624.00 624.00 
DIPHATSE TRADING & PROJECTS                        643 595.64 643 595.64 643 595.64 
DIRECTOR PROVINCIAL ACCOUNTING                     92 266.48 12 555.40 274 323.50 379 145.38 379 145.38 
ESKOM - 6451852487 46 620.14 46 620.14 46 620.14 
ESKOM - 9780819095 19 191.66 19 191.66 19 191.66 
ESKOM - 8186292028 0.00 0.00 
ESKOM - 7454042787 4 354 198.65 2 520 859.76 2 456 267.26 9 509 771.79 18 841 097.46 18 841 097.46 
ESKOM - 6484685069 14 051.70 14 051.70 14 051.70 
ESKOM - 8644684222 22 949.70 22 949.70 22 949.70 
ESKOM - 8948171220 1 665.81 1 665.81 1 665.81 
EUREKA BOEKWINKEL                                  2 170.00 2 170.00 2 170.00 
FLORA ASPHALTS                                     1 902 523.20 1 902 523.20 1 902 523.20 
G J FOURIE BUILDIT                                 6 428.05 309.95 2 621.55 6 171.69 15 531.24 15 531.24 
G L P S PROJECT MANAGEMENT                         2 394 000.00 2 394 000.00 2 394 000.00 
Government Printing Works -1 154.07 -1 154.07 -1 154.07 
GUARDRISK ALLIED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (PTY)LTD    4 656.09 4 656.09 4 656.09 
INGPLAN CONSULTING ENGINEERS                       22 419.95 22 419.95 22 419.95 
Iniswa 0.00 0.00 
ITEC CONNECT(PTY)LTD.                              284 186.01 284 186.01 284 186.01 
LEZMIN 1976 CC                                     307.01 307.01 307.01 
LOURENS BEZUIDENHOUT INCORPORATED ATTORNEYS        43 994.23 43 994.23 43 994.23 
M A BANDA                         3 978.70 3 978.70 3 978.70 
MIKSTOK                                            350.00 350.00 350.00 
Mooivaal Media -2 220.00 -2 220.00 -2 220.00 
NW TELECOMS                                        32 535.67 32 535.67 32 535.67 
NZUZO CIVILS                                       294 948.00 294 948.00 294 948.00 
P J LABUSCHAGNE                                    30 324.00 30 324.00 30 324.00 
POPPY'S MOTORS                                     22 584.35 22 584.35 22 584.35 
PROTEA COIN GROUP (PTY) LTD                        3 083.70 3 083.70 3 083.70 
REKOHN ELECTRICAL                                  824 162.29 207 056.49 1 031 218.78 1 031 218.78 
RENDEALS FOUR CONSULTING                           0.00 417 372.06 417 372.06 
RONMAR OFFICE EQUIPMENT & C                        4 062.00 4 062.00 4 062.00 
S A POST OFFICE LTD                                18 476.65 18 476.65 18 476.65 
S.O MATSHIDISO CONSTRUCTION           \            1 180 470.00 1 180 470.00 1 180 470.00 
SANTAM LIMITED SHA CLAIMS ACCOUNT                  5 000.00 5 000.00 5 000.00 
TM KHOZA & ASSOCIATES CONSULTING ENGINEERS         140 025.60 140 025.60 140 025.60 
TMT SERVICES & SUPPLIES (PTY)                      289 657.47 289 657.47 289 657.47 
TUMBER FOURIE                                      156 543.16 156 543.16 156 543.16 
UNIVERSITY OF JOHANNESBURG                         10 000.00 10 000.00 10 000.00 
DWA - 23046446 4 432.32 4 432.32 4 432.32 38 561.22 51 858.18 202 819.68 254 677.86 
DWA - 23046455 3 324.24 3 324.24 3 324.24 28 920.87 38 893.59 141 487.98 180 381.57 
DWA - 23046838 3 545.86 3 545.86 3 545.86 30 848.94 41 486.52 146 899.81 188 386.33 
DWA - 23046428 13 833.16 6 205.53 11 363.65 99 942.90 131 345.24 611 270.59 742 615.83 
DWA - 60002651 136 859.54 114 781.99 92 550.09 743 688.23 1 087 879.85 5 097 353.79 6 185 233.64 

11 823 950.36 4 111 451.97 2 762 190.87 11 268 865.32 29 966 458.52 16 263 020.59 46 229 479.11 
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5.7 DEBTORS ACCOUNTS: JUNE 2013  

  5.7 DEBTORS ACCOUNTS 

Account 
Number 

Name Service Totaling 
Category 

Address Previous Previous 
VAT 

Total Debt Total Debt 
VAT 

Total Service 
Debt 

10001169  RSA   (DEPT EDUCATION)   VA   VA  koekemoer 355.25 0 17203.65 0 17203.65 

10001169  RSA   (DEPT EDUCATION)   BW   WA  koekemoer 24.62 3.45 1467.26 205.37 1672.63 

10001169  RSA   (DEPT EDUCATION)   BE   EL  koekemoer 342.72 47.98 13276.23 1858.69 15134.92 

10001169  RSA   (DEPT EDUCATION)   BS   SE  koekemoer 1817.09 254.39 116024.43 16243.46 132267.89 

10001169  RSA   (DEPT EDUCATION)   SUOLD   SU  koekemoer 0 0 80167.25 4904.02 85071.27 

10001169  RSA   (DEPT EDUCATION)   IN0001   IN  koekemoer 0 0 3405.88 0 3405.88 

10001169  RSA   (DEPT EDUCATION)   BR   RF  koekemoer 387.64 54.27 21243.49 2974.07 24217.56 

60005423  D E DEPT EDUCATION NW   BS   SE  koekemoer 1817.09 254.39 97631.29 13668.38 111299.67 

60005423  D E DEPT EDUCATION NW   BR   RF  koekemoer 387.64 54.27 20619.24 2886.68 23505.92 

70001170  RSA   (DEPT EDUCATION)   VA   VA  van riebeck  352.8 0 352.8 0 352.8 

70005422  REP VAN SUID-AFRIKA   BS   SE  van riebeck  136.45 19.1 660.53 92.47 753 

70005422  REP VAN SUID-AFRIKA   BR   RF  van riebeck  388.94 54.45 1806.06 252.83 2058.89 

1391  RSA   (DEPT EDUCATION)   VA   VA  van riebeck  6749.75 0 84455.85 0 84455.85 

1391  RSA   (DEPT EDUCATION)   BS   SE  van riebeck  1817.09 254.39 25906.27 3626.85 29533.12 

1391  RSA   (DEPT EDUCATION)   BR   RF  van riebeck  387.64 54.27 5526.54 773.7 6300.24 

60003034  K DEPT EDUCATION NW   BW   WA  van riebeck  24.62 3.45 328.96 46.02 374.98 

60003034  K DEPT EDUCATION NW   WA   WA  van riebeck  0 0 1583.24 221.65 1804.89 

60003034  K DEPT EDUCATION NW   BE   EL  van riebeck  342.72 47.98 4529.04 634.04 5163.08 

60003034  K DEPT EDUCATION NW   EL   EL  van riebeck  3992.32 558.93 18363.12 2570.83 20933.95 

30005426  D E DEPT EDUCATION NW   BS   SE  voortrekker str 1817.09 254.39 102666.59 14373.32 117039.91 

30005426  D E DEPT EDUCATION NW   BR   RF  voortrekker str 387.64 54.27 19908.24 2787.14 22695.38 

60001388  RSA   (DEPT P/WORKS)   VA   VA  voortrekker str 49 0 2769.62 0 2769.62 

90016522  N H B NATIONAL HOUSING 
BOARD  

 BS   SE  carmichael 1817.09 254.39 46825.78 6555.62 53381.4 

90016522  N H B NATIONAL HOUSING 
BOARD  

 VA   VA  carmichael 49 0 1078.71 0 1078.71 

40003443  VENTERSDORP DISTRIK  BW   WA  hendrik potgieter 0 0 20.75 2.91 23.66 
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KANTOOR  

40003443  VENTERSDORP DISTRIK 
KANTOOR  

 BE   EL  hendrik potgieter 0 0 110.82 15.52 126.34 

80001274  REPUBLC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  voortrekker str 90.65 0 2506.2 0 2506.2 

40002345  DEPT OPENBARE WERKE   BW   WA  voortrekker str 24.62 3.45 95.86 13.42 109.28 

40002345  DEPT OPENBARE WERKE   BE   EL  voortrekker str 127.27 17.82 492.42 68.94 561.36 

40002345  DEPT OPENBARE WERKE   BS   SE  voortrekker str 82.02 11.48 319.38 44.7 364.08 

60001276  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  voortrekker str 79.63 0 2500.83 0 2500.83 

50001277  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  gey str 90.65 0 2506.2 0 2506.2 

40001278  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  gey str 1939.18 0 17202.68 0 17202.68 

50002351  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BW   WA  gey str 24.62 3.45 95.86 13.42 109.28 

50002351  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BE   EL  gey str 127.27 17.82 492.42 68.94 561.36 

50002351  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  gey str 82.02 11.48 319.38 44.7 364.08 

30002346  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BW   WA  gey str 24.62 3.45 95.86 13.42 109.28 

30002346  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BE   EL  gey str 127.27 17.82 426.42 59.7 486.12 

30002346  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  gey str 82.02 11.48 319.38 44.7 364.08 

90001280  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  21 gey str 102.9 0 3528.64 0 3528.64 

80001281  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  21 gey str 595.35 0 1943.68 0 1943.68 

3423  DEPARTEMEN OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BW   WA  46 yssel str  24.62 3.45 142.47 19.94 162.41 

3423  DEPARTEMEN OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BE   EL  46 yssel str  127.27 17.82 611.36 85.59 696.95 

3423  DEPARTEMEN OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  46 yssel str  82.02 11.48 397.05 55.57 452.62 

3423  DEPARTEMEN OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BR   RF  46 yssel str  69.7 9.76 337.4 47.24 384.64 

50001284  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  46 yssel str  418.64 0 418.64 0 418.64 
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20002347  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BW   WA  yssel str 24.62 3.45 95.86 13.42 109.28 

20002347  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BE   EL  yssel str 127.27 17.82 492.42 68.94 561.36 

20002347  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  yssel str 82.02 11.48 319.38 44.7 364.08 

20002347  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BR   RF  yssel str 69.7 9.76 271.4 38 309.4 

40001285  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  yssel str 90.65 0 191.89 0 191.89 

10002348  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BW   WA  yssel str 24.62 3.45 95.86 13.42 109.28 

10002348  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BE   EL  yssel str 127.27 17.82 492.42 68.94 561.36 

10002348  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  yssel str 82.02 11.48 319.38 44.7 364.08 

10002348  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BR   RF  yssel str 69.7 9.76 271.4 38 309.4 

30001286  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  yssel str 923.65 0 2914.28 0 2914.28 

2349  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BW   WA  yssel str 24.62 3.45 142.48 19.94 162.42 

2349  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BE   EL  yssel str 127.27 17.82 730.3 102.24 832.54 

2349  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  yssel str 82.02 11.48 474.72 66.44 541.16 

2349  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BR   RF  yssel str 69.7 9.76 403.4 56.48 459.88 

20001287  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  yssel str 90.65 0 2506.2 0 2506.2 

10001288  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  yssel str 131.08 0 2525.98 0 2525.98 

40002352  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BW   WA  yssel str 24.62 3.45 95.86 13.42 109.28 

40002352  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BE   EL  yssel str 127.27 17.82 492.42 68.94 561.36 

40002352  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  yssel str 1817.09 254.39 7075.64 990.58 8066.22 
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40002352  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BR   RF  yssel str 388.94 54.45 1514.52 212.02 1726.54 

1289  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  yssel str 90.65 0 2506.2 0 2506.2 

60002350  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BW   WA  yssel str 24.62 3.45 95.86 13.42 109.28 

60002350  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BE   EL  yssel str 127.27 17.82 492.42 68.94 561.36 

60002350  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  49 yssel str 82.02 11.48 319.38 44.7 364.08 

60001290  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   VA   VA  49 yssel str 453.25 0 9706.32 0 9706.32 

60001290  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   BS   SE  49 yssel str 82.02 11.48 2044.44 286.2 2330.64 

60001290  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   BE   EL  49 yssel str 127.27 17.82 3061.13 428.57 3489.7 

60001290  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   BR   RF  49 yssel str 69.7 9.76 1459.62 204.31 1663.93 

60001290  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   WA   WA  49 yssel str 222.56 31.16 5355.53 749.79 6105.32 

60001290  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   EL   EL  49 yssel str 2333.1 326.63 20470.51 2865.86 23336.37 

60001290  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   BW   WA  49 yssel str 24.62 3.45 613.71 85.89 699.6 

60001290  REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA   
SUVALU  

 SU  49 yssel str 0 0 540 0 540 

30002353  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BW   WA  cochrane str 24.62 3.45 119.17 16.68 135.85 

30002353  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BE   EL  cochrane str 127.27 17.82 542.26 75.92 618.18 

30002353  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  cochrane str 136.45 19.1 660.53 92.47 753 

60001690  REPUBLIEK VAN SUID 
AFRIKA  

 VA   VA  24 aenamay str 627.2 0 19725.89 0 19725.89 

60001690  REPUBLIEK VAN SUID 
AFRIKA  

 
SUVALU  

 SU  24 aenamay str 0 0 274 0 274 

90005420  R S A   BS   SE  24 aenamay str 1817.09 254.39 8796.37 1231.48 10027.85 

90005420  R S A   BR   RF  24 aenamay str 388.94 54.45 1764.73 247.05 2011.78 

60002262  RSA   (DEPT P/WORKS)   VA   VA  2 grens str 245 0 8059.91 0 8059.91 

60002262  RSA   (DEPT P/WORKS)   BS   SE  2 grens str 136.45 19.1 4150.87 581.19 4732.06 

30001536  REPUBLIEK VAN SUID  VA   VA  aenamay str 812.18 0 32734.23 0 32734.23 
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AFRIKA  

30001536  REPUBLIEK VAN SUID 
AFRIKA  

 BE   EL  aenamay str 127.27 17.82 5111.5 715.68 5827.18 

30001536  REPUBLIEK VAN SUID 
AFRIKA  

 BW   WA  aenamay str 24.62 3.45 1104.9 154.68 1259.58 

30001536  REPUBLIEK VAN SUID 
AFRIKA  

 EL   EL  aenamay str 0 0 5561.34 778.59 6339.93 

30001536  REPUBLIEK VAN SUID 
AFRIKA  

 WA   WA  aenamay str 0 0 10641.35 1489.79 12131.14 

30001536  REPUBLIEK VAN SUID 
AFRIKA  

 
SUVALU  

 SU  aenamay str 0 0 576 0 576 

40005425  DEPT OPENBARE WERKE   BS   SE  aenamay str 1817.09 254.39 9706.3 1358.87 11065.17 

40005425  DEPT OPENBARE WERKE   BR   RF  aenamay str 388.94 54.45 1882.84 263.58 2146.42 

90015177  M P SIKO   BE   EL  aenamay str 127.27 17.82 849.24 118.89 968.13 

90015177  M P SIKO   BW   WA  aenamay str 24.62 3.45 165.79 23.2 188.99 

90015177  M P SIKO   EL   EL  aenamay str 1979.24 277.09 10163.57 1422.89 11586.46 

90015177  M P SIKO   WA   WA  aenamay str 31.92 4.47 214.84 30.08 244.92 

40001542  RSA   (DEPT P/WORKS)   VA   VA  aenamay str 5157.25 0 9237 0 9237 

90000294  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  aenamay str 1817.09 254.39 12139.03 1699.45 13838.48 

90000294  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BR   RF  aenamay str 388.94 54.45 2251.16 315.14 2566.3 

50001572  S SPOORNET   VA   VA  hendrik potgieter 0 0 4540.5 0 4540.5 

50001572  S SPOORNET   BW   WA  hendrik potgieter 24.62 3.45 1467.26 205.37 1672.63 

50001572  S SPOORNET   BE   EL  hendrik potgieter 127.27 17.82 9346.57 1308.57 10655.14 

50001572  S SPOORNET   BS   SE  hendrik potgieter 335.74 47 9996.52 1399.48 11396 

50001572  S SPOORNET   SUOLD   SU  hendrik potgieter 0 0 3945.64 241.36 4187 

50001572  S SPOORNET   BR   RF  hendrik potgieter 388.94 54.45 7637.26 1069.14 8706.4 

1403  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   VA   VA  moosa park 49 0 300.66 0 300.66 

1403  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BW   WA  moosa park 24.62 3.45 189.1 26.46 215.56 

1403  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BE   EL  moosa park 342.72 47.98 2286.94 320.16 2607.1 

1403  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BS   SE  moosa park 69.2 9.69 531.58 74.4 605.98 
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1403  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BR   RF  moosa park 55.97 7.84 407.69 57.09 464.78 

90001404  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   VA   VA  moosa park 245 0 1706 0 1706 

90001404  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BW   WA  moosa park 24.62 3.45 212.41 29.72 242.13 

90001404  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BE   EL  moosa park 342.72 47.98 2607.24 365 2972.24 

90001404  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BS   SE  moosa park 1817.09 254.39 14945.93 2092.41 17038.34 

90001404  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BR   RF  moosa park 388.94 54.45 2987.8 418.26 3406.06 

70001406  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   VA   VA  moosa park 232.75 0 1620.7 0 1620.7 

70001406  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BW   WA  moosa park 24.62 3.45 212.41 29.72 242.13 

70001406  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BE   EL  moosa park 342.72 47.98 2607.24 365 2972.24 

70001406  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BS   SE  moosa park 1817.09 254.39 15331.15 2146.34 17477.49 

50001408  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   VA   VA  moosa park 281.75 0 3423.45 0 3423.45 

50001408  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BW   WA  moosa park 24.62 3.45 350.96 49.1 400.06 

50001408  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BE   EL  moosa park 342.72 47.98 4833.04 676.6 5509.64 

50001408  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BS   SE  moosa park 82.02 11.48 1169.35 163.66 1333.01 

20003421  RUPUBLIEK VAN SUID-
AFRIKA  

 BW   WA  moosa park 24.62 3.45 119.17 16.68 135.85 

20003421  RUPUBLIEK VAN SUID-
AFRIKA  

 BE   EL  moosa park 127.27 17.82 542.31 75.92 618.23 

20003421  RUPUBLIEK VAN SUID-
AFRIKA  

 BS   SE  moosa park 136.45 19.1 660.53 92.47 753 

30001417  A TRANSNET BPK   BW   WA  moosa park 24.62 3.45 24.62 3.45 28.07 

30001417  A TRANSNET BPK   BE   EL  moosa park 120.9 16.93 120.9 16.93 137.83 

30001417  A TRANSNET BPK   BS   SE  moosa park 136.45 19.1 136.45 19.1 155.55 

30000502  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   VA   VA  moosa park 107.45 0 107.45 0 107.45 

30000502  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BW   WA  moosa park 24.62 3.45 24.62 3.45 28.07 

30000502  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BS   SE  moosa park 192.22 26.91 192.22 26.91 219.13 

30000502  NATIONAL HOUSING BOARD   BR   RF  moosa park 387.64 54.27 387.64 54.27 441.91 

20009562  R S A R S A   BS   SE  roodepoort 1817.09 254.39 49888.66 6984.42 56873.08 

20009562  R S A R S A   BR   RF  roodepoort 388.94 54.45 10678.56 1494.98 12173.54 

30009561  RSA   (DEPT P/WORKS)   VA   VA  roodepoort 0 0 48438.02 0 48438.02 

30009561  RSA   (DEPT P/WORKS)   BW   WA  roodepoort 24.62 3.45 1247.62 174.6 1422.22 
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30009561  RSA   (DEPT P/WORKS)   BE   EL  roodepoort 127.27 17.82 5719.5 800.8 6520.3 

30009561  RSA   (DEPT P/WORKS)   BS   SE  roodepoort 136.45 19.1 5117.1 716.46 5833.56 

30009561  RSA   (DEPT P/WORKS)   BR   RF  roodepoort 76.03 10.64 2832.78 396.54 3229.32 

50006546  HOERSKOOL VENTERSDORP   BE   EL  visser str 342.72 47.98 342.72 47.98 390.7 

50006546  HOERSKOOL VENTERSDORP   BS   SE  visser str 1817.09 254.39 1956.43 273.9 2230.33 

50006546  HOERSKOOL VENTERSDORP   BR   RF  visser str 387.64 54.27 387.64 54.27 441.91 

1658  TRANSNET   BS   SE  visser str 136.45 19.1 2116.5 296.32 2412.82 

1658  TRANSNET   BR   RF  visser str 76.03 10.64 1179.3 165.08 1344.38 

10001657  TRANSNET   BS   SE  visser str 136.45 19.1 2116.5 296.32 2412.82 

10001657  TRANSNET   BR   RF  visser str 76.03 10.64 1179.3 165.08 1344.38 

20001656  TRANSNET   BS   SE  visser str 136.45 19.1 2116.5 296.32 2412.82 

20001656  TRANSNET   BR   RF  visser str 76.03 10.64 1179.3 165.08 1344.38 

30001655  TRANSNET   BS   SE  visser str 136.45 19.1 2116.5 296.32 2412.82 

30001655  TRANSNET   BR   RF  visser str 76.03 10.64 1179.3 165.08 1344.38 

40001654  TRANSNET   BW   WA  visser str 24.62 3.45 416.96 58.34 475.3 

40001654  TRANSNET   BS   SE  visser str 136.45 19.1 2116.5 296.32 2412.82 

40001654  TRANSNET   BR   RF  60/216 huis  76.03 10.64 1179.3 165.08 1344.38 

90001659  TRANSNET   BS   SE  60/216 huis  136.45 19.1 272.9 38.2 311.1 

90001659  TRANSNET   BR   RF  60/216 huis  76.03 10.64 127.44 17.83 145.27 

90001659  TRANSNET   BW   WA  60/216 24.62 3.45 49.24 6.9 56.14 

30001662  TRANSNET LTD   BS   SE  roodepoort 335.74 47 335.74 47 382.74 

30001662  TRANSNET LTD   BR   RF  roodepoort 369.45 51.72 369.45 51.72 421.17 

20000910  HOERSKOOL VENTERSDORP   BW   WA  visser str 24.62 3.45 72.55 10.16 82.71 

20000910  HOERSKOOL VENTERSDORP   WA   WA  visser str 406.52 56.91 1952.46 273.34 2225.8 

20000910  HOERSKOOL VENTERSDORP   BE   EL  visser str 342.72 47.98 1005.74 140.8 1146.54 

20000910  HOERSKOOL VENTERSDORP   EL   EL  visser str 5580.8 781.31 18216.4 2550.29 20766.69 

50001046  DEPT EDUCATION NW   BW   WA  toevlug 24.62 3.45 49.24 6.9 56.14 

50001046  DEPT EDUCATION NW   BE   EL  toevlug 342.72 47.98 685.23 95.93 781.16 

50001046  DEPT EDUCATION NW   BS   SE  toevlug 1817.09 254.39 3634.18 508.78 4142.96 

50001046  DEPT EDUCATION NW   BR   RF  toevlug 387.64 54.27 775.28 108.54 883.82 

90014886  T L TOEVLUG LAERSKOOL   EL   EL  toevlug 392.96 55.02 787.88 110.31 898.19 
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10005428  HOSPITAAL DEPT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BW   WA  grens str 24.62 3.45 72.55 10.16 82.71 

10005428  HOSPITAAL DEPT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 WA   WA  grens str 3063.72 428.92 3130.55 438.27 3568.82 

10005428  HOSPITAAL DEPT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BE   EL  grens str 342.72 47.98 1005.74 140.8 1146.54 

10005428  HOSPITAAL DEPT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 EL   EL  grens str 0 0 1103424.12 154479.37 1257903.49 

10005428  HOSPITAAL DEPT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  grens str 1817.09 254.39 5354.91 749.68 6104.59 

10005428  HOSPITAAL DEPT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BR   RF  grens str 388.94 54.45 1146.2 160.46 1306.66 

10004025  G DEPT GESONDHEID   BW   WA  dock str 24.62 3.45 49.24 6.9 56.14 

10004025  G DEPT GESONDHEID   WA   WA  dock str 0 0 366.32 51.28 417.6 

50005424  DEPT OPENBARE WERKE   BW   WA  dock str 24.62 3.45 165.79 23.2 188.99 

50005424  DEPT OPENBARE WERKE   BE   EL  dock str 127.27 17.82 730.3 102.24 832.54 

50005424  DEPT OPENBARE WERKE   BS   SE  dock str 1817.09 254.39 12051.22 1687.16 13738.38 

50005424  DEPT OPENBARE WERKE   BR   RF  dock str 388.94 54.45 2251.16 315.14 2566.3 

60000909  RSA   (DEPT P/WORKS)   VA   VA  dock str 0 0 6552.78 0 6552.78 

30005019  REP VAN SUID AFRIKA   BS   SE  roodepoort 1817.09 254.39 13049.09 1826.86 14875.95 

30005019  REP VAN SUID AFRIKA   BR   RF  roodepoort 388.94 54.45 2619.48 366.7 2986.18 

20005027  REP VAN SUID AFRIKA   BS   SE  roodepoort 136.45 19.1 685.1 95.91 781.01 

70004317  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BS   SE  grens str 1817.09 254.39 15797.53 2211.63 18009.16 

70004317  DEPARTEMENT OPENBARE 
WERKE  

 BR   RF  grens str 388.94 54.45 3356.12 469.82 3825.94 

40001647  R S A   VA   VA  grens str 0 0 14014 0 14014 

40001647  R S A   SUOLD   SU  grens str 0 0 1137.02 69.55 1206.57 

60001652  TRANSNET LTD   BS   SE  grens str 136.45 19.1 2116.5 296.32 2412.82 

60001652  TRANSNET LTD   BR   RF  grens str 76.03 10.64 1179.3 165.08 1344.38 

60000923  NORTHWEST PROVINCE 
GOVERNM  

 BE   EL  sk 29c ratsegaai 238.85 33.44 477.7 66.88 544.58 

40008981  DEPT VAN PUBLIEKE WERKE   BE   EL  pl 45 vlakfontein 238.85 33.44 2034.33 284.8 2319.13 
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40008981  DEPT VAN PUBLIEKE WERKE   EL   EL  pl 45 vlakfontein 10.79 1.51 1077.5 150.83 1228.33 

90006304  DEPT EDUCATION NW   BE   EL  sk 73aklippansdrift 238.85 33.44 782.56 109.56 892.12 

90006304  DEPT EDUCATION NW   EL   EL  sk73aklippansdrift 280.54 39.27 1459.95 204.38 1664.33 

30000395  L DEPARTEMENTEEL   EL   EL  grens str 0 0 3276.8 0 3276.8 

50005381  DEPT EDUCATION NW   VA   VA  grens str 3249.93 0 82245.29 0 82245.29 

50005381  DEPT EDUCATION NW   BS   SE  grens str 1817.09 254.39 56014.42 7842.02 63856.44 

50005381  DEPT EDUCATION NW   BR   RF  grens str 387.64 54.27 11949.44 1672.9 13622.34 

50005381  DEPT EDUCATION NW   
SUVALU  

 SU  grens str 0 0 3282.5 0 3282.5 

90014900  D E DEPT OF EDUCATION   WA   WA  526 manaka str 0 0 585.37 81.95 667.32 

90014900  D E DEPT OF EDUCATION   EL   EL  526 manaka str 0 0 31075.36 4350.56 35425.92 

90014900  D E DEPT OF EDUCATION   BW   WA  526 manaka str 24.62 3.45 142.48 19.94 162.42 

90014900  D E DEPT OF EDUCATION   BE   EL  526 manaka str 127.27 17.82 730.3 102.24 832.54 

90014867  D O H DEPT  OF HEALTH   BE   EL  559 manaka str 127.27 17.82 1206.06 168.84 1374.9 

90014867  D O H DEPT  OF HEALTH   BW   WA  559 manaka str 24.62 3.45 235.72 32.98 268.7 

90014867  D O H DEPT  OF HEALTH   EL   EL  559 manaka str 5352.65 749.37 18484.28 2587.81 21072.09 

90014867  D O H DEPT  OF HEALTH   WA   WA  559 manaka str 15.95 0 4215.16 0 4215.16 

50010699  DEPT EDUCATION NW   VA   VA  562 sekgapane str 0 0 16712.67 0 16712.67 

90015050  THUTO BOSWA SCHOOL   BE   EL  562 sekgapane str 127.27 17.82 1443.94 202.14 1646.08 

90015050  THUTO BOSWA SCHOOL   BW   WA  562 sekgapane str 24.62 3.45 282.34 39.5 321.84 

90015050  THUTO BOSWA SCHOOL   EL   EL  562 sekgapane str 3691.72 516.84 65503.03 9170.42 74673.45 

90015050  THUTO BOSWA SCHOOL   WA   WA  562 sekgapane str 0 0 42.36 5.94 48.3 

90015050  THUTO BOSWA SCHOOL   BR   RF  562 sekgapane str 387.64 54.27 4446.08 622.44 5068.52 

90015050  THUTO BOSWA SCHOOL   BS   SE  562 sekgapane str 1817.09 254.39 20841.48 2917.78 23759.26 

20005384  TPD T P A  PAAIE DEPT   BW   WA  561-1 tshing 24.62 3.45 372.96 52.18 425.14 

20005384  TPD T P A  PAAIE DEPT   WA   WA  561-1 tshing 85 11.9 240.32 33.63 273.95 

20005384  TPD T P A  PAAIE DEPT   BE   EL  561-1 tshing 342.72 47.98 4833.04 676.6 5509.64 

20005384  TPD T P A  PAAIE DEPT   EL   EL  561-1 tshing 0 0 1588.2 222.36 1810.56 

20005384  TPD T P A  PAAIE DEPT   BS   SE  561-1 tshing 1817.09 254.39 26027.41 3643.81 29671.22 

20005384  TPD T P A  PAAIE DEPT   BR   RF  561-1 tshing 388.94 54.45 5545.19 776.27 6321.46 

60010700  SAPD S A POLISIE DIENSTE   BW   WA  2987 gaedingoe str 24.62 3.45 49.24 6.9 56.14 
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60010700  SAPD S A POLISIE DIENSTE   WA   WA  2987 gaedingoe str 0 0 48.92 6.85 55.77 

60010700  SAPD S A POLISIE DIENSTE   BE   EL  2987 gaedingoe str 127.27 17.82 254.54 35.64 290.18 

60010700  SAPD S A POLISIE DIENSTE   EL   EL  2987 gaedingoe str 0 0 446.96 62.58 509.54 

60010700  SAPD S A POLISIE DIENSTE   BS   SE  2987 gaedingoe str 1817.09 254.39 3634.18 508.78 4142.96 

60010700  SAPD S A POLISIE DIENSTE   BR   RF  2987 gaedingoe str 388.94 54.45 777.88 108.9 886.78 

90015114  S SAPS SATELITE TSHING   VA   VA  2987 gaedingoe str 0 0 1324 0 1324 

50010701  DEPT EDUCATION NW   VA   VA  849 legakabe str 2344.65 0 90634.14 0 90634.14 

50010701  DEPT EDUCATION NW   EL   EL  849 legakabe str 0 0 1699.74 237.98 1937.72 

50010701  DEPT EDUCATION NW   BS   SE  849 legakabe str 1817.09 254.39 104078.18 14570.94 118649.12 

50010701  DEPT EDUCATION NW   SUOLD   SU  849 legakabe str 0 0 19079.22 1167.13 20246.35 

50010701  DEPT EDUCATION NW   BR   RF  849 legakabe str 387.64 54.27 22041.24 3085.76 25127 

50010701  DEPT EDUCATION NW   
SUVALU  

 SU  849 legakabe str 0 0 1578 0 1578 

90018928  D DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
(J B MARKS CLINIC  

 BW   WA  3252 kokolohutwe 
str 

24.62 3.45 112.08 15.69 127.77 

90018928  D DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
(J B MARKS CLINIC  

 WA   WA  3252 kokolohutwe 
str 

191.9 26.87 191.9 26.87 218.77 

90018928  D DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
(J B MARKS CLINIC  

 BR   RF  3252 kokolohutwe 
str 

388.94 54.45 1514.52 212.02 1726.54 

90018928  D DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
(J B MARKS CLINIC  

 BS   SE  3252 kokolohutwe 
str 

1817.09 254.39 7075.64 990.58 8066.22 

90018928  D DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
(J B MARKS CLINIC  

 BE   EL  3252 kokolohutwe 
str 

321 44.94 1242 173.88 1415.88 

90018928  D DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH 
(J B MARKS CLINIC  

 EL   EL  3252 kokolohutwe 
str 

28435.79 3981.01 113365.49 15871.16 129236.65 

10010824  W DEPARTEMENT 
GESONDHEID EN  

 SUOLD   SU  grens str 0 0 164758.34 10078.66 174837 

90019099  GOV OF RSA GOV OF RSA   VA   VA  645 portion 5 137.6 0 2812.2 0 2812.2 

90019096  RSA NAT GOV OF RSA   VA   VA  645 portion 5 68.55 0 1401.74 0 1401.74 

90019098  NAT GOV RSA NAT GOV RSA   VA   VA  358 farm 126.97 0 2594.2 0 2594.2 

TOTAL             36472818.14 367 985.96 36 840 804.00 
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Chapter 6 
 
CHAPTER 6 – AUDITOR GENERAL AUDIT FINDINGS 
 
COMPONENT A:  AUDITOR GENERAL REPORT 2011/2012 
 
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO NORTH WEST PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE AND THE COUNCIL 
ON THE VENTERSDORP LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 2011/2012 
 
Introduction 

I was engaged to audit the financial statements of the Ventersdorp Local Municipality, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012, the statements of financial performance, changes in net assets 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information as set out on pages xx to xx. 
  
Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements 

The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of 
GRAP) and the requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) 
(MFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2011 (Act No. 6 of 2011) (DoRA) and for such internal 
control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor-General’s responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on conducting the audit in accordance 
with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued in terms 
thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of 
opinion paragraphs, however, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an 
audit opinion. 
 
Basis for disclaimer of opinion 

Property, plant and equipment 

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence for property, plant and equipment of R113 255 376 (2011: 
R97 816 046) disclosed in the statement of financial position and note 11 to the financial statements.  The 
municipality’s records did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures.  Consequently, I was unable to 
determine the completeness, valuation and allocation, existence and rights and obligation of property, plant and 
equipment as disclosed in the statement of financial position and note 11 to the financial statements.  

Standard of Generally Recognized Accounting Practice, GRAP 17, Property, plant and equipment requires that the 
useful life and residual value of an asset shall be reviewed and be tested for impairment at least at each reporting 
date. The municipality did not perform a reassessment of useful lives for assets. Consequently, I was unable to 
satisfy myself as to the accuracy, occurrence, completeness, classification and cut-off of the depreciation expense 
of R5 362 762 (2011: R5 828 282) as disclosed in the statement of financial performance and note 28 to the 
financial statements. 
 
Investment property 

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to verify that all investment properties of the 
municipality has been identified and recorded. I was unable to confirm the completeness of investment property by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the completeness of investment property of 
R2 350 519 (2011: R2 350 419 350) as disclosed in the statement of financial position and note 10 to the financial 
statements. 

The Municipality did not measure Investment Property as required by Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice, GRAP 16, Investment property, which requires that an entity that chooses the fair value model 
shall measure all of its investment property at fair value. Investment property stated at R2 350 519 in the financial 
statements was not fair valued. Alternate audit procedures indicated that investment property was overstated by 
R1 663 519. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the valuation and allocation of investment property 
of R2 350 519 as disclosed in the statement of financial performance and note 10 to the financial statements. 
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Trade and other receivables and consumer debtors 

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for consumer debtors of R15 305 665 (2011: 
R6 766 437) disclosed in the statement of financial position. Alternative audit procedures indicated that the 
municipality did not levy interest on over-due accounts as required by the Municipality’s Credit Control and Debt 
Collection Policy. The effects on the financial statements is that consumer debtors are understated by R2 081 001 
and the revenue for the period and accumulated surpluses are understated by R2 081 001 respectively. The 
municipality’s records did not permit the application of further alternative audit procedures. Consequently, I was 
unable to satisfy myself as to the existence, completeness, rights and obligations, valuation and allocation of 
consumer debtors of R15 305 665 (2011: R6 766 437) as disclosed in the statement of financial performance and 
note 8 to the financial statements. 

 
Value added tax (VAT)  

VAT receivable is understated by R5 005 546 as the municipality failed to provide for VAT refunds from the South 
African Revenue Service.  

 

Trade and other payables 

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to confirm the completeness of trade payables of 
R49 565 724 disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements. I was unable to confirm the completeness of these 
trade payables by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the completeness, rights 
and obligations, valuation and allocation of trade payable of R49 565 724 as disclosed in note 15 to the financial 
statements. 

Inventory 

As reported in the prior year, my opinion on the corresponding figure for inventories was modified as the 
municipality could not provide sufficient appropriate evidence that inventories were measured at the lower of cost 
or net realisable value. The municipality failed to make proper adjustments to the corresponding figure reported. 
Consequently, the valuation and allocation of the corresponding figure for inventories of R1 103 250 disclosed in 
the financial statements could not be confirmed.  

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to verify that all unsold properties held for resale of the 
municipality has been identified and recorded. I was unable to confirm the completeness of inventory by alternative 
means. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the completeness of unsold properties held for resale of 
R1 313 947 as disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements. 
 
Provisions 

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the provision for landfill site rehabilitation of 
R2 325 159 (2011: R2 000 000) disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements. The municipality’s records did not 
permit the application of alternative audit procedures. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the 
existence, completeness, valuation and rights and obligations of provisions of R2 325 159 (2011: R2 000 000) as 
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.  
 
Other financial liabilities  

As reported in the prior year, my opinion on the corresponding figure for other financial liabilities was modified due 
to a difference between the amount disclosed and confirmations received from the Infrastructure Finance 
Corporation Limited (INCA). The municipality failed to make proper adjustments to the corresponding figure 
reported. Consequently, the corresponding figure for other financial liabilities is understated by R4 878 222. 
 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for unspent conditional grants and receipts of 
R19 666 137 (2011: R1 643 314) disclosed in the financial statements as the municipality failed to make proper 
adjustments to the opening balance. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the completeness, rights 
and obligation, valuation and allocation and presentation and disclosure of unspent conditional grants and receipts 
of R19 666 137 (2011: R1 643 314)disclosed in the financial statements.  
 
Revenue 

As reported in the prior year, my opinion on the corresponding figure for government grants and subsidies was 
modified as I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for government grants and subsidies 
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revenue of R61 781 698. The municipality failed to make proper adjustments to the corresponding figure reported. 
Consequently, the occurrence, accuracy, completeness, classification and cut-off of the corresponding figure of 
R61 781 698 disclosed in the statement of financial performance could not be confirmed.  

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence for revenue of R2 001 272 (2011: R2 251 221) from licence 
and permits, as disclosed in the statement of financial performance. The municipality’s records did not permit the 
application of alternative audit procedures. Consequently, I was unable to determine the occurrence, accuracy, 
classification, cut-off and completeness of this revenue.  

 
Expenditure 

As reported in the prior year, my opinion on the corresponding figure for audit fees was modified as I was unable to 
obtain sufficient appropriate evidence for audit fees of R2 503 030 The municipality failed to make proper 
adjustments to the corresponding figure reported. Consequently, the occurrence and accuracy of the 
corresponding figure ofR2 503 030 for audit fees as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements could not be 
confirmed. 

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for bulk water purchases of R5 952 782 (2011: 
R721 332) included in note 32 to the financial statements. The municipality’s system did not permit the application 
of alternate audit procedures. Consequently, I could not satisfy myself as to the occurrence, completeness, 
accuracy, classification and cut-off of bulk water purchased disclosed in note 32 of the financial statements. 

The Municipality did not classify lease agreements as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership were transferred to the Municipality in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice, GRAP 13, Leases. The Municipality is party to a number of lease agreements which 
constitute finance leases, which have been accounted for as operating leases of R1 662 780 (disclosed in note 33 
to the financial statements. The accounting records of the municipality did not permit the application of alternative 
audit procedures regarding long-term liabilities, property plant and equipment, finance cost and the disclosures 
relating these leases. Consequently, I was unable to confirm the occurrence, accuracy, valuation and 
completeness of the long term liabilities, property plant and equipment, finance costs and the disclosure notes 
relating to these leases.  
 
Accumulated Surplus 

Limitations placed on my audit relating to expenditure, revenue transactions and adjustments made to the 
accumulated surplus in prior years have not been resolved.  In the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
to substantiate these transactions and adjustments included in accumulated surplus stated at R51 681 694 (2011: 
R46 918 958), I was unable to verify the completeness, valuation and allocation by alternative means. 
Consequently I was unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to accumulated surplus in the financial 
statements was necessary. 

 
Prior-period errors 

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the restatement in the corresponding figures as 
disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements. I was unable to confirm the restatements by alternative means. 
Consequently I was unable to confirm the occurrence, accuracy, valuation and completeness of the prior-period 
errors as disclosed in note 39 of the financial statements as well as whether any further adjustments to the 
corresponding figures were necessary. 
 
Capital commitments 

As reported in the prior year, my opinion on the corresponding figure for capital commitments was modified as I 
was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for capital commitments approved and not yet contracted 
for of R18 153 500. The municipality failed to make proper adjustments to the corresponding figure reported. 
Consequently, the completeness, occurrence, accuracy and valuation of the corresponding figure of R18 153 500 
disclosed in note 36 to financial statements could not be confirmed.  
 
Contingent liabilities 

As reported in the prior year, my opinion on the corresponding figure for contingent liabilities was modified as the 
municipality did not have a register for contingent liabilities or other relevant system in place to identify contingent 
liabilities. The municipality failed to make proper adjustments to the corresponding figure reported. Consequently, 
the completeness, occurrence, accuracy and valuation of the corresponding figure of R2 793 371 disclosed in note 
37 to financial statements could not be confirmed 
 
Related party disclosures 
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The Municipality did not disclose the remuneration of key management personnel in accordance with the South 
African Statement of Generally Accepted Recognised Accounting Practice, GRAP, IPSAS 20, Related-party 
disclosures. The remuneration of key management personnel should be disclosed per person and in aggregate for 
each class of management. Remuneration of key management personnel as disclosed in note 26 of the financial 
statements did not adhere to these requirements. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself as to the 
completeness, occurrence, accuracy and valuation of remuneration of key management personnel as disclosed in 
note 26 to the financial statements. 
 
Cash flow statement 

The municipality’s calculation of net cash flows from operating activities and cash generated from operations did 
not appropriately account for non-cash items in the cash flow statement. The municipality’s records did not permit 
the application of alternative audit procedures to determine the extent of the misstatement. Consequently, I did not 
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to confirm the accuracy of the cash flow statement for the current and 
corresponding year. 

 

Irregular expenditure 

Section 125 of the MFMA requires disclosure of material irregular expenditure. The municipality made awards of 
R2 133 073 to suppliers in contravention with procurement requirements. This amount was not disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements, therefore irregular expenditure as disclosed in 44 of the financial statements is 
understated. 

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for quotations to the value of R815 161. The 
municipality’s records did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures. Consequently, I was unable to 
satisfy myself as to the valuation, rights and obligations, existence and completeness of the irregular expenditure of 
R19 758 876 disclosed in note 44 of the financial statements.  
 
Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure 

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R9 756 574 
(2011: R6 594 441) as disclosed in note 43 of the financial statements. Alternative audit procedures indicated the 
existence of a further R1 073 142 (2011: R1 558 726) fruitless and wasteful expenditure. The municipality’s records 
did not permit the application of further alternative audit procedures. Consequently, I was unable to satisfy myself 
as to the completeness, occurrence, accuracy, valuation and presentation disclosure of fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure disclosed in note 43 of the financial statements. 

Unauthorised Expenditure 

As reported in the prior year, my opinion on the corresponding figure for unauthorised expenditure was modified. 
The municipality failed to make proper adjustments to the corresponding figure reported. Consequently, the 
occurrence, classification and understandability, completeness and valuation of the corresponding figure for 
unauthorised expenditure of R5 783 820 as disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements could not be confirmed. 

Unauthorised expenditure as disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements was overstated by R 2 488 407 due to 
variances between the budgeted expenditure used in the calculation of unauthorised expenditure and the final 
approved adjustment budget.  
 
Material losses disclosure 
 
The municipality did not include particulars of material losses in the notes to the financial statements as required by 
section 125(2)(d)(i) of the MFMA. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on water and 
electricity distribution losses incurred during the year. The municipality’s records did not permit the application of 
alternate audit procedures. Consequently, the occurrence, classification and understandability, completeness and 
valuation of water and electricity distribution losses could not be confirmed. 

 

Disclaimer of opinion 

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, I have not 
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, I do 
not express an opinion on the financial statements. 

 
Emphasis of matters 

I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
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Restatement of corresponding figures 

As disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 2011 have been restated 
as a result of errors discovered during the preparation of the 30 June 2012 financial statements of the Ventersdorp 
Local Municipality. 

 

Material under-spending of the conditional grant  

The Municipality has materially under-spent the conditional grants received for the year to the amount of R19 666 
137. As a result the Municipality has not achieved its objectives of ensuring sustainable development with regards 
to water and sanitation priorities in the province as well as providing basic municipal infrastructure backlogs for 
poor households, micro enterprises and social institutions servicing poor communities and implementation of the 
National Electrification Programme (NEP) that would have been funded by these grants. 

 
Additional matter 

I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 
Unaudited supplementary schedules 

The supplementary information set out on pages xx to xx does not form part of the financial statements and is 
presented as additional information. I have not audited these annexures and, accordingly, I do not express an 
opinion thereon. 

 
REPORT ON THER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
 
In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant 
to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and internal control, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion. 

 
Predetermined objectives 

I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the annual 
performance report as set out on pages XX to XX of the annual report.  

The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of 
usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether it is 
presented in accordance with the National Treasury annual reporting principles and whether the reported 
performance is consistent with the planned [objectives/ development priorities]. The usefulness of information 
further relates to whether indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable 
and time bound) and relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework for managing programme 
performance information (FMPPI). 

The reliability of the information in respect of the selected programmes / objectives is assessed to determine 
whether it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete). 

The material findings are as follows: 

 
Usefulness of information 

Section 46 of the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000) (MSA) requires the disclosure of measures 
taken to improve performance in the annual performance report where planned targets were not achieved. For a 
total of 55% of the planned targets not achieved no measures taken to improve performance were disclosed. In 
addition, adequate and reliable corroborating evidence could not be provided for 48% of the measures taken to 
improve performance that were disclosed in the annual performance report. The Municipality’s records did not 
permit the application of alternative audit. Consequently, I did not obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to 
satisfy myself as to the validity, accuracy and completeness of the measures taken to improve performance. 

Section 41(c) of the MSA requires that the integrated development plan should form the basis for the annual report, 
therefore requiring the consistency of objectives, indicators and targets between planning and reporting 
documents. A total of 56% of the reported targets are not consistent with the targets as per the approved integrated 
development plan. This is due to the lack of internal policies and procedures over the processes pertaining to the 
reporting of performance information 

The National Treasury FMPPI requires that performance indicators be well defined and verifiable and targets be 
specific, measureable and time bound: 
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 A total of 44% of the indicators were not verifiable in that valid processes and systems that produce the 
information on actual performance did not exist. 

 The required performance could not be measured for a total of 33% of the targets. 

 A total of 22% of the targets were not time bound in specifying a time period or deadline for delivery. 

 A total of 37% of the targets were not specific in clearly identifying the nature and the required level of 
performance. 

 A total of 44% of the indicators were not well defined, in that clear unambiguous data definitions were not 
available for data to be collected consistently. 

 

This was due to the fact that management was aware of the requirements of the FMPPI but did not receive the 
necessary training to enable application of the principles and a lack of key controls in the relevant systems of 
collection/collation/verification/storage of actual performance information 

 
Reliability of information 

The National Treasury FMPPI requires that processes and systems which produce the indicator should be 
verifiable. I was unable to obtain all the information and explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself as to 
the validity, accuracy and completeness of the actual reported performance of basic services and municipal 
infrastructure. This was due to lack of records management system and the institution’s records not permitting the 
application of alternative audit procedures.  

 
Additional matter 

I draw attention to the following matter below. This matter does not have an impact on the predetermined 
objectives audit findings reported above. 

 
Achievement of planned targets 

Of the total number of 118 targets planned for the year, 73 targets were not achieved during the year under review. 
This represents 62% of total planned targets that were not achieved during the year under review.This was mainly 
due to the fact that indicators and targets were not suitably developed during the strategic planning process 

 
Compliance with laws and regulations 

I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the Municipality has complied with applicable laws and regulations 
regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-
compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in 
terms of the PAA are as follows: 

 

Strategic planning and performance management 

The municipality did not implement a framework that describes and represents how the municipality’s cycle and 
processes of performance planning, monitoring, measurement, review, reporting and improvement will be 
conducted, organised and managed, including determining the roles of the different role players as required by 
section 38, 39, 40 and 41 of the MSA read with regulations 7 and 8 of the Municipal Planning and Performance 
Management Regulations, 2001. 

The municipality did not establish mechanisms to monitor and review its performance management system, as 
required by section 40 of the Municipal Systems Act. 

 
Budgets 

The municipality incurred expenditure that was not budgeted for in contravention of section 15 of the MFMA. 
Expenditure was incurred in excess of the limits of the amounts provided for in the votes of the approved budget, in 
contravention of section 15of the Municipal Finance Management Act. 

The Accounting Officer did not report in writing to the municipal council any impending or actual shortfalls in 
budgeted revenue, overspending of the municipality’s budget and steps taken to rectify such financial problems as 
required by section 70(1) of the MFMA. 

 
Annual financial statements, performance and annual report 

The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in accordance with the 
requirements of section 122 of the MFMA. Material misstatements identified by the auditors were not adequately 
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corrected, which resulted in the financial statements receiving a disclaimer opinion. 

The 2010/11 annual report was not tabled in the municipal council within seven months after the end of the 
financial year, as required by section 127(2) of the MFMA. 

The accounting officer did not make the 2010/11 annual report public immediately after the annual report was 
tabled in the council, as required by section 127(5)(a) of the MFMA. 

The annual performance report for the year under review does not include a comparison with the previous financial 
year and measures taken to improve performance, as required by section 46(1)(c) of the MSA. 

Audit committees 

The Municipality did not submit the financial statements for review to the Audit Committee. As a result the audit 
committee did not review the annual financial statements to provide the council with an authoritative and credible 
view of the financial position of the entity, its efficiency and effectiveness and its overall level of compliance with the 
MFMA, DoRA and (other applicable legislation), as required by section 166(2)(b) of the MFMA. 

The audit committee did not review the municipality’s performance management system and make 
recommendations to the council since the municipality did not provide these reports, as required by Municipal 
Planning and Performance Management Regulation 14(4)(a)(ii). 

 
Procurement and contract management 

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that all quotations were awarded in accordance with the 
legislative requirements and a procurement process which is fair, equitable, transparent and competitive, as 
selected quotations were not provided for audit. 

Goods and services with a transaction value of between R10 000 and R200 000 were procured without obtaining 
written price quotations from at least three different prospective providers as per the requirements of SCM 
regulation 17(a) & (c). 

The preference point system was not applied in all procurement of goods and services above R30 000 as required 
by section 2(a) of the Preferential Procurement Policy. 

The performance of contractors or providers was not monitored on a monthly basis, as required by section 
116(2)(b) of the MFMA. 

Awards were made to suppliers who did not submit a declaration on their employment by the state or their 
relationship to a person employed by the state as per the requirements of Municipal SCM regulation 13(c).  

 

Human resource management 

 

Senior managers directly accountable to the municipal manager did not sign annual performance agreements 
within one month of the beginning of the financial year, as required by sections 57(2)(a) of the MSA. 

 

Expenditure management 

Money owing by the Municipality was not always paid within 30 days of receiving an invoice or statement, as 
required by section 65(2)(e) of the MFMA. 

The accounting officer did not take effective steps to prevent unauthorized, irregular and fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure, as required by section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA. 

The municipality did not recover unauthorised, irregular or fruitless and wasteful expenditure from the liable person, 
as required by section 32(2) of the MFMA.  

 

Transfer of funds and/ or conditional grants 

The municipality did not evaluate its performance in respect of programmes funded by the allocation and /or submit 
the evaluation to the transferring national officer within two months after the end of the financial year, as required 
by section 12(6) of the Division of Revenue Act. 

Quarterly reports were not submitted to the transferring national officer and the National Treasury on municipal 
performance for the quarter against the targets stipulated in the infrastructure performance framework, within 30 
days after the end of each quarter, as required by section 11(2)(c)(ii) of the Division of Revenue Act. 

The municipality did not submit a draft performance framework submitted by 30 March 2011, the final approved 
performance framework by 07 June 2011 and proof that the performance framework and the performance targets 
have been ratified by a municipal council resolution prior to receipt of its first instalment of the grant allocation, as 
required by the Division of Revenue Grant Framework, Gazette No.34280. 

The municipality did not submit the 2010/11 annual reports to National Treasury by 15 December 2011, as required 
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by the Division of Revenue Grant Framework, Gazette No.34280. 

Unspent conditional grant funds not approved by the National Treasury for retention were not surrendered to 
National Revenue Fund, as required by section 20(1) of the Division of Revenue Act. 

The municipality did not comply with the requirements of the grant framework, as required by section 12(1) of the 
Division of Revenue Act. 

The municipality did not submit quarterly performance reports to the transferring national officer, the (relevant 
provincial treasury) and the National Treasury, within 30 days after the end of each quarter, as required by section 
12(2)(c) of the Division of Revenue Act. 

The municipality did not submit project implementation plans to the national department (CoGTA), as required by 
the Division of Revenue Grant Framework, Gazette No.34280. 

The municipality did not register its master plans for bulk infrastructure with the Integrated National Electrification 
Programme (INEP), as required by the Division of Revenue Grant Framework, Gazette No.34280. 

 
Revenue management 

Interest was not charged on all accounts in arrears as required by section 64(2)(g) of the MFMA. 

 

Asset management 

An adequate management, accounting and information system which accounts for assets was not in place, as 
required by section 63(2)(a) of the Municipal Finance Management Act. 

 
Waste management 

The municipality operated their waste disposal site without a waste management license or permit, in contravention 
of section 20(b) of the National Environmental Management: Waste Act, 2008 (Act No. 59 of 2008) (NEMWA) and 
section 20(1) of the Environmental Conservation Act, 1989 (Act No. 73 of 1989). 

The municipality's waste management and disposal activities contravened or failed to comply with the requirements 
of section 28(1) of the National  Environmental Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998) and sections 
16(1)(c)&(d) and  26(1)(b) of the NEMWA. 

 
Internal control 

I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and 
compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the fundamentals of internal control are 
limited to the significant deficiencies that resulted in the basis for disclaimer of opinion, the findings on the annual 
performance report and the findings on compliance with laws and regulations included in this report. 

 
Leadership 

Management failed to timely appoint sufficient appropriately skilled staff in key positions within the finance unit. 
Policies and procedures did not adequately guide financial and performance activities. Action plans designed to 
address prior year audit findings were not implemented and reflects negatively on management’s ability to address 
recurring audit findings. Effective leadership and oversight responsibility exercised regarding financial and 
performance reporting, compliance and related internal controls was inadequate since various material 
misstatements non-compliance issues were identified. 

 

Financial and performance management 

Management failed to implement effective controls to ensure that information in the financial statements and the 
report on predetermined objectives were reliable before submission for audit. This was mainly due to the inability of 
management to address the prior years’ audit findings and staff in the finance section not understanding the 
requirements of the financial reporting framework. The ignorance of management to address the repetitive findings 
relating to supply chain management regulations is indicative of financial misconduct. 

Governance 

There was no implementation of appropriate risk management activities to ensure regular risk assessment, 
management and reporting since no risk assessment was performed during the financial year and throughout the 
understanding of the internal controls of the municipality. Though the audit committee fulfilled its function, the 
municipality did not ensure that the audit committee promotes accountability and service delivery through 
evaluating and monitoring responses to risks and providing oversight over the effectiveness of the internal control 
environment, including financial and performance reporting and compliance with laws and regulations as the 
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annual financial statements and quarterly performance reports were not submitted to the audit committee for 
review. 

 
 

 

OTHER REPORTS 

Investigations 

Investigations by the Hawks as well as the SIU which were commissioned by the Presidency are currently in 
progress. However, the nature and reports related to these investigations are currently not available as none have 
been provided by these investigating agencies to management. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rustenburg 
 
30 November 2012  
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COMMENT ON AUDITOR-GENERAL’S OPINION YEAR 2011/2012 
 

VENTERSDOPRP MUNICIPALITY:  DRAFT ACTION PLAN 2011/2012 
 
Number Topic Question Response 

1 Annual report When was the annual report tabled before council Annual Report (AR) of the financial year 2011/2012 was 
approved by Council on 31/01/2013. This was after 
being submitted before MPAC. AR of 12/13 is adopted 
by Council on 29/08/2013.  

2 Property, plant and 
equipment 
 

What control measures have been implemented to ensure 
future compliance with GRAP 17, Property, plant and 
equipment and GRAP 16, Investment property 
 

The provincial treasury financed the appointment of 
service providers to unbundle the infrastructure assets 
and compile a GRAP compliant assets register. This 
project has been completed. 
The Manager Budget and Asset Management are the 
dedicated person to maintain it and reconcile to the 
general ledger. Appointment of Accountant Asset is to 
be to be done maintain the assets register. 

3 Non-submission of audit 
evidence 

Par 4, 6, 8, 10, 12, 13, 15, 17, 19, 22, 28, 32 and 44 relate to 
the non-submission of audit evidence. As supporting 
documentation is the basis for all accounting transactions 
and good governance, what assurance do you have that the 
accounting records are indeed reliable. 

The records management system was improved and 
registers were implemented to ensure completeness of 
account balances and account totals. Provincial treasury 
also appointed PwC to assist with the compilation of 
GRAP compliant financial statements. PwC is also 
assisting the municipality with the analysis and 
correction of errors in opening balances. 
Prior year adjustment is also done in the current 
financial year.  Audit files of prior year adjustments are 
submitted to the auditors meaning prior year’s figures 
were adjusted and the auditors are auditing them in 
current financial year. 

4 Investment property What control measures have subsequently been 
implemented to ensure compliance with GRAP 16, 
Investment Property? 

The Manager Budget and Asset Management are the 
dedicated officials to maintain it and reconcile to the 
general ledger. The GRAP compliant asset register is 
compiled including investment property register.  
Monthly reconciliations will be done. 

5 Value added tax What controls have been implemented to ensure the correct 
provision for value added tax refunds? 

The value added tax control account is reconciled with 
expenditure accounts to ensure the completion of 
accurate and complete value added tax returns. 
VAT returns are processed monthly reconciled to the 
general ledger. The CFO review them  
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6 Inventory, other financial 
liabilities, revenue, 
expenditure, accumulated 
surplus, capital 
commitments, contingent 
liabilities and unauthorised 
expenditure 

6.1 Why were prior year qualifications not addressed before 
compiling the financial statements 
6.2 What control measures have subsequently been 
implemented to ensure that all prior year findings are 
addressed before compiling the financial statements? 
6.3 Have the relevant corresponding figures subsequently 
been investigated and adjusted. 

6.1. Prior year qualifications were addressed from 
January 2013. The other qualifications needed 
specialists to address them.  These included 
reinstatement of AFS and unbundling of assets. They 
were, however, adjusted while the 2012/2013 financial 
statements were compiled. 
6.2 A financial management action plan was designed to 
address all the issues raised in the audit report. They 
were adjusted during the compilation of the financial 
statement. 
6.3 Provincial treasury appointed PwC to assist the 
municipality with the analysis and correction of errors in 
opening balances. 

 

 
Number Topic Question Response 

7 Expenditure What monitoring controls have been implemented to ensure 
that lease are correctly classified in accordance with 
GRAP13 before finalising the financial statements as this 
matter was also reported in the prior year report. 

A finance lease register and an operating lease register 
was designed and implemented to ensure the accuracy 
and completeness and appropriate disclosure in the 
financial statements. 
Manager Expenditure will maintain the finance lease 
register with contracts and reconciliation to the general 
ledger done monthly. 

8 Related party disclosures 
 

What control measures have been implemented to ensure 
disclosure requirements of GRAP, IPSAS 20, Related party 
disclosures? 
 

A related party register was designed and implemented 
to maintain the accuracy and completeness of related 
party transactions and related party disclosures. 
Section 56 & 57 managers and councillors declare their 
interest when they are appointed. The files are 
maintained at Corporate Service Department. The 
disclosure of interests files are updated yearly.  

9 Cash flow statement Has the formula for calculating cash flows from operating 
activities and cash generated from operations subsequently 
been adjusted to appropriately account for non-cash items in 
the cash flow statement. 

The formula for calculating cash flows from operating 
activities was corrected to ensure that non-cash items 
are accurately recorded and disclosed in the cash flow 
statement. 
The whole cash flow statement for 2012/2013 was 
recalculated and all the non-cash items in the cash flow 
statement were appropriately accounted for. A detailed 
cash flow working paper showing all the cash flow 
workings were submitted to AG for audit. 
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10 Irregular expenditure Has irregular expenditure of R2 133 073 in respect of awards 
to suppliers in contravention with the procurement 
requirements as well as the irregular expenditure of 
R19 758 876 disclosed in note 44 of the financial statements 
and the R815 161 for which audit evidence could not be 
obtained, been investigated and dealt with in terms section 
32 and chapter 15 of the MFMA. Please submit details of all 
steps taken in this regard. 

The investigation done by municipality is that these 
expenditures happened because of the late payments of 
creditors accounts as a result of cash flow problem the 
municipality encountered then. An item was submitted to 
Council to authorise these expenditure as irrecoverable. 
The expenditure related to SCM procedures not followed 
to the latter. Instead of obtaining three quotations one 
was received and deviation report submitted. 

11 Fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure 

Has the fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R9 756 574 as 
disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements as well as the 
further R1 073 142 and the prior year fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure of R6 594 441 and R1 558 726 been 
investigated and dealt with in terms of section 32 and chapter 
15 of the MFMA. Please submit details of all steps taken in 
this regard. 

An item to write-off these expenditures as irrecoverable 
was submitted to Council. However a register is kept 
and submitted to Council and Audit committee monthly 
for adopting these expenditures. The expenditures relate 
to interest payments and penalty charges for paying 
creditors late. 

 

 
Number Topic Question Response 

13 Unauthorised expenditure 13.1 Has the overstatement of unauthorised expenditure by 
R2 488 407 as disclosed in note 42 to the financial 
statements subsequently been adjusted. 
13.2 Has the actual unauthorised expenditure been 
investigated and dealt with in terms of section 32 and chapter 
15 of the MFMA. Please submit details of all steps taken in 
this regard. 

The restatements of the figures of the previous year’s 
financial statements have been done when compiling 
current financial statements.  
13.2 An item was submitted to Council to condone the 
expenditures after the municipality realised the 
expenditures were from late payments of the creditors. 

14 Material losses What control measures have been implemented to ensure 
compliance with the requirements of section 125(2)(d)(i) of 
the MFMA regarding the disclosure of particulars of material 
losses. 

A loss register was designed and implemented to ensure 
compliance with the disclosure requirement of section 
125 of the MFMA. 
Material losses disclosure was done in 2012/2013 
financial year and 2011/2012 figures were disclosed. For 
future purposes the material losses will be monitored 
monthly in conjunction with Engineering department. 

15 Material under-spending of 
conditional grants 

Why did the municipality under-spend the conditional grants 
received for the year to the amount of R19 666 137  

The projects for the 2011/2012 were approved very late 
in the financial year.  This was because projects 
registered MIG had to be reprioritised and new projects 
implemented. This caused the delay in appointments of 
consultants and contractors.   
The municipality managed to provide the basic services 
to the communities. The projects which were approved 
late in the financial year continued to be funded in the 
financial year 2012/2013.  
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16 Predetermined objectives 16.1 What control measures have been implemented to 
ensure compliance with section 46 of the Municipal Systems 
Act and section 123(c) of the MFMA in respect of the annual 
performance report. 
16.2 What internal policies and procedures have 
subsequently been implemented over the processes 
pertaining to the reporting of performance information.  

16.1 The municipality must ensure they align the IDP, 
the budget, SDBIP and performance agreements and 
report quarterly to complying with section 46 of MSA and 
MFMA.  
16.2 The quarterly reports are compiled by each 
directorate and submitted to both Council and audit 
committee for consideration/approval. Currently the 
reporting has only been done to Council and Audit 
committee quarterly. MPAC has been receiving reports 
for oversight. The performance committee will be 
appointed to deal with quarterly assessment of senior 
managers.   

17 Compliance with laws and 
regulations 

17.1 How will the shortcomings in the internal controls be 
addressed that resulted in the compliance deviations that 
have been reported. 
17.2 What action plan has council decided on to address the 
failure of management to implement proper record-keeping 
and appoint sufficient, appropriately skilled staff in key 
positions within the finance unit. 

17.1 The municipality will ensure they comply with the 
regulations, laws and acts. It is also a concern to the 
municipality that the internal control procedures are 
addressed with a view of minimising and doing away 
completely with non-compliance. 
17.2 Electronic filing of documents by scanning 
vouchers, letters and other important documents is 
implemented.  Key positions in finance have been filled 
which will address the failure to maintain proper record 
keeping of documents in the department.  

18 Investigations What is the current status regarding the investigations by the 
Hawks and the SIU 

The investigations are on-going with source documents 
requested by SIU submitted. 

19. Interest charged on Eskom, 
INCA loans and AG 

How is the municipality going to address the interest charge? The municipality has made arrangements with Eskom, 
INCA loans and AG to pay-off their outstanding balance. 
The INCA loan is with the lawyers to negotiate for the 
interest charge on outstanding balance to be written off. 
The matter is still on-going with lawyers. 
The municipality is part of eight municipalities assisted 
by Department of Local Government and Traditional 
Affair to increase its revenue base. The department has 
entered into an agreement with MBD Credit Solutions to 
assist municipalities to categorise the municipalities’ 
debtor’s books so that municipalities are able to identify 
which debtors owes how much and which debtor can 
pay as well as how much to write-off as bad debts.  



 

120 | P a g e  

 

 
 
COMPONENT B: AUDITOR’S GENERAL REPORT 2012/2013 
 
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE NORTH WEST PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE     
AND THE COUNCIL OF THE VENTERSDORP LOCAL MUNICIPALITY 2012/2013 
 
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

Introduction 

1. I was engaged to audit the financial statements of the Ventersdorp Local Municipality set out on 
pages XX to XX, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013, the 
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and the cash flow statement 
for the year then ended and the notes, comprising of a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

  
Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements 

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these  financial 
statements in accordance with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (SA Standards of GRAP), the requirements of the Municipal Finance Management Act of 
South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA), the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2012 
(Act No. 5 of 2012) (DoRA), and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of  financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
Auditor-General’s responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on the  financial statements based on conducting the audit 
in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the 
General Notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Because of the 
matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, however, I was unable to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. 

 
Basis for disclaimer of opinion 

Property, plant and equipment 

4. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for property, plant and equipment as the 
municipality did not have adequate systems in place to maintain records of property, plant and 
equipment. In addition, property, plant and equipment was overstated by R146 996 236. I was 
unable to confirm the property, plant and equipment by alternative means. Consequently I was 
unable to determine whether any further adjustments to property, plant and equipment of 
R269 436 118 (2012: R229 070 739) and depreciation expense of R20 198 139 (2012: R5 362 744) 
as disclosed in the note 11 and 28 respectively were necessary. 

 
Unspent conditional grants  

5. During 2012, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about unspent conditional 
grants. I was unable to confirm the unspent conditional grants by alternative means. Consequently I 
was unable to determine whether any adjustment to unspent conditional grants of R18 264 445 was 
necessary. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2012 was 
modified accordingly. My opinion on the current period’s financial statements is also modified 
because of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the current period’s figures. 

 
Consumer debtors 

6. During 2012, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about consumer debtors. I 
was unable to confirm the consumer debtor by alternative means. Consequently I was unable to 
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determine whether any adjustment to consumer debtors of R15 367 591 was necessary. My audit 
opinion on the financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2012 was modified accordingly. My 
opinion on the current period’s financial statements is also modified because of the possible effect of 
this matter on the comparability of the current period’s figures. 

 
Investment property 

7. The municipality did not have adequate systems in place to maintain records of investment property, 
which resulted in investment property being understated by R13 965 866 (2012: R13 965 866). In 
addition, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the amounts disclosed as 
investment property in the financial statements as title deeds for investment property were not 
provided for audit. I was unable to confirm the investment property by alternative means. 
Consequently I was unable to determine whether any further adjustments to investment property of 
R15 445 866 (2012:R15 445 866) disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements was necessary. 

 
Payables from exchange transactions 

8. The municipality did not reclassify receivables with credit balances as payables as required by SA 
Standard of GRAP, GRAP 1, Presentation of financial statements. Consumer debtors with credit 
balances were incorrectly netted off against receivables. Consequently, payables from exchange 
transactions is understated by R2 039 360 and receivables from exchange transactions is 
overstated by R2 039 360.  

 
Expenditure 

9. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the municipality received the good 
and services paid for during the year, due to a lack of internal controls over the receipt of goods / 
services prior to the initial entry into the financial records.  I was unable to confirm repairs and 
maintenance and general expenses by alternative means.  Consequently, I was unable to determine 
whether any further adjustments relating to repairs and maintenance of R4 249 964 and general 
expenses of R23 096 644 as disclosed in the statement of financial performance was necessary. 

 
Revenue 

10. During 2012, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for revenue from licenses 
and permits. I was unable to confirm the amount of licenses and permits by alternative means. 
Consequently I was unable to determine whether any adjustments relating to the revenue from 
licenses and permits of R2 001 272 disclosed in the financial statements was necessary. 

 
Accumulated surplus 

11. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for adjustments made to the 
accumulated surplus, due to limitations placed on my audit. I was unable to confirm these 
adjustments by alternative means.  Consequently I was unable to determine whether any 
adjustments to the accumulated surplus of R243 691 668 (2012: R205 474 398) disclosed in the 
financial statements was necessary. 

 
Cash flow statement 

12. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the corresponding figures for cash 
flows from operating activities and cash generated from operations. I was unable to confirm the 
corresponding figures by alternative means. Consequently I was unable to determine whether any 
adjustments to the cash flow statement for the corresponding year was necessary. 

 
Budget information 

13. The municipality did not adhere to the budget presentation and disclosure requirements of SA 
Standards of GRAP, GRAP 24, Presentation of budget information in the financial statements. The 
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts were not prepared for all of the financial 
statements (statement of financial position, statement of cash flows and statement of changes in net 



 

122 | P a g e  

 

assets) that were included in the publicly available budget. Budgets and explanations for variances 
between actual and budget amounts were not disclosed.  
 

Unauthorised expenditure 

14. During 2012, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about unauthorised 
expenditure. I was unable to confirm the unauthorised expenditure by alternative means. 
Consequently I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to unauthorised expenditure stated 
at R11 628 994 was necessary. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the period ended 30 
June 2012 was modified accordingly. My opinion on the current period’s financial statements is also 
modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the current period’s 
figures. 

 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

15. During 2012, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure. I was unable to confirm the fruitless and wasteful expenditure by alternative means. 
Consequently I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure of R9 824 926 was necessary. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the 
period ended 30 June 2012 was modified accordingly. My opinion on the current period’s financial 
statements is also modified because of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the 
current period’s figures. 

 
Irregular expenditure 

16. The municipality made payments in contravention of the supply chain management requirements 
which were not included in irregular expenditure, resulting in irregular expenditure being understated 
by R7 745 958 (2012: R2 133 073). In addition, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence for the amounts disclosed as irregular expenditure in the financial statements as contracts 
and bid documents were not provided for audit. I was unable to confirm the irregular expenditure by 
alternative means. Consequently I was unable to determine whether any further adjustments to 
irregular expenditure of R65 175 366 (2012: R35 924 382) disclosed in note 45 to the financial 
statements was necessary. 

 
Aggregation of immaterial uncorrected misstatements 

17. The financial statements as a whole are materially misstated due to the cumulative effect of 
numerous individually immaterial uncorrected misstatements in the following elements making up 
the statement of financial position and the notes to the financial statements:  

 Payables from exchange transactions reflected as R68 782 974 is understated by R619 207. 

 Inventory reflected as R19 362 517 is understated by R851 733. 
 

In addition, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence and I was unable to confirm 
the following elements by alternative means:  

 Payables from exchange transactions of R150 150 as included in the disclosed balance of 
R68 782 974. 

 Inventory of R615 008 as included in the disclosed balance of R19 362 517. 
 

 Commitments of R626 359 as included in the disclosed balance of R9 130 210 

 

As a result, I was unable to determine whether any further adjustments to these elements were 
necessary. 

 
Opinion 

18. Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion 
paragraphs, I have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis 
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for an audit opinion. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the financial statements. 
 

Emphasis of matters 

19. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

 
Restatement of corresponding figures 

20. As disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 2012 have 
been restated as a result of errors discovered at, and for the year ended 30 June 2013. 

 
Significant uncertainties 

21. With reference to note 37 to the financial statements, the municipality is the defendant to a number 
of legal claims. The municipality is opposing these claims based on legal advice from the 
municipality’s legal counsel. The ultimate outcome of these matters cannot presently be determined 
and no provision for any liability that may result has been made in the financial statements.  

 
Material losses 

22. As disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements, material losses of R13 139 353 (2012: 
R13 170 023) were incurred as a result of water and electricity distribution losses.  

 
Material under-spending of the conditional grants 

23. As disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements, the municipality has materially under spent the 
conditional grants received of R20 139 871 (2012: R18 264 445). As a consequence, service 
delivery was negatively impacted. 

 
Additional matter 

24. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 
Unaudited supplementary schedules 

25. The supplementary information set out on pages 43 to 75 does not form part of the financial 
statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited these annexures and, 
accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon. 

 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

 
26. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following 

findings relevant to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and 
regulations and internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion. 

 
Predetermined objectives 

27. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in 
the annual performance report as set out on pages XX to XX of the annual report.  

28. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall 
criteria of usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report 
relates to whether it is presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting 
principles and whether the reported performance is consistent with the planned development 
priorities or objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether indicators and 
targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and 
relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance 
information (FMPPI). 

29. The reliability of the information in respect of the selected development priorities and objectives is 
assessed to determine whether it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and 
complete). 
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30. The material findings are as follows: 

 
Usefulness of information 

31. Section 46 of the Municipal Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000 (MSA) requires disclosure in the annual 
performance report of measures taken to improve performance where planned targets were not 
achieved.  Adequate and reliable corroborating evidence could not be provided for all measures 
taken to improve performance as disclosed in the annual performance report.  The municipality’s 
records did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures. Consequently, I did not obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the reliability of the measures taken to 
improve performance. 

32. Section 41(c) of the MSA requires that the integrated development plan should form the basis for the 
annual report, therefore requiring consistency of objectives, indicators and targets between planning 
and reporting documents. A total of 22% of the reported indicators are not consistent with the 
indicators as per the approved service delivery budget implementation plan. This is due to the lack 
of adequate performance reporting systems. 

33. Section 25(2) of the MSA determines that an integrated development plan adopted by a municipal 
council may be amended in terms of section 34 and remains in force until an integrated 
development plan (IDP) is adopted by the next elected council.  Therefore, if the integrated 
development plan is changed in-year this process has to take place in accordance with the process 
as prescribed per section 34 of the MSA. A total of 100% of the changes made to the development 
priorities, performance indicators and targets reported in the annual performance report were 
changed in-year without following the process as prescribed in section 34 of the MSA and/or without 
adoption by the council of the municipality.   This was due to the lack of adequate performance 
reporting systems. 

34. The FMPPI requires that performance indicators be well defined and verifiable and targets be 
specific, measurable and time bound: 

 A total of 55% of the targets were not specific in clearly identifying the nature and the required 
level of performance.   

 The required performance could not be measured for a total of 45% of the targets. 

 A total of 81% of the indicators were not well defined in that clear, unambiguous data definitions 
were not available to allow for data to be collected consistently. 

 A total of 81% of the indicators were not verifiable in that valid processes and systems that 
produce the information on actual performance did not exist. 

 
This was due to the fact that management was aware of the requirements of the FMPPI but did not 
have the capacity to enable application of its principles. 

 
Reliability of information 

35. The FMPPI requires that institutions should have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and 
store performance information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual 
achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets. I was unable to obtain the 
information and explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself as to the reliability of 
information presented with respect to the development priority “Community services” and 
“Engineering services”. This was due to the fact that the institution could not provide sufficient 
appropriate evidence in support of the information presented with respect to the development 
priority. 

36. The FMPPI requires that institutions should have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and 
store performance information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual 
achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets. Significantly important targets with 
respect to the development priority “Local economic development” are materially misstated due to 
the lack of standard operating procedures for the accurate recording of actual achievements. 

 
Compliance with laws and regulations 
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37. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the municipality has complied with applicable laws 
and regulations regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My 
findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations as 
set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA are as follows:  

 
Strategic planning and performance management 

38. The IDP adopted by the municipality does not reflect and identify the municipal council’s financial 
plan, as required by sections 26 and 41 of the MSA. 

39. The performance management system of the municipality did not provide for the monitoring of 
performance and for the measuring and review of performance at least once per year, with regard to 
each of those development priorities and objectives and against the key performance indicators and 
targets set, as required by section 41 of the MSA.  

40. The performance management system of the municipality did not provide for taking steps to improve 
performance with regard to those development priorities and objectives where performance targets 
are not met, as required by section 41(1)(d) of the MSA. 

41. The municipality did not set key performance indicators, including input indicators, output indicators 
and outcome indicators, in respect of each of the development priorities and objectives set out in the 
IDP, as required by section 41(1)(a) of the MSA and the Municipal planning and performance 
management regulations 1 and 9(1)(a). 

42. The accounting officer of the municipality did not by 25 January assess the performance of the 
municipality during the first half of the financial year, as required by section 72(1)(a)(ii) of the MFMA 
. 

43. The municipality did not have and maintain effective, efficient and transparent systems of internal 
controls regarding performance management as required by section 62(1)(c)(i) of the MFMA. 

 
Budgets 

44. Expenditure was incurred in excess of the limits of the amounts provided for in the votes of the 
approved budget, in contravention of section 15 of the MFMA. 

 
Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports 

45. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in 
accordance with the requirements of section 122 of the MFMA. Material misstatements of current 
liabilities, expenditure and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial 
statements were subsequently corrected, but the uncorrected material misstatements that could not 
be provided resulted in the financial statements receiving a disclaimer audit opinion. 

46. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the council's oversight report on the 
2011/12 annual report was made public within seven days of its adoption, as required by section 
129(3) of the MFMA. 

47. The annual report for the year under review does not include, an assessment by the accounting 
officer of any arrears on municipal taxes and service charges, the accounting officer’s assessment 
of the municipality’s performance against measurable performance objectives for revenue collection 
from each revenue source and for each budget vote and particulars of any corrective action taken or 
to be taken in response to issues raised in the audit report , as required by section 121 of the 
MFMA. 

48. The annual report of the municipality did not reflect information on compliance with prescribed 
minimum competencies as required by the Municipal Regulations on Minimum Competency Levels 
regulation 14(2)(b). 

 
 

Audit committee 

49. The audit committee did not respond to the council on the issues raised in the audit reports of the 
Auditor-General, as required by section 166(2)(c) of the MFMA. 

50. The audit committee did not submit, at least twice during the financial year, an audit report on the 
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review of the performance management system to the council, as required by Municipal planning 
and performance management regulation 14(4)(a)(iii). 

 
Procurement and contract management 

51. Goods and services with a transaction value of below R200 000 were procured without obtaining the 
required price quotations as required by SCM regulations 17(a) & (c). 

52. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that goods and services of a transaction 
value above R200 000 were procured by means of inviting competitive bids, as required by SCM 
regulation 19(a).  

53. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that bid specifications for procurement of 
goods and services through competitive bids were drafted in an unbiased manner that allowed all 
potential suppliers to offer their goods or services, as per required by SCM regulation 27(2)(a). 

54. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that bid specifications were drafted by 
bid specification committees which were composed of one or more officials of the municipality as 
required by SCM regulation 27(3). 

55. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that bids were evaluated by bid 
evaluation committees which were composed of officials from the departments requiring the goods 
or services and at least one SCM practitioner of the municipality as required by SCM regulation 
28(2). 

56. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that contracts and quotations were 
awarded to bidders based on points given for criteria that were stipulated in the original invitation for 
bidding and quotations, as required by SCM regulations 21(b) and 28(1)(a) and Preferential 
Procurement Regulations. 

57. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that bid adjudication was always done by 
committees which were composed in accordance with SCM regulation 29(2). 

58. Awards were made to bidders other than those recommended by the bid evaluation committee 
without ratification by the accounting officer, as required by SCM regulation 29(5)(b). 

59. The preference point system was not applied in all procurement of goods and services above R30 
000 as required by section 2(a) of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act and SCM 
regulation 28(1)(a). 

60. Contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders based on preference points that were not 
allocated and/or calculated in accordance with the requirements of the Preferential Procurement 
Policy Framework Act and its regulations. 

61. The performance of contractors or providers was not monitored on a monthly basis, as required by 
section 116(2)(b) of the MFMA. 

62. The contract performance and monitoring measures and methods were insufficient to ensure 
effective contract management, as required by section 116(2)(c) of the MFMA. 

63. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that construction contracts were 
awarded to contractors that were registered with the Construction Industry Development Board 
(CIDB) and qualified for the contract in accordance with section 18(1) of the CIDB Act and CIDB 
regulations 17 and 25(7A). 

64. Construction projects were not always registered with the CIDB, as required by section 22 of the 
CIDB Act and CIDB regulation 18. 

65. Contracts and quotations were awarded to providers whose tax matters had not been declared by 
the South African Revenue Service to be in order, as required by SCM regulation 43. 

66. Contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders who did not submit a declaration on whether they 
are employed by the state or connected to any person employed by the state, as required by SCM 
regulation 13(c). 

 
67. Awards were made to providers who are persons in the service of the municipality and whose 

principal shareholders are persons in service of the municipality in contravention of SCM regulations 
44.  Furthermore, the provider failed to declare that he/she was in the service of the municipality, as 
required by SCM regulation 13(c). 
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68. Prospective providers were not invited to apply for listing on the prospective providers lists for 
procuring goods and services through quotations at least once a year as per the requirements of 
SCM regulations 14(1)(a)(ii) and 14(2). 

69. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that contracts and quotations were 
awarded to bidders that scored the highest points in the evaluation process, as required by of 
section 2(1)(f) of Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act.  

70. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that all contracts were awarded in 
accordance with the legislative requirements and a procurement process which is fair, equitable, 
transparent and competitive, as contracts and bid evaluation documents were not submitted for 
audit. 

 
Human resource management and compensation 

70. The municipality did not develop and adopt appropriate systems (policies) and procedures to 
monitor measure and evaluate performance of staff in contravention of section 67(d) of the MSA.  

 
Expenditure management 

71. Money owing by the municipality was not always paid within 30 days or an agreed period, as 
required by section 65(2)(e) of the MFMA. 

72. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure, as required by section 62(1)(d) of the MFMA. 

 
Conditional grants received 

73. The municipality did not submit quarterly performance reports to the transferring national officer, the 
provincial treasury and the National Treasury, within 30 days after the end of each quarter, as 
required by section 12(2)(c) of the Division of Revenue Act (DORA). 

74. The municipality did not evaluate its performance in respect of programmes funded by the Municipal 
Infrastructure Grant, the Local Government Financial Management Grant, the Municipal Systems 
Improvement Grant and the Integrated National Electrification Programme Grant within two months 
after the end of the financial year, as required by section 12(5) of the DORA. 

75. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the municipality registered its 
master plans for bulk infrastructure with the Integrated National Electrification Programme, as 
required by the Division of Revenue Grant Framework, Gazette No. 35399. 

76. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the municipality submitted MFMA 
implementation plans to National Treasury to address weaknesses in financial management, as 
required by the Division of Revenue Grant Framework, Gazette No. 35399. 

77. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the municipality submitted its signed 
activity plan the national department (CoGTA), as required by the Division of Revenue Grant 
Framework, Gazette No. 35399. 

78. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the municipality submitted, within 10 
days after the end of each month, its monthly expenditure reports to the national department 
(CoGTA), as required by the Division of Revenue Grant Framework, Gazette No. 35399. 

 
Revenue management 

79. An effective system of internal control for debtors was not in place, as required by section 64(2)(f) of 
the MFMA. 

 
 

 

Asset management 

80. An adequate management, accounting and information system which accounts for assets was not in 
place, as required by section 63(2)(a) of the MFMA 
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81. An effective system of internal control for assets was not in place, as required by section 63(2)(c) of 
the MFMA. 

 
Liability management 

82. An adequate management, accounting and information system which accounts for liabilities was not 
in place, as required by section 63(2)(a) of the MFMA. 

83. An effective system of internal control for liabilities (including a liability register) was not in place, as 
required by section 63(2)(c)  of the MFMA. 

 
Consequences management 

84. Unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred by the municipality was not 
investigated to determine if any person is liable for the expenditure, in accordance with the 
requirements of section 32(2) of the MFMA. 

85. The condoning of irregular expenditure was not approved by the appropriate relevant authority, in 
accordance with the requirements of sections 1 and 170 of the MFMA. 

86. Authorisation of unauthorised expenditure was not done through an adjustment budget, as required 
by section 32(2) of the MFMA. 

 
Waste management 

87. The municipality operated its waste disposal sites and wastewater treatment facilities without a 
license or permit in contravention of section 20(b) of the National Environmental Management 
Waste Act, 2008 (Act No. 59 of 2008) (NEMWA), section 24(2)(a) of the National Environmental 
Management Act, 1998 (Act No. 107 of 1998) (NEMA), section 20(1) of the Environmental 
Conservation  Act, 1989 (Act No. 73 of 1989) (ECA) and section 22(1)(b) of the National Water Act, 
1998 (Act No. 36 of 1998) (NWA). 

88. The municipality’s operational activities at its waste disposal site and wastewater treatment facility 
contravened or failed to comply with the requirements of a waste management permit or license and 
the regulatory provisions in terms of section 67(1)(f)&(h) of the NEMWA and section 29(4) of the 
ECA in instances where such were issued. 

89. The municipality’s waste management and disposal activities contravened or failed to comply with 
the requirements of section 28(1) of the NEMA, section 19 of the NWA and sections 16(1)(c)&(d) 
and 26(1)(b) of the NEMWA. 

 
Internal control 

90. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance 
report and compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the 
fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant deficiencies that resulted in the basis for 
disclaimer of opinion, the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance 
with laws and regulations included in this report.  

 
Leadership 

91. Leadership did not ensure that the performance of the municipality is not sufficiently measured 
against predetermined objectives, indicators and targets as required by the MFMA. Management did 
not establish and communicate some policies and procedures to enable and support understanding 
and execution of internal control objectives, processes, and responsibilities. Existing internal 
controls, including IT systems did not allow management to ensure adequate monitoring of financial 
and performance information resulting in material misstatements identified in the financial 
statements and material deviation from legislation being reported. 

 
Financial and performance management 

92. Management failed to implement effective controls to ensure that information in the financial 
statements and the report on predetermined objectives were reliable before submission for audit. 
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Management could not provide evidence in support of the information presented in the annual 
performance report and documents were not submitted to verify compliance with legislation.  
 
Governance 

93. The risks identified during the risk assessment process relating to performance reporting and 
compliance with laws and regulations were not adequately addressed in the risk management 
strategy. Though the audit committee and internal audit fulfilled their functions, the municipality did 
not adequately respond to the concerns raised by the audit committee, and internal audit 
recommendations resulting in the internal control environment over financial and performance 
information and compliance with laws and regulations being ineffective. 

 
OTHER REPORTS 

 
Investigations 

94. An investigation is currently being conducted by the Public Protector on alleged maladministration in 
the awarding of tenders by the municipality. The investigation was still ongoing at the reporting date. 

95. Investigations by the Special Investigation Unit which were commissioned by the Presidency are 
currently in progress. However, the nature and reports related to these investigations are currently 
not available as it has not been provided by this investigating agency to management. 

 
 

 
 
 
Rustenburg  
 

 
30 November 2013 
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COMMENT ON AUDITOR-GENERAL’S OPINION YEAR 2012/2013 
 

VENTERSDOPRP MUNICIPALITY:  DRAFT ACTION PLAN 2012/2013 

Finding raised by the Auditor General Proposed Action 
Responsible 

Official Target date Status 

          

Unspent Conditional Grants         

Ex.156. Unspent Grant: Prior year error not 
adjusted appropriately The opening balance for 2013/14 will be investigated 

and adjusted accordingly. CFO 30-Jun-14   

 Borrowings & long-term loans         

Ex.43 Other financial liabilities: Differences 
identified between loan amortisation schedule 
and GL (AR) 

The opening balance for 2013/14 will be investigated 
and adjusted accordingly. CFO 30-Jun-14   

 Cash flow statements         

Ex.68. Cash Flow Statement - Inaccuracies 
identified in the cash flow statement The consultants have been instructed to correct the 

cash flow statement. The 2013/14 afs shall reflect the 
adjusted figures CFO 30-Jun-14   

 Commitments         

Ex.35: Commitments - Tender 
documents/contracts not submitted for audit 

The CFO will investigate the deficiency and report 
findings to the AO. The contract register will be 
updated. CFO 30-Jun-14   

 Employee costs         

Ex.1: Employee cost: Skills retention policy not in 
place 

A skills retention policy will be developed for approval 
by Council 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.11: Employee Cost - Annual leave application 
forms approved after leave taken 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.12: Employee cost: Leave taken not captured 
on time on leave system 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   
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Ex.13: Employee cost: Difference between leave 
form and leave system 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.14: Employee cost: Inappropriate record 
keeping of leave forms 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.15: Employee Cost: Leave application forms 
not in the files 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.16: Employee cost: Study leave days taken 
inappropriately 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.17: Employee Cost: Family responsibility 
leave taken without supporting evidence 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.18: Employee Cost: Salary overpayment 
The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.37: Employee Cost - Salary Overpayment 
The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.48 Employee Cost: PAYE differences 
between recalculated and Deducted. 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.49: Employee Cost: January 2013 Salary 
increase not performed for employees. 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.50 Employee Cost : Differences between SDL 
paid and SDL recalculated 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.86: Employee Cost :High Vacancy rate A new organogram was designed for approval by the 
Council during January 2014. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.87: Employee cost : HR - PMS Policy not 
being  developed 

A performance management policy is in the process of 
being developed. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.88: Employee Cost: Minimum Competency 
requirements is not disclosed in the draft annual 
report 

The annual report was adjusted and now included the 
minimum competency requirements 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   
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Ex.102. Employee  Cost- Sick leave incorrectly 
accounted for 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.117.Employee Cost - Differences between 
leave encashment value calculated and value 
per system 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

Ex.131. Employee Cost-HR assessment: 
Advertisement of vacant Post not done within six 
months. 

The Director Corporate services will investigate the 
deficiency and report findings to the AO. Correctives 
measures will be implemented as required. 

Director Corporate 
Services 31-Mar-14   

 Planning / Internal Control         

Ex.9: Planning - No approved fraud prevention 
plan A fraud prevention was designed and will be adopted 

by Council during January 2014. CFO 31-Jan-14   

Ex.10: Planning: Approved delegation of 
authority not submitted for audit 

Municipal delegations were reviewed and the updated 
delegations will be adopted by Council during January 
2014. CFO 31-Jan-14   

Ex.21. Planning: Journals policy A journal policy was developed and will be adopted by 
Council during January 2014. CFO 31-Jan-14   

Ex. 22: Planning: Internal control deficiencies in 
the internal control environment 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.32: Planning - Weaknesses identified in the 
overall control environment 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.171. SCM : Tax Clearance Certificate not 
submitted 

The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Unauthorised, Irregular or Fruitless and 
Wasteful Expenditure         

Ex.115. Unauthorised expenditure - Opening 
balance not corrected 

Opening balances will be investigated and the required 
adjustments will be effected. CFO 30-Jun-14   
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Ex.116. Unauthorised, Irregular or Fruitless & 
Wasteful expenditure - Information requested not 
submitted 

The CFO will investigate the deficiency and report to 
the AO. Corrective measures will be instituted as 
required. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.143. Fruitless & Wasteful expenditure: 
Opening balance (misstatements from prior year 
carried forward) 

Opening balances will be investigated and the required 
adjustments will be effected. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.144. Irregular expenditure - Opening balance 
not adjusted Opening balances will be investigated and the required 

adjustments will be effected. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.164. Prior year errors - Prior year errors not 
corrected in current financial year 

Opening balances will be investigated and the required 
adjustments will be effected. CFO 30-Jun-14   

 Compliance         

Ex.2: Compliance: HR - Performance 
assessment and evaluation not conducted for 
s57 employees 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. 

Municipal 
Manager     

Ex.52: Compliance: Annual Report & AFS - Draft 
Annual Report for 2012/2013 does not contain all 
schedules as required by the MFM 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. 

Municipal 
Manager     

Ex.53: Compliance: Audit Committee: The audit 
committee did not respond to issues raised by 
the AGSA in the audit report 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. 

Municipal 
Manager     

Ex.55: Compliance: Budgets - Monthly budget 
statements were not placed on the municipality's 
website 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO     

Ex.62. Compliance: Budgets - Monthly budgets 
not presented in accordance with s71 of the 
MFMA 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO     

Ex.63. Compliance: Annual Report & AFS - 
Material misstatement identified in the financial 
statements submitted for audit Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO     

Ex.65: Compliance - Annual Report & AFS: 
Information requested not submitted 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. 

Municipal 
Manager     

Ex.83. Compliance - Budgets not made public 
within legislated timelines Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. 
Municipal 
Manager     

Ex.84. Compliance - Budgets - Expenditure was 
incurred in excess of the approved budget 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO     

Ex.103. Compliance - Budgets: Shifting of funds 
current year 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO     
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Ex.105. Compliance - Consequences 
Management - Unauthorised, irregular and 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure not 
investigated 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. 

Municipal 
Manager     

Ex.161. Compliance - Asset Management: Non-
compliance with municipal investment 
regulations 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO     

Ex. 176 - Compliance - Expenditure 
Management Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO     

 Annual Financial Statements         

Ex.46: Annual Financial Statements Disclosure - 
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual 
Amounts not in accordance with GRAP Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 

statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.75: Annual Financial Statements: Risk 
management disclosure not in accordance with 
GRAP 

Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 
statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

 Immovable assets         

Ex.109. Property, Plant and Equipment: Projects 
completed during the year not depreciated 

Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 
statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.120. PPE: Depreciation and accumulated 
depreciation incorrect 

Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 
statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.122. PPE: Discrepancies between physical 
count and quantity in asset register Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 

statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.123. PPE: Prior period error note incomplete Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 
statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.138. PPE: Depreciated Replacement Cost for 
land and buildings incorrect Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 

statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.139. PPE: Remaining useful life of land and 
buildings incorrect Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 

statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   
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Ex.149. PPE: Additions not supported by 
supported documents Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 

statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.152. PPE: Remaining useful life not in line 
with condition assessment Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 

statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.159. PPE: Cost does not agree to guide Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 
statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.160. PPE: Assets not adequately insured 
Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 
statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.162. PPE: DRC not determined at 1 July 2009 
Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 
statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.165. PPE: Land fill site not depreciated Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 
statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

 Inventory         

Ex.5: Inventory: Control deficiencies - Lack of 
segregation of duties 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.38: Inventory: Journals passed without 
council resolutions 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.59: Inventory: Unsold properties - cost per 
council resolution does not agree to the unsold 
properties listing 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.95. Inventory: Invoices not submitted Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.96. Investment Property, PPE & Inventory: 
Asset register, Investment properties & Unsold 
properties list incomplete 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.136 Inventory: Delivery notes not submitted Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.137. Inventory: Unsold properties cost does 
not agree to amount as per council resolution 

The difference will be investigated and the required 
disclosures corrected CFO 28-Feb-14   
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Ex.148. Inventory: Differences noted during 
inventory count were not adjusted The difference will be investigated and the required 

disclosures corrected CFO 28-Feb-14   

 Investment property         

Ex.90: Investment property: Inadequate 
disclosure for investment property Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 

statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.91: Investment property: Fair value at year 
end not determined 

Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 
statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.92. Investment property: Investment property 
overstated Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 

statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.93 PPE & Investment property: Rights to PPE 
and investment property not confirmed Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 

statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.119. Investment property: Prior period error 
note incomplete Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 

statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.121. Investment property: Property not 
physically verified for existence Procedures will be designed to ensure that financial 

statement disclosures are complete. CFO 30-Jun-14   

 Movable assets         

Ex.106. Property, plant and equipment: Assets 
not bar coded 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.107. Property Plant and Equipment : Asset 
register incomplete 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.151. PPE: Supporting documentation for 
valuation not provided for audit Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 30-Jun-14   

 Operating expenditure         
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Ex.3.: Procurement & Contact Management - 
Minutes of the specification committee is not on 
file 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.27: Procurement and Contract Management: 
Service not rendered in terms of the agreement Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.28: Expenditure: Proof that service or goods 
were received could not be confirmed 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.29: Expenditure: Payments not made within 
30 days of receipt of invoice An invoice register was designed and implemented to 

track invoice day outstanding CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.36: Procurement and Contract Management: 
Non Compliance with section 12.6 of 
Ventersdorp SCM 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.39: Supply Chain Management - Job 
description not assigned to officials 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.66: Expenditure: Payments not made within 
30 days for Bulk purchases. 

An invoice register was designed and implemented to 
track invoice day outstanding CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.67. Expenditure: Duplicated transaction and 
amounts recorded in the general ledger Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.82. Expenditure: Three quotations were not 
obtained from the suppliers. Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.85. Expenditure: Differences between the 
invoice and general ledger. Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.99. Expenditure : Payment not made within 
30 days for General Expenses An invoice register was designed and implemented to 

track invoice day outstanding CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.111. SCM : Declaration of interest form not 
obtained 

The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   
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Ex.112. SCM: Tender documents not in the file 

The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.113. SCM : Training for SCM Officials 
Supply chain official will receive training in the last week 
of January 2014. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.114. Expenditure : Overstatement of 
Expenditure (SALGA  membership fee), in 
progress 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.126. SCM: Contract Register not updated The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.127. SCM: No invitation to prospective 
suppliers to apply for evaluation and listing. 

The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.128. SCM: Minutes for specification 
committee meeting not in the file. 

The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.146. Expenditure : Proof that service or goods 
were received could not be confirmed for 
General expenses 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.147. SCM: Bid documents not available in the 
tender file. The Manager Supply Chain Management will 

investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.154. Expenditure : Fuel usage report not 
reviewed Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   
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Ex.155.Expenditure: Three quotation not 
obtained 

The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.166. bidding documents not included in files The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.167. SCM: SCM Policy not properly updated The supply chain policy is in the process of being 
reviewed. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.168 SCM : Declaration of Interest forms for 
suppliers not obtained 

The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.170. SCM : Three quotation not received The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.180. SCM : Awards procured without 
preference point system 

The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.181. SCM - Construction contracts - Non-
compliance with SCM regulations 

The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.182. SCM - Accounting officer not informed of 
bids awarded that were not recommended by the 
bid evaluation committee 

The Manager Supply Chain Management will 
investigate the deficiency and report to the AO. 
Corrective measures will be instituted as required. CFO 28-Feb-14   

 Payable         

Ex.20: Payables - Payments not made within 30 
days 

An invoice register was designed and implemented to 
track invoice day outstanding CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.40: Payables: Variance between amount due 
to Department of Public Safety per the trade 
payables listing and balance per confirmation 

The variance will be investigated and the financial 
information corrected. CFO 30-Jun-14   
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Ex.42: Payables - Debtors with credit balances 
not classified as payments received in advance The differences will be investigated and the financial 

information corrected. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.45: Payables: Variances identified in the 
retention schedule 

The differences will be investigated and the financial 
information corrected. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.47. Payables - Variances identified in the 
provision for leave pay 

The differences will be investigated and the financial 
information corrected. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.64: Payables -  Accrual not raised for services 
received prior to financial year end 

The differences will be investigated and the financial 
information corrected. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.157. Trade Payables - Differences identified 
in trade payables balance at 30 June 2012 The differences will be investigated and the financial 

information corrected. CFO 30-Jun-14   

Ex.163. Payables - No support for adjustment to 
write off suspense account 

The differences will be investigated and the financial 
information corrected. CFO 30-Jun-14   

 Predetermined objectives         

Ex.23: AOPO: Non-compliance with Municipal 
Planning & performance management regulation 
(AR) 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. 

Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

Ex.24: AOPO: Non-compliance with Municipal 
Systems Act (AR) 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. 

Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

Ex.25: AOPO: Non-compliance with MFMA (AR) 
Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. 

Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

Ex.26: AOPO: Weaknesses in the performance 
management system (AR) 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. 

Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

Ex.31: AOPO: Compliance with laws and 
regulations could not be substantiated (MR) 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. 

Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

E.33: Differences between planned and reported 
targets/indicators/objectives (AR) Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. 
Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

Ex.69: AOPO: Non compliances identified 
Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. 

Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   
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Ex.71: AOPO: Performance indicators are not 
well defined and measurable Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. 
Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

Ex.72: AOPO: Performance target not specific, 
measurable and time-bound Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. 
Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

Ex.73: AOPO: Measures to improve under 
performance on the annual performance report 
not disclosed or substantiated Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. 
Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

Ex.74: AOPO: Supporting documentation was 
not submitted for audit Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. 
Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

Ex.77: AOPO: Internal control deficiencies 
identified in the PMS Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. 
Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

Ex.89: AOPO: Difference between the reported 
information (APR) and the supporting 
documentation Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. 
Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

Ex.98: Performance Audit: Roads, Water and 
Sanitation findings Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. 
Director Planning 
and Development 28-Feb-14   

 Provisions         

Ex.54: Provisions: Provision for post-retirement 
benefits- could not confirm the existence of 
beneficiaries The matter will be followed up with the actuaries. CFO 30-Jun-14   

 Receivables         

Ex.61: Receivables: Debtors longer than 90 Days 
(discontinued) 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.124. Receivable: No debts collection 
mechanism in place Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.169. Receivables: Debtors variance between 
age analysis and AFS 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   
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Ex.177. Receivables - Movement in bad debt 
provision does not agree to amount disclosed in 
AFS Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

 Related parties         

Ex.94: Related Parties: Declaration of interest 
forms not submitted for audit 

The matter will be followed up by the Director Corporate 
Services and reported to the AO for any corrective 
action. 

Director Corporate 
Services 28-Feb-14   

 Revenue         

Ex.125.Compliance: Grants: Information not 
submitted for audit purpose 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.140. Consumer deposits - Supporting 
documentation not submitted 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.141. Revenue (Licenses and permits) -
Supporting documentation not submitted Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.142. Revenue (New connection) - No control 
in place over approval of new connection 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.158. Revenue - No ratable valuation 
reconciliation performed. 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.173. Revenue(Licenses and permits) -
Amounts in the ENATIS report does not agree to 
the GL 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.174. Revenue(Compliance) -Non-compliance 
with property rates act 

Business process flows are in the process of being 
reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.178. Revenue: Non-Compliance with laws 
and regulations Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.179. Revenue(Electricity): The use of an 
estimate not reliable Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

 Taxes         

Ex.56: Vat: Vat returns were not completed and 
submitted to SARS timeously Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   
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Ex.132. Vat receivables: Vat not provided on 
trade payable Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   

Ex.184. Provision for bad debts - VAT portion on 
debtors balance not taken into account when 
calculating impairment on debtors Business process flows are in the process of being 

reviewed and strengthened. CFO 28-Feb-14   
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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval 
    

    

 

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate 
accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial 
information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial 
statements fairly present the state of affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its 
operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion 
on the annual financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data. 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board. 

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 

The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established 
by the municipality and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the 
accounting officer to meet these responsibilities, the accounting officer sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing 
the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a 
clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable 
level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the municipality and all employees are required to maintain the 
highest ethical standards in ensuring the municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable 
circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the municipality is on identifying, assessing, managing 
and monitoring all known forms of risk across the municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the 
municipality endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour 
are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. 

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system 
of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the 
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not 
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit. 

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2014 and, in the light of this 
review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

The accounting officer is primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the municipality. 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 6 to 81, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the accounting officer on 31 August 2013 and were signed on its behalf by: 

  

 

Accounting Officer   

BJ Makade - Municipal Manager   
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Accounting Officer's Report 
    

    

 

The accounting officer submits his report for the year ended 30 June 2013. 

1. Review of activities 

Main business and operations 

The municipality is engaged in providing municipal services and operates principally in the North West Province in South 
Africa. 

The operating results and state of affairs of the municipality are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements and 
do not in our opinion require any further comment. 

2. Going concern 

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2013, the municipality had accumulated surplus of  243,691,668 and that the 
municipality's total assets exceed its liabilities by  243,847,982. 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

The ability of the municipality to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of 
these is that the accounting officer continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the municipality.  

3. Subsequent events 

The accounting officer is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year. 

4. Accounting Officer's interest in contracts 

None. 

5. Accounting Officer 

The accounting officer of the municipality during the year and to the date of this report was:  Mr BJ Makade - Municipal 
Manager. 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2013 
    

Figures in 
Rand
  

Note(s)  2013 Restated 
2012 

    

    

Assets
  

   

Current 
Assets
  

   

Inventories
  

3  19,362,517   19,310,092  

Receivables from exchange 
transactions
  

5  742,502   697,583  

Receivables from non-exchange 
transactions
  

6  10,761,206   4,486,317  

VAT 
receivable
  

7  8,212,564   4,614,330  

Consumer 
debtors
  

8  26,602,614   15,367,591  

Cash and cash 
equivalents
  

9  10,710,804   15,585,478  

    

    76,392,207   60,061,391  
    

Non-Current 
Assets
  

   

Investment 
property
  

10  15,445,866   15,445,866  

Property, plant and 
equipment
  

11  269,436,118   229,070,739  

Other financial 
assets
  

4  180,297   158,749  

    

    285,062,281   244,675,354  
    

Total 
Assets
  

  361,454,488   304,736,745  

    

Liabilities     

Current Liabilities      

Other financial liabilities  14  16,275,571   16,989,409  

Payables from exchange transactions  15  68,782,974   52,233,524  

Consumer deposits  16  1,111,765   1,033,968  

Unspent conditional grants and receipts  17  20,139,871   18,264,445  
    

    106,310,181   88,521,346  
    

Non-Current Liabilities     

Other financial liabilities  14  2,605,243   2,688,793  

Retirement benefit obligation  12  3,915,863   3,535,545  

Provisions  18  4,775,219   4,359,475  
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    11,296,325   10,583,813  
    

Total Liabilities    117,606,506   99,105,159  
    

Net Assets    243,847,982   205,631,586  
    

Reserves     

Housing Development Funds  13  156,314   157,188  

Accumulated surplus    243,691,668   205,474,398  
    

Total Net Assets    243,847,982   205,631,586  
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Statement of Financial Performance 
    

Figures in Rand  Note(s)  2013 Restated 
2012 

    
    

Revenue   
  

Service charges  21  41,941,126   37,396,011  

Rental of facilities and equipment    64,580   78,661  

Licences and permits    2,440,287   2,001,272  

Other income  23  901,460   1,621,006  

Interest received - investment    738,945   311,747  

Fines    3,176,973   4,367,578  

Property rates  20  5,888,452   4,807,660  

Government grants & subsidies  22  86,722,454   61,364,478  
    

Total revenue    141,874,277   111,948,413  
    

Expenditure   
  

Personnel  25  (31,609,035)   (26,627,135)  

Remuneration of councillors  26  (2,734,666)   (2,648,329)  

Increase/(decrease) in provisions  27  (1,638,897)   (3,207,035)  

Depreciation and amortisation  28  (20,198,139)   (5,362,744)  

Finance costs  29  (5,394,451)   (4,181,468)  

Provision - bad debts  30  2,442,586   322,779  

Repairs and maintenance    (4,249,964)   (3,118,829)  

Bulk purchases  32  (34,046,399)   (28,198,910)  

Contracted services  31  (3,982,286)   (6,690,334)  

General Expenses  33  (23,096,644)   (18,262,706)  
    

Total expenditure    (124,507,895)   (97,974,711)  
    

Operating surplus    17,366,382   13,973,702  

Fair value adjustments    22,416   22,948  
    

    

Surplus for the year    17,388,798   13,996,650  
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
    

Figures in Rand  

Housing 
Development 

Fund 

Accumulated 
surplus 

Total net 
assets 

    

    
    

Opening balance as previously reported   149,152   46,918,958   47,068,110  
Adjustments     
Prior year adjustments   -   151,506,968   151,506,968  
    

Balance at 01 July 2011 as restated   149,152   198,425,926   198,575,078  

Changes in net assets     
Other movements   -   350,632   350,632  
Corrections and adjustments   -   (7,298,810)   (7,298,810)  
    

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets   -   (6,948,178)   (6,948,178)  
Surplus for the year   -   13,996,650   13,996,650  
    

Total recognised income and expenses for the year   -   7,048,472   7,048,472  
Expenses recognised directly against reserve   8,036   -   8,036  
    

Total changes   8,036   7,048,472   7,056,508  
    

    

Balance at 01 July 2012 as restated   157,188   205,474,398   205,631,586  

Changes in net assets     
GRAP 17 Compliant Asset Register adjustments   -   20,828,472   20,828,472  
    

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets   -   20,828,472   20,828,472  
Surplus for the year   -   17,388,798   17,388,798  
    

Total recognised income and expenses for the year   -   38,217,270   38,217,270  
Expenses recognised directly against reserve   (874)   -   (874)  
    

Total changes   (874)   38,217,270   38,216,396  
    

Balance at 30 June 2013   156,314   243,691,668   243,847,982  
    

    

Note(s) 13   
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Cash Flow Statement 
    

Figures in Rand  Note(s)  2013 Restated 
2012 

    
    

Cash flows from operating activities 

    

Receipts  
   

Cash receipts from customers    33,259,814   36,829,580  

Grants    86,722,454   61,364,478  

Interest income    738,945   311,748  
    

    120,721,213   98,505,806  
    

    

Payments  
   

Employee costs    (34,343,701)   (29,275,464)  

Suppliers    (24,497,697)   (29,680,808)  

Finance costs    (5,394,451)   (4,181,468)  
    

    (64,235,849)   (63,137,740)  
    

Net cash flows from operating activities  35  56,485,364   35,368,066  
    

Cash flows from investing activities 

    

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  11  (60,563,518)   (20,802,092)  

Proceeds from sale of financial assets    868   -  
    

Net cash flows from investing activities    (60,562,650)   (20,802,092)  
    

Cash flows from financing activities 

    

Repayment of other financial liabilities    (797,388)   (767,121)  

Finance lease payments    -   (1,166,344)  
    

Net cash flows from financing activities    (797,388)   (1,933,465)  
    

    

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    (4,874,674)   12,632,509  

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year    15,585,478   2,952,969  
    

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  9  10,710,804   15,585,478  
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 
       

Budget on Cash Basis  
      

       

Figures in Rand  

Approved 
budget 

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts 
on comparable 

basis 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 

Reference 

       

Statement of Financial Performance 

Revenue  
     

 

Revenue from exchange 
transactions
  

  
 

 
 

 

Service charges   43,124,489   80,511   43,205,000   41,941,126   (1,263,874)   

Rental of facilities and 
equipment
  

 30,000   -   30,000   64,580   34,580   

Licences and permits   1,800,000   (450,000)   1,350,000   2,440,287   1,090,287   

Other income - (rollup)   431,500   21,500   453,000   901,460   448,460   

Interest received - investment   190,000   100,000   290,000   738,945   448,945   
       

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions
  

 45,575,989   (247,989)   45,328,000   46,086,398   758,398   

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions
  

  
 

 
 

 

Taxation revenue    
 

 
 

 

Fines   6,500,500   (2,000,500)   4,500,000   3,176,973   (1,323,027)   

Property rates   4,800,000   120,000   4,920,000   5,888,452   968,452   

Government grants & subsidies   50,704,850   7,150   50,712,000   86,722,454   36,010,454   
       

Total revenue from 
non-exchange 
transactions
  

 62,005,350   (1,873,350)   60,132,000   95,787,879   35,655,879   

       

Total revenue   107,581,339   (2,121,339)   105,460,000   141,874,277   36,414,277   
       

Expenditure  
     

 

Personnel   (38,048,307)   3,287,533   (34,760,774)   (31,609,035)   3,151,739   

Remuneration of councillors   (3,079,480)   -   (3,079,480)   (2,734,666)   344,814   

Administration   -   -   -   (1,638,897)   (1,638,897)   

Depreciation and amortisation   (3,600,000)   1,000,000   (2,600,000)   (20,198,139)   (17,598,139)   

Finance costs   (2,015,000)   1,760,000   (255,000)   (5,394,451)   (5,139,451)   

Debt impairment   (5,500,000)   1,000,000   (4,500,000)   2,442,586   6,942,586   

Repairs and maintenance   (6,325,000)   579,000   (5,746,000)   (4,249,964)   1,496,036   

Bulk purchases    (24,000,000)   (1,000,000)   (25,000,000)   (34,046,399)   (9,046,399)   

Contracted Services   (7,830,000)   1,800,000   (6,030,000)   (3,982,286)   2,047,714   

General Expenses   (23,633,850)   2,732,850   (20,901,000)   (23,096,644)   (2,195,644)   
       

Total expenditure   (114,031,637)   11,159,383   (102,872,254)   (124,507,895)   (21,635,641)   
       

Operating surplus   (6,450,298)   9,975,233   3,524,935   17,366,382   13,841,447   

Fair value adjustments   -   -   -   22,416   22,416   
       

Surplus before taxation   (6,450,298)   9,975,233   3,524,935   17,388,798   13,863,863   
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Actual Amount on Comparable 
Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative 
Statement
  

 (6,450,298)   9,975,233   3,524,935   17,388,798   13,863,863   

       



Ventersdorp Local Municipality 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 

159 | Page 

 

Accounting Policies 
    

 
 
 

   

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board. 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 
historical cost convention unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed below. 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 
estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include: 

Trade receivables and/or loans and receivables 

The municipality assesses its trade receivables and loans and receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting 
period. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, management makes judgements 
as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial 
asset. 

The impairment for trade receivables and loans and receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss 
ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that 
correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to 
the estimated loss emergence period. 

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock 

An allowance is made for slow-moving, damaged and obsolete inventory to write inventory down to the lower of cost or net 
realisable value. Management have made estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. 
The write down is included in the statement of financial performance. 

Fair value estimation 

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on 
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the 
municipality is the current bid price. 

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair 
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash 
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the municipality for similar financial instruments. 

Provisions 

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure 
of these estimates of provisions are included in note 18 - Provisions. 
 
Provisions are measured using management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the 
reporting date and are discounted to the present value where the effect is material. 

Useful lives of waste and water network and other assets 

The municipality's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for the waste water 
and water networks. This estimate is based on industry norm. Management will increase the depreciation charge where 
useful lives are less than previously estimated useful lives. 
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1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 
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Post retirement benefits 

The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial 
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount rate. 
Any changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement obligations. 

The municipality determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be 
used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension 
obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the municipality considers the interest rates of high-quality 
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity 
approximating the terms of the related pension liability. 

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in 
Note 12. 

Allowance for doubtful debts 

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The 
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition. 

1.2 Investment property 

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation or both, rather than for:  

 use in the production or supply of goods or services or for 
 administrative purposes, or  
 sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

Owner-occupied property is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative 
purposes. 

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that 
are associated with the investment property will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investment property 
can be measured reliably. 

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement. 

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of 
acquisition. 

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. 
If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced 
part is derecognised. 
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Fair value 

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value. 

The fair value of investment property reflects market conditions at the reporting date. 

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net surplus or deficit for the period in which it arises. 

If the entity determines that the fair value of an investment property under construction is not reliably determinable but 
expects the fair value of the property to be reliably measurable when construction is complete, it measures that investment 
property under construction at cost until either its fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is completed 
(whichever is earlier). If the entity determines that the fair value of an investment property (other than an investment property 
under construction) is not reliably determinable on a continuing basis, the entity measure that investment property using the 
cost model (as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment). The residual value of the investment property is 
then assumed to be zero. The entity apply the cost model (as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment) 
until disposal of the investment property. 

Once the entity becomes able to measure reliably the fair value of an investment property under construction that has 
previously been measured at cost, it measures that property at its fair value. Once construction of that property is complete, 
it is presumed that fair value can be measured reliably. If this is not the case, the property is accounted for using the cost 
model in accordance with the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment. 

Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and 
no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposal. 

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property is the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of retirement or disposal. 

Compensation from third parties for investment property that was impaired, lost or given up is recognised in surplus or deficit 
when the compensation becomes receivable. 

1.3 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used 
during more than one period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 
 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the 

municipality; and 
 the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for 
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.  

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 
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The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the 
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories. 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included in property, 
plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of 
property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet 
the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any 
remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Item Average useful life 

Buildings  
 Buildings 25-30 years 
 Improvements 25-30 years 
 Recreational facilities 20-30 years 
Infrastructure  
 Roads and paving 30 years 
 Pedestrian malls 15-30 years 
 Electricity 20-30 years 
 Water resevoirs 15-20 years 
 Sewerage pump stations 15-40 years 
 Housing 25-30 years 
Other property, plant and equipment  
 Specialist vehicles 5-10 years 
 Other vehicles 4-7 years 
 Office equipment 3-7 years 
 Furniture and fittings 7-10 years 
 Bins and containers 5 years 
 Specialized plant and equipment 10-15 years 
 Other plant and equipment 2-5 years 
 Landfill sites 15 years 
 Lease hold property 3-5 years 
 Security 3-5 years 

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless 
expectations differ from the previous estimate. 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
another asset. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further 
economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit 
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 
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Assets which the municipality holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of 
activities, are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. These assets are not 
accounted for as non-current assets held for sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised as revenue. All cash 
flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash flow statement. 

1.4 Financial instruments 

Classification 

The municipality classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories: 
 Loans and receivables 
 Available-for-sale financial assets 
 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the municipality becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. 

The municipality classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a 
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. 

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not 
determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets. 

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included in the initial 
measurement of the instrument. 

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through surplus or deficit are recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Subsequent measurement 

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated 
impairment losses. Amortised cost refers to the initial carrying amount, plus interest and less repayments. 

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. This excludes equity investments for which a fair 
value is not determinable, which are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Consumer deposits are subsequently recorded in accordance with the accounting policy of trade and other payables. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. 

Fair value determination 

Fair value information for trade and other receivables is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows 
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. 
 
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices.  
 
If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the municipality establishes fair value by using 
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are 
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and 
relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. 
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Impairment of financial assets 

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the 
security below its cost is considered an indicator of impairment. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial 
assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any 
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit - is removed from equity as a 
reclassification adjustment and recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related objectively to 
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial 
asset at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the 
impairment not been recognised. 

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit except for equity investments classified as 
available-for-sale. 

Impairment losses are also not subsequently reversed for available-for-sale equity investments which are held at cost 
because fair value was not determinable. 

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or 
deficit within operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance 
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses. 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or 
deficit when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability 
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 90 days 
overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the 
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the deficit is 
recognised in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncorrectable, it is written off against 
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against 
operating expenses in surplus or deficit. 

Payables from exchange transactions 

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest rate method. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are 
initially and subsequently recorded at fair value. 

Bank overdraft and borrowings 

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or 
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the municipality’s accounting 
policy for borrowing costs. 
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Gains and losses 

A gain or loss arising from a change in a financial asset or financial liability is recognised as follows: 
 A gain or loss on an available-for-sale financial asset is recognised directly in net assets, through the statement of 

changes in net assets, until the financial asset is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in net assets is recognised in surplus or deficit; and 

 For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or 
deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation 
process. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The municipality assesses at each statement of financial position date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets 
is impaired. 

Assets are carried at amortised cost. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, 
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset 
shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognised in 
surplus or deficit. The municipality first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial 
assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If 
it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether 
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of 
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which 
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. 

1.5 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately. 

Finance leases - lessor 

The municipality recognises finance lease receivables as assets on the statement of financial position. Such assets are 
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. 

Finance revenue is recognised based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the municipality’s net 
investment in the finance lease. 

Finance leases - lessee 

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the 
lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance 
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining 
balance of the liability. 
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Operating leases - lessor 

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue. 

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line 
basis. 

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance. 

Operating leases - lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset 
or liability. 

1.6 Inventories 

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then 
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for; 
 distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or 
 consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution. 

Current replacement cost is the cost the municipality incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date. 

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for 
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs. 

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all 
inventories having a similar nature and use to the municipality. 

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which 
the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are 
distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current 
replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. 
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current 
replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the reversal occurs. 

1.7 Impairment of cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the municipality with the primary objective of generating a commercial 
return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a 
commercial return. 

Useful life is either: 
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality; or 
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Identification 

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired. 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the municipality also test a cash-generating intangible asset 
with an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by 
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If 
an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for 
impairment before the end of the current reporting period. 

Value in use 

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from 
the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. 

When estimating the value in use of an asset, the municipality estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived 
from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the municipality applies the appropriate discount rate to 
those future cash flows. 

Discount rate 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, represented by the 
current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been 
adjusted. 

Recognition and measurement (individual asset) 

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to 
which it relates, the municipality recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP. 

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted 
in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a 
systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
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Cash-generating units 

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is 
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the municipality determines the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit). 

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified 
as a cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or 
cash-generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the municipality use management's best estimate of future 
price(s) that could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating: 

 the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and 
 the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are 

affected by the internal transfer pricing. 

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, unless a 
change is justified. 

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of 
the cash-generating unit is determined. 

An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying 
amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a 
pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as 
impairment losses on individual assets. 

In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of: 
 its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable); 
 its value in use (if determinable); and 
 zero. 

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other 
cash-generating assets of the unit. 

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that 
non-cash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit. 
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Reversal of impairment loss 

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity 
estimates the recoverable amount of that asset. 

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased 
carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 
periods. 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase. 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on 
a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with 
the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment losses for 
individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service 
potential to a cash-generating unit. 

In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased 
above the lower of: 

 its recoverable amount (if determinable); and 
 the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment 

loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods. 

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro 
rata to the other assets of the unit. 

Redesignation 

The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating 
asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation is appropriate. 

1.8 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the municipality with the primary objective of generating a commercial 
return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a 
commercial return. 

Useful life is either: 
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the municipality. 

Identification 

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired. 

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset. 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also test a non-cash-generating intangible asset with 
an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by 
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every 
year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for 
impairment before the end of the current reporting period. 
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Value in use 

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service 
potential. 

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following 
approach: 

Depreciated replacement cost approach 

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the depreciated 
replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service potential. 
This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction 
(replication) of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is 
measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation 
calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset. 

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the 
municipality would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an 
overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services 
the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for 
goods or services the asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an 
optimised basis thus reflects the service potential required of the asset. 

Restoration cost approach 

Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to its pre-impaired level. The present value of the 
remaining service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration cost of the asset from the 
current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment. The latter cost is determined as the 
depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower. 

Service units approach 

The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing the current cost of the remaining 
service potential of the asset before impairment, to conform to the reduced number of service units expected from the asset 
in its impaired state. The current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment is 
determined as the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset before impairment, whichever is lower. 

Recognition and measurement 

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to 
which it relates, the municipality recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP. 

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if 
any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
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Reversal of an impairment loss 

The municipality assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the 
municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset. 

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The 
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment 
loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior periods. 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase. 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating 
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual 
value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

Redesignation 

The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating 
asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation is appropriate. 

1.9 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid 
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in 
which the service is rendered. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. 

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation to make 
such payments as a result of past service or performance and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
 
Liabilities for short-term employee benefits that are unpaid at year-end are measured at the undiscounted amount that the 
entity expects to pay in exchange for that service and had accumulated at the reporting date. 

Defined contribution plans 

The municipalities contributions to the defined contribution funds are established in terms of the rules governing those plans. 
Contributions are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in which the service is rendered by the relevant employees, 
unless another standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset. Prepaid contributions 
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. 
 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 
 
Payments made to industry-managed or state plans retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans 
where the entity’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit 
plan. 
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Defined benefit plans 

For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected credit method. 

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries. 

Consideration is given to any event that could impact the funds up to end of the reporting period where the interim valuation 
is performed at an earlier date. 

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and are otherwise 
amortised on a straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of financial performance in the period that they occur. 

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan is recognised when the entity is demonstrably 
committed to curtailment or settlement. 

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit 
obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In surplus or 
deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement. 

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs. 

Actuarial assumptions are included in the note of defined benefit obligation plan.. 

1.10 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 
 the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 
 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 

settle the obligation; and 
 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at 
the reporting date. 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the 
municipality settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the 
reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it 
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to 
settle the obligation. 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 
increase is recognised as an interest expense. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus. 

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 
measured as a provision. 
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A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: 
 has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 

-   the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned; 
-   the principal locations affected; 
-   the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being 

terminated; 
-   the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 
-   when the plan will be implemented; and 

 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that 
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:  
 necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 
 not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality 

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is committed to the sale or 
transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement. 

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are 
subsequently measured at the higher of: 

 the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and 
 the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 37. 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a 
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms 
of a debt instrument. 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 

The municipality recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
of the obligation can be made. 

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications 
that an outflow of resources may be probable are: 

 financial difficulty of the debtor; 
 defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor; 
 breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the 

ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and 
 a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact 

on the ability of entities to repay their obligations. 

Where a fee is received by the municipality for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan 
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting 
date. Where a fee is charged and the municipality considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an 
municipality recognises the obligation at the higher of: 

 the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets; and 

 the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in 
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions. 

1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue consists primarily of grants from National- and Provincial Government, services charges, rentals, interest received 
and other services rendered. 

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in 
exchange. 
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When considering the probability of the future economic benefits that will flow to the entity, consideration is given to the 
requirements as outlined in IGRAP 1. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates. 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 
 the municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; 
 the municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with 

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 
 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality; and 
 the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 

Rendering of services 

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with 
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of 
a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied: 

 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality; 
 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 
 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably. 

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a 
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage 
of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed 
until the significant act is executed. 

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised 
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. 

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is 
performed. 
 
Rendering of services consist out of solid waste, sanitation, sewerage and water. 

Interest 

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest is recognised when: 
 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality, and 
 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 

1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Non-exchange transactions are defined as transactions where the entity receives value from another entity without directly 
giving approximately equal value in exchange. 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in 
an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 
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When considering the probability of the future economic benefits that will flow to the entity, consideration is given to the 
requirements as outlined in IGRAP 1. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates. 

Rates, including collection charges and penalties interest 

Revenue from rates, including collection charges and penalty interest, is recognised when: 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality; 
 the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; and 
 there has been compliance with the relevant legal requirements. 

Changes to property values during a reporting period are valued by a suitably qualified valuator and adjustments are made 
to rates revenue, based on a time proportion basis. Adjustments to rates revenue already recognised are processed or 
additional rates revenue is recognised. 

Fines 

Revenue from the issuing of fines is recognised when: 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality; and 
 the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

The municipality has two types of fines: spot fines and summonses. The revenue from fines is recognised by the 
municipality on a cash basis as there is a uncertainty regarding the probability of the flow of economic benefits or service 
potential in respect oft fines as these fines are usually not given directly to an offender. 

Levies 

Levies are recognised as revenue when: 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality; and 
 the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Levies are based on declarations completed by levy payers. The estimate of levies revenue when a levy payer has not 
submitted a declaration are based on the following factors: 

 the extent and success of procedures to investigate the non-submission of a declaration by defaulting levy 
payers; 

 internal records maintained of historical comparisons of estimated levies with actual levies received from 
individual levy payers; 

 historical information on declarations previously submitted by defaulting levy payers; and  
 the accuracy of the database of levy payers as well as the frequency by which it is updated for changes. 

Changes to estimates made when more reliable information becomes available are processed as an adjustment to levies 
revenue. 
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Government grants 

Government grants are recognised as revenue when: 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality, 
 the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, and 
 to the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the grant. 

The municipality assesses the degree of certainty attached to the flow of future economic benefits or service potential on the 
basis of the available evidence. Certain grants payable by one level of government to another are subject to the availability 
of funds. Revenue from these grants is only recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the transaction will flow to the entity. An announcement at the beginning of a financial year that grants may 
be available for qualifying entities in accordance with an agreed programme may not be sufficient evidence of the probability 
of the flow. Revenue is then only recognised once evidence of the probability of the flow becomes available. 

Conditions on government grants may result in such revenue being recognised on a time proportion basis. Where there is 
no conditions on the period, such revenue is recognised on receipt or when the Act becomes effective, which-ever is earlier. 

When government remit grants on a re-imbursement basis, revenue is recognised when the qualifying expense has been 
incurred and to the extent that any other restrictions have been complied with.  

Other grants and donations 

Other grants and donations are recognised as revenue when: 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

municipality; 
 the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; and 
 to the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the grant. 

Where there are no conditions attached, revenue is recognised immediately. If conditions are attached, a liability is 
recognised, which is reduced and revenue recognised as the conditions are satisfied. 

Services in-kind 

Services in-kind are services provided by individuals to the municipality in a non-exchange transaction. These services meet 
the definition of an asset because the entity controls a resource from which future economic benefits or service potential is 
expected to flow to the entity. These assets are, however, immediately consumed and a transaction of equal value is also 
recognised to reflect the consumption of these services in-kind. 
 
The municipality may be a recipient of services in-kind under voluntary or non-voluntary schemes operated in the public 
interest, for example: 
(a) technical assistance from other governments or international organisations; 
(b)) local governments may receive the services of volunteer fire fighters. 
 
Due to the many uncertainties surrounding services in-kind, including the ability to exercise control over the services, and 
measuring the fair value of the services, the municipality did not recognise any services in-kind however the services in-kind 
will be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
The disclosures will assist users to make informed judgements about the contribution made by such services to the 
achievement of the entity’s objectives during the reporting period, and the entity’s dependence on such services for the 
achievement of its objectives in the future. 

1.13 Investment income 

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

1.14 Borrowing costs 

All borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
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1.15 Comparative figures 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. 

1.16 Unauthorised expenditure 

Unauthorised expenditure means: 
 overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and 
 expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with 

the purpose of the main division. 

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance 
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, 
and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.17 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the 
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.18 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -  

(a) this Act; or 
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or 
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. 

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA 
requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008),in the absence of guidelines in terms of Municipal Finance Management 
Act  
(Act No. 56 of 2003): 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end 
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure 
register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial 
statements. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being 
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of 
updating the note to the financial statements. 

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, 
the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the 
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for 
the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. 
Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the 
accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant 
note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular 
expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the 
relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly 
in the irregular expenditure register. 
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Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the 
Municipal Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of 
the economic entity’s supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular 
expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is 
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

1.19 Use of estimates 

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with Standards of GRAP requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the municipality’s 
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the annual financial statements are disclosed in the relevant sections of the annual financial 
statements. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions they may 
undertake in the future, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates. 

1.20 Offsetting 

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is required or permitted by a Standard 
of GRAP 

1.21 Housing development fund 

The Housing Development Fund was established in terms of the Housing Act, (Act No. 107 of 1997). Loans from national 
and provincial government used to finance housing selling schemes undertaken by the municipality were extinguished on 1 
April 1998 and transferred to a Housing Development Fund. Housing selling schemes, both complete and in progress as at 
1 April 1998, were also transferred to the Housing Development Fund. In terms of the Housing Act, all proceeds from 
housing developments, which include rental income and sales of houses, must be paid into the Housing Development Fund. 
Monies standing to the credit of the Housing Development Fund can be used only to finance housing developments within 
the municipal area subject to the approval of the Provincial MEC responsible for housing. 

1.22 Investments 

Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, it is written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount and an impairment loss is charged to the statement of financial performance. 

1.23 Conditional grants and receipts 

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the 
municipality has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that 
the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised. 

1.24 Segmental information 

Segmental information on property, plant and equipment, as well as income and expenditure, is set out in Appendices C and 
D, based on the International Government Financial Statistics classifications and the budget formats prescribed by National 
Treasury. The municipality operates solely in its area of jurisdiction as determined by the Demarcation Board. 

Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies applied for preparing and presenting the financial 
statements.  

1.25 Budget information 

Municipality are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisation's (or equivalent), 
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar. 

General purpose financial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used 
in accordance with the legally adopted budget. 

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/07/2012 to 30/06/2013. 
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The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the 
budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual 
amounts. 

1.26 Related parties 

The municipality operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South 
African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South 
Africa, only entities within the local sphere of government are considered to be related parties. 

Related party disclosures for transactions between government entities that took place on terms and conditions that are 
considered to be at arms length and in the ordinary course of business are not disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 20 
Related 
Party Disclosure. 
 
Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling 
the 
activities of the entity. We regard all individuals from the level of Accounting Officer and Council members as well as 
managers 
and directors reporting directly to the municipal manager as key management per the definition of the financial reporting 
standard. 
 
Close family members of key management personnel are considered to be those family members who may be expected to 
influence, or to be influenced by key management individuals, in their dealings with the entity. 

1.27 Capital Commitments 

Capital commitments disclosed in the financial statements represents the contractual balance committed to the capital 
projects on reporting date that will be incurred in the period subsequent to the specific reporting date. 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 
    

Figures in Rand   2013 Restated 
2012 

    
    

2. New standards and interpretations 

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year 

In the current year, the municipality has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current 
financial year and that are relevant to its operations: 

   

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: 
Years beginning on or 
after 

Expected impact: 

GRAP 21: Impairment of Non-cash-generating assets 01 April 2012  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 01 April 2012  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 24: Presentation of Budget Information in the Financial 
Statements 

01 April 2012  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 25: Employee Benefits 01 April 2012  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 26: Impairment of Cash-generated assets 01 April 2012  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 1(As revised 2012): Presentation of Financial Statements 01 April 2013  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 3 (As revised 2012): Accounting Policies, Change in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors 

01 April 2013  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 7 (As revised 2012): Investments in Associates 01 April 2013  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
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GRAP 9 (As revised 2012): Revenue from Exchange 
Transactions 

01 April 2013  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 12 (As revised 2012): Inventories 01 April 2013  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 13 (As revised 2012): Leases 01 April 2013  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 16 (As revised 2012): Investment Property 01 April 2013  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

Grap 17 (As revised 2012): Property, Plant and Equipment 01 April 2013  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 31 (As revised 2012): Intangible Assets (Replaces GRAP 
102) 

01 April 2013  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

GRAP 104: Financial Instruments 01 April 2012  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

IGRAP1 (As revised 2012): Applying the probability test on initial 
recognition of revenue 

01 April 2013  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
  

IGRAP 16: Intangible assets website costs 01 April 2013  It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial 
statements.
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2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective 

The municipality has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory 
for the municipality’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2013 or later periods: 

   

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: 
Years beginning on or 
after 

Expected impact: 

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting 01 April 2013 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
 

GRAP 20: Related Parties 01 April 2013 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 

2.3 Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant 

The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the municipality’s accounting 
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2013 or later periods but are not relevant to its operations: 

   

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: 
Years beginning on or 
after 

Expected impact: 

GRAP 6 (As revised 2010): Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements 

01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
 

GRAP 8 (As revised 2010): Interests in Joint Ventures 01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
 

GRAP 27 (As revised 2012): Agriculture (Replaces GRAP 101) 01 April 2013 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
 

GRAP 103: Heritage Assets 01 April 2012 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
 

GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between entities under common 
control 

01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
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GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between entities not under common 
control 

01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
 

GRAP 107: Mergers 01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
 

IGRAP 11: Consolidation – Special purpose entities 01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
 

IGRAP 12: Jointly controlled entities – Non-monetary contributions by 
ventures 

01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
municipality's annual 
financial statements. 
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3. Inventories 

    

Consumable stores    605,216   551,020  
Water    1,168   2,939  
Unsold Properties Held for Resale    18,756,133   18,756,133  
    

    19,362,517   19,310,092  
    

    

Consumable inventories recognised as an expense during the year    677,157   604,316  

Inventory pledged as security 

No inventory was pledged as security for any financial liability. 

4. Other financial assets 

    

Designated at fair value     

Listed shares    52,948   15,801  
Old Mutual - Investment Plan    127,349   142,948  
    

    180,297   158,749  
    

    

Non-current assets     

Designated at fair value    180,297   158,749  
    

Financial assets at fair value 

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised at fair value, unless they are unlisted equity instruments and the fair value 
cannot be determined using other means, in which case they are measured at cost. Fair value information was provided 
for these financial assets. 
 
The following classes of available-for-sale financial assets are measured to fair value using quoted market prices: 

    

Class 1 - Listed shares    52,948   44,091  
 
Details of Listed Shares: 
Sanlam - 778 shares 
Senwes Ltd - 977 shares 
Senwes Bel Ltd - 1497 shares 
 

   

Class 2 - Old Mutual - Investment Plan    127,349   114,658  
    

    180,297   158,749  
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Fair value hierarchy of financial assets at fair value 

For financial assets recognised at fair value, disclosure is required of a fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of 
the inputs used to make the measurements.The fair value hierarchy have the following levels: 

Level 1 represents those assets which are measured using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. 
Level 2 applies inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly 
(i.e. derived from prices). 
Level 3 applies inputs which are not based on observable market data. 

    

Level 1     

Class 1 - Listed Shares    52,948   44,091  
Class 2 - Old Mutual    127,349   114,658  
    

    180,297   158,749  
    

Renegotiated terms 

None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year. 

5. Receivables from exchange transactions 

    

Contour:  Pre paid Sales (Vendors)    742,502   600,562  
Conlog Prepaid Meters    -   97,021  
    

    742,502   697,583  
    

Receivables from exchange transactions pledged as security 

None of the receivables from exchange transactions were pledged as security for any financial liability. 

Credit quality of trade and other receivables 

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 
external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates. 

6. Receivables from non-exchange transactions 

    

Grants not received (SDM for health salaries)    294,586   294,586  
Eskom Deposits    2,980,158   1,096,776  
EPWP funded by Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality    442,583   -  
TMT suspense    -   31,750  
Other    28,613   220,663  
Rates    7,015,266   2,842,542  
    

    10,761,206   4,486,317  
    

Receivables from non-exchange transactions pledged as security 

None of the receivables from non-exchange transactions were pledged as security for any financial liability. 

Credit quality of receivables from non-exchange transactions 

The credit quality of other receivables from non-exchange transactions that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be 
assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates. 
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Rates - Ageing 

 

    

Current (0 - 30 days)    456,713   359,527  
31 - 60 days    329,398   227,530  
61 - 90 days    304,312   211,655  
> 90 days    5,924,843   3,603,436  
    

    7,015,266   4,402,148  
    

 

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of receivables from non-exchange transactions 

    

Opening balance of impairment    (1,559,606)   (1,941,749)  
Reversal of allowance    1,559,606   382,143  
    

    -   (1,559,606)  
    

7. VAT receivable 

    

VAT    8,212,564   4,614,330  
    

The Municipality is registered on the cash basis for VAT purposes. This means that VAT is only paid once cash is received 
or 
actual payments are made. 

8. Consumer debtors 

    

Gross balances     

Electricity    12,551,135   9,679,220  
Water    4,832,037   3,589,030  
Sewerage    7,135,234   4,701,803  
Refuse    4,969,726   3,245,800  
Debtors interest    5,079   8,896  
Other    2,071   2,071  
Sundry debtors    7,345,522   5,355,043  
    

    36,840,804   26,581,863  
    

    

Less: Allowance for impairment     

Electricity    (3,488,201)   (4,106,898)  
Water    (1,342,916)   (1,526,381)  
Sewerage    (1,983,018)   (2,000,289)  
Refuse    (1,381,182)   (1,388,426)  
Debtors interest    (1,412)   (3,320)  
Sundry debtors    (2,041,461)   (2,188,958)  
    

    (10,238,190)   (11,214,272)  
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Net balance     

Electricity    9,062,934   5,572,322  
Water    3,489,121   2,062,649  
Sewerage    5,152,216   2,701,514  
Refuse    3,588,544   1,857,374  
Debtors interest    3,667   5,576  
Other    2,071   2,071  
Sundry debtors    5,304,061   3,166,085  
    

    26,602,614   15,367,591  
    

    

Electricity     

Current (0 -30 days)    2,426,835   1,676,429  
31 - 60 days    1,022,962   661,809  
61 - 90 days    535,778   539,377  
> 90 days    8,565,560   6,801,605  
    

    12,551,135   9,679,220  
    

    

Water     

Current (0 -30 days)    197,681   218,497  
31 - 60 days    150,031   143,906  
61 - 90 days    149,218   113,630  
> 90 days    4,335,107   3,112,997  
    

    4,832,037   3,589,030  
    

    

Sewerage     

Current (0 -30 days)    384,948   263,947  
31 - 60 days    324,125   171,491  
61 - 90 days    304,143   155,114  
> 90 days    6,122,018   4,111,251  
    

    7,135,234   4,701,803  
    

    

Refuse     

Current (0 -30 days)    257,754   142,016  
31 - 60 days    220,199   107,711  
61 - 90 days    204,294   100,270  
> 90 days    4,287,479   2,895,803  
    

    4,969,726   3,245,800  
    

    

Debtors interest     

31 - 60 days    -   3,406  
> 90 days    5,079   5,490  
    

    5,079   8,896  
    

    

Other     

> 90 days    2,071   2,071  
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Sundry debtors     

Current (0 -30 days)    77,573   5,281  
31 - 60 days    2,134   8,420  
61 - 90 days    1,443   4,438  
> 90 days    7,264,372   5,336,904  
    

    7,345,522   5,355,043  
    

Summary of debtors by customer classification 

    

Consumers     

Current (0 -30 days)    1,459,970   1,163,945  
31 - 60 days    1,149,855   676,950  
61 - 90 days    867,570   518,325  
> 90 days    24,130,223   16,803,738  
    

    27,607,618   19,162,958  
    

    

Industrial/ commercial     

Current (0 -30 days)    1,235,583   1,008,172  
31 - 60 days    331,645   309,091  
61 - 90 days    226,191   337,385  
> 90 days    4,613,705   3,949,645  
    

    6,407,124   5,604,293  
    

    

National and provincial government     

Current (0 -30 days)    661,080   139,000  
31 - 60 days    239,083   110,701  
61 - 90 days    101,865   57,725  
> 90 days    1,824,034   1,507,186  
    

    2,826,062   1,814,612  
    

    

Total     

Current (0 -30 days)    3,356,633   2,311,117  
31 - 60 days    1,720,583   1,096,742  
61 - 90 days    1,195,626   913,435  
> 90 days    30,567,962   22,260,569  
 

   
 

 

 36,840,804  
 

 26,581,863  
Less: Allowance for impairment    (10,238,190)   (11,214,272)  
    

    26,602,614   15,367,591  
    

    

Reconciliation of allowance for impairment     

Balance at beginning of the year    (11,214,272)   (21,883,389)  
Contributions to allowance    -   (59,365)  
Debt impairment written off against allowance    -   10,728,482  
Reversal of allowance    976,082   -  
    

    (10,238,190)   (11,214,272)  
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Consumer debtors pledged as security 

None of the debtors were pledged as security for any financial liability. 
 
None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year. 
 
Interest on consumer accounts 

 
No interest is charged / levied on arrear consumer (debtors) accounts. 
 
Reclassification 

 
Please refer to note 40 for the reclassification of other debtors. 

Consumer debtors impaired 

As of 30 June 2013, consumer debtors of  10,238,190 (2012:  11,214,272) were impaired and provided for. 

9. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

    

Cash on hand    3,840   3,840  
Bank balances    545,715   1,652,858  
Short-term deposits    10,161,249   13,928,780  
    

    10,710,804   15,585,478  
    

Additional disclosure: 
 
There is a deposit account called "DIE PERDBEELD PROJEK" at ABSA with account number 20-2433-0721. It is not 
disclosed in this Annual Financial Statements figures as the bank could not provide copies of original signatories at the 
opening of the account. It is however believed that Council has full control over the funds as statements are send to the 
Council's postal address. Balance R47,068 (2012: R46,703) 
 
Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand 

 
The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired 
can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings, if available. 

    

Credit Rating     

F1+    10,706,964   15,581,638  

Short term deposits 

Short term fixed deposits consists of:: 

    

     

ABSA - Call Account (90-5547-5784)    1,875,234   1,262,427  
ABSA - Deposit Account (3434-9789)    2,491,058   436,254  
ABSA - Savings Account (80-7437-5155)    5,794,957   12,230,099  
    

    10,161,249   13,928,780  
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The municipality had the following bank accounts 

`       

Account number / description  Bank statement balances Cash book balances 
 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2011 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2011 

ABSA BANK, Ventersdorp 
branch - Primary Account - 
Account number 
22-5000-0017
  

 384,912   1,284,301   490,193   (1,066,069)   (133,250)   (1,394,857)  

ABSA BANK, Ventersdorp 
branch - TMT Account - 
Account number 
91-1105-1672
  

 4,489   211,369   34,226   4,489   211,369   34,226  

ABSA BANK, Ventersdorp 
branch - Housing Development 
Account - Account number 40- 
6038-4282
  

 156,314   157,188   163,534   156,314   157,188   163,534  

       

Total   545,715   1,652,858   687,953   (905,266)   235,307   (1,197,097)  
       

10. Investment property 

       

       

  2013   2012  
       

 Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value 

       

Investment property   15,445,866   -   15,445,866   15,445,866   -   15,445,866  
       

Reconciliation of investment property - 2013 

   

 Opening 
balance 

Total 

Investment property   15,445,866   15,445,866  
   

Reconciliation of investment property - 2012 

    

 Opening 
balance 

Correction of 
error 

Total 

Investment property   2,350,519   13,095,347   15,445,866  
    

Pledged as security 

No investment property was pledged as security for any financial liability. 

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for 
inspection at the registered office of the municipality. 
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11. Property, plant and equipment 

       

       

  2013   2012  
       

 Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

Carrying value 

       

Land and Buildings   20,511,300   (6,170,391)   14,340,909   20,511,300   (5,773,930)   14,737,370  
Infrastructure   430,156,890   (184,503,486)   245,653,404   371,587,857   (166,804,962)   204,782,895  
Other property, plant and 
equipment
  

 16,880,259   (7,438,454)   9,441,805   14,885,760   (5,335,286)   9,550,474  

       

Total   467,548,449   (198,112,331)   269,436,118   406,984,917   (177,914,178)   229,070,739  
       

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2013 

      

 Opening 
balance 

Additions Additions - W
ork In 

Progress 

Depreciation Total 

Land and Buildings   14,737,370   -   -   (396,461)   14,340,909  
Infrastructure   204,782,895   -   58,569,018   (17,698,509)   245,653,404  
Other property, plant and equipment   9,550,474   1,994,500   -   (2,103,169)   9,441,805  
      

   229,070,739   1,994,500   58,569,018   (20,198,139)   269,436,118  
      

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2012 

       

 Opening 
balance 

Additions Transfers Correction of 
error 

Depreciation Total 

Land and Buildings   11,974,072   868,307   -   2,252,427   (357,436)   14,737,370  
Infrastructure   63,570,013   17,912,185   13,783,499   112,031,323   (2,514,125)   204,782,895  
Community   14,325,641   -   (13,783,499)   -   (542,142)   -  
Other property, plant and 
equipment
  

 6,902,515   2,021,600   1,332   1,531,614   (906,587)   9,550,474  

Artwork   1,332   -   (1,332)   -   -   -  
Finance leased asset   1,042,473   -   -   -   (1,042,473)   -  
       

   97,816,046   20,802,092   -   115,815,364   (5,362,763)   229,070,739  
       

Pledged as security 

No property, plant and equipment asset was pledged as security for any financial liability. 

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for 
inspection at the registered office of the municipality. 
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12. Employee benefit obligations 

Defined benefit plan 

The municipality has a policy to subsidise the post-employment health care costs of employees that are covered by 
municipal sponsored health care arrangements at retirement. The subsidy covers the employee as well as a spouse or 
dependent. 
 
The policy applies only to members who were over a certain age at the date when the subsidy policy was discontinued. 
There are currently no members in the active service who will qualify for the subsidy on their retirement. 

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows: 

    

Carrying value     

Present value of the defined benefit obligation-wholly unfunded    3,915,863   3,535,545  
    

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 

    

Opening balance    3,535,545   3,515,494  
Actuarial loss    456,552   -  
Benefits paid    (350,954)   (253,837)  
Interest cost    274,720   273,888  
    

    3,915,863   3,535,545  
    

Key assumptions used 

Assumptions used on the last valuation - 30 June 2013:  

    

Discount rates used    8.05%   8.10%  
General inflation    5.82%   5.40%  
Medical inflation    7.32%   6.90%  
Real rate(Gap)    0.68%   1.10%  

Discount rate assumption 

The discount rate required by IAS19 should be set with reference to a high quality corporate bond. In countries where there 
is no deep market in such bonds, the market yield on government bonds should be used. The yield at 30 June 2013 on the 
R186 government bond was used. The yield on this bond was 8,05% (the R186 government bond is a fixed interest 
government bond with a maturity date between 2025 and 2027). 

Future Inflation Assumption 

The general inflation assumption is used to estimate the base rate at which the future health care subsidies will increase. 

The market’s pricing of inflation has been estimated by comparing the yields on index linked government bonds and long 
term government bonds, adjusting for inflation risk premium of 0,5% per annum. The implied inflation assumption is 
therefore 5,82% per annum for future inflation. 

Future subsidies can be expected to increase in line with medical inflation. It has been assumed that medical inflation will 
exceed general inflation by 1.5% per annum. A gap of between 1.5% and 2.0% is considered to be acceptable. Given the 
current market indicators, a larger differential would eventually force some members to select a less expensive option and 
have set the gap at 1.5% p.a. 

Net Discount Rate 

 
Even though the actual values used for the discount rate and the expected increase in medical subsidies are important, the 
“gap” between the two assumptions are more important. This “gap” is referred to as the net discount rate. The net discount 
rate has reduced from 1,11% p.a. to 0.68% p.a. (Derived from a discount rate of 8,05% and the expected medical inflation 
rate of 7.32%)] 
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Assets 

 
The Company does not have any specific assets set aside to refund for this liability. 

Demographic Valuation Assumptions 

Post-retirement mortality 

 
The post-retirement mortality assumptions have been based on the PA(90) mortality tables rated down by 1 year. This 
assumption is in line with the previous assumptions used. 
 
Family Profile 

The actual dependent status has been used to value the retired employees and it has been assumed that the female spouse 
will be 3 years younger than the male spouse.  
 
Inflation sensitivities 

The results of the valuation are dependent on the underlying assumptions made. The assumptions represent the best 
estimate of future experience. The actual cost of the subsidy will however be dependent on the actual experience. 
 
The tables below illustrate the likely impact certain changes to the underlying assumptions would have on the results. 

`   

Real Rate of Return 
0.5 

percentage 
point  

increase 

0.5 
percentage 

point  
decrease 

Effect on the aggregate of the Cost / (Saving)   (183,288)   199,333  
 
Mortality  

 
PA(90) -1  
with one  

year  
decrease 

 
PA(90) -1  
with one  

year  
increase 

Effect on the aggregate of the Cost / (Saving)   169,058   (165,543)  

13. Housing Development Fund 

    

Opening balance    157,188   149,152  
Unappropriated surplus/GRAP implementation    -   8,036  
Expenses for Housing Development fund    (874)   -  
    

    156,314   157,188  
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14. Other financial liabilities 

    

At amortised cost     

INCA  
Bears interest at 10.80% and 10.96% interest respectively. The loans were previously 
secured by means of a R2 million investment with a redemption fund investment made 
at INCA specifically for this purpose. This investment was however utilized during the 
2010/2011 financial year by INCA to set off towards arrears. Installments are payable 
six monthly at the end of December and June each year and are redeemable on  
31 December 2026 and 30 June 2022. 
 

  16,275,571   16,989,409  

Development Bank of South Africa  
The interest rate on the different loans varies between 8.78% & 12%. Installments are 
payable six monthly at the end of December and June or September and March each 
year. The loans are redeemable on 30 September 2017 and 30 June 2027. 

  2,605,243   2,688,793  

    

    18,880,814   19,678,202  
    

    

    

Total other financial liabilities    18,880,814   19,678,202  
    

    

Non-current liabilities     

At amortised cost    2,605,243   2,688,793  
    

    

Current liabilities     

At amortised cost    16,275,571   16,989,409  
    

Defaults and breaches 

The loan to INCA with a carrying amount of R 16,275,571 (2012: R 16,901,603) was in default as a result of not meeting 
capital repayment requirements as per the contractual arrangements. The last payment occurred on the 31 December 2008 
and on the 15 March 2010 there was a court judgement awarded in favour of INCA. At the reporting date there is current 
and ongoing litigation between the municipality and INCA regarding the default judgements obtained. 

15. Payables from exchange transactions 

    

Trade payables    58,724,751   44,678,378  
Retentions    4,211,896   1,303,766  
Accrued leave pay    3,285,806   2,788,576  
Contour Commission payable to vendors    42,323   34,232  
Other Creditors    2,518,198   3,428,572  
    

    68,782,974   52,233,524  
    

The municipality defaulted on the payment of suppliers within 30 days. The average term of payment of suppliers for the 
current year was 337 days (2012: 306 days). 
 
The terms were not renegotiated before the financial statements were authorised for issue. 

16. Consumer deposits 

    

Electricity    1,111,765   1,033,968  
    

No guarantees are held in lieu of Electricity deposits. 
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17. Unspent conditional grants and receipts 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of: 

    

      

Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG)    15,514,553   12,352,694  
PMU - Municipal Infrastructure Grant    546,547   71,612  
Municipal Systems Improvement Grant (MSIG)    458,247   -  
Department of Water Affairs Grant (DWA)    287,951   287,951  
Government Grant - Provincial Cleaning Campaign Grant    5,666   68,264  
Integrated National Electrification Program Grant    238,049   1,031,074  
Library Grant    266,264   109,635  
Public Work Program Grant    -   143,215  
Local Government Grant    2,822,594   4,200,000  
    

    20,139,871   18,264,445  
    

Movement during the year 

    

Balance at the beginning of the year    18,264,445   1,643,314  
Additions during the year    35,237,960   33,144,706  
Income recognition during the year    (33,362,534)   (16,523,575)  
    

    20,139,871   18,264,445  
    

The municipality has complied with all the conditions set by the transferring organ of State or the conditions set by the other 
institutions who made allocations to the municipality. The unspent portion of conditional allocations are disclosed as 
unspent conditional grants on the face value of the Statement of Financial Position of the municipality. 

The amounts will be recognised as revenue when conditions have been met. 

See note 22 for reconciliation of grants received from National/Provincial Government and if any grants were withheld due to 
unfilled conditions.
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18. Provisions 

Reconciliation of provisions - 2013 

    

 Opening 
Balance 

Additions Total 

Landfill site rehabilitation   4,263,692   409,302   4,672,994  
Long service bonus   95,783   6,442   102,225  
    

   4,359,475   415,744   4,775,219  
    

Reconciliation of provisions - 2012 

    

 Opening 
Balance 

Additions Total 

Landfill site rehabilitation   2,000,000   2,263,692   4,263,692  
Long service bonus   -   95,783   95,783  
    

   2,000,000   2,359,475   4,359,475  
    

Landfill site rehabilitation 

The provision for rehabilitation of landfill sites relates to the legal obligation to rehabilitate landfill sites to a condition 
whereby it complies to the permit requirements issued in terms of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act, 
(Act, 28 of 2002). The provision was determined by an independent expert as at 13 August 2013 and approximates the 
discounted expected future cash flows using reasonable estimation techniques. 
 
The discount rate used for the landfill sites is based on abond rate that matures as close as possible to the future date of the 
rehabilitation, adjusted by 1.5% for the circumstances of the Municipalirty. 
 
The final restoration of landfill sites are expected to be over a period of 18 years, being the estimated useful lives of landfill 
sites. No uncertainties were listed in the engineer's report. The certainty and the timing of the outflow of these liabilities are 
uncertain and the amounts disclosed are the possible outflow amounts. 

Long service bonus 

In addition to normal leave an employee shall qualify for the following additional leave as recognition for service at the same 
employer, which shall be paid out respectively once only the date on which the various periods of continues service have 
been completed, as follows: 
 
After 10 years service - 10 working days 
After 15 years service - 20 working days 
After 20 years service - 30 working days 
After 25 years service - 30 working days 
After 30 years service - 30 working days 
After 35 years service - 30 working days 
After 40 years service - 30 working days 
After 45 years service - 30 working days 
 
An employee may choose to either utilise the leace for holiday purposes or en-cash leave within 12 months. 
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19. Revenue 

    

Service charges    41,941,126   37,396,011  
Rental of facilities and equipment    64,580   78,661  
Licences and permits    2,440,287   2,001,272  
Other income     901,460   1,621,006  
Interest received - investment    738,945   311,747  
Fines    3,176,973   4,367,578  
Property rates    5,888,452   4,807,660  
Government grants & subsidies    86,722,454   61,364,478  
    

    141,874,277   111,948,413  
    

    

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are 
as 
follows:
  

   

Service charges    41,941,126   37,396,011  
Rental of facilities and equipment    64,580   78,661  
Licences and permits    2,440,287   2,001,272  
Other income     901,460   1,621,006  
Interest received - investment    738,945   311,747  
    

    46,086,398   41,408,697  
    

    

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as 
follows:
  

   

Taxation revenue     

Fines    3,176,973   4,367,578  
Property rates    5,888,452   4,807,660  
Transfer revenue     

Government grants & subsidies    86,722,454   61,364,478  
    

    95,787,879   70,539,716  
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20. Property rates 

Rates received 

    

Property rates     5,888,452   4,807,660  
    

Valuations 

    

Churches    16,789,000   16,892,000  
Commercial    110,950,000   115,213,000  
Industrial    35,178,000   35,457,000  
Municipal    34,260,000   25,464,000  
Recreational    27,532,000   27,642,000  
Residential    616,446,930   607,090,000  
Small holdings and farms    1,457,141,073   1,778,703,750  
State    385,760   850,000  
    

    2,298,682,763   2,607,311,750  
    

Valuations on land and buildings are performed every four years. The last general valuation came into effect on 1 July 2010 
are 
effective until 30 June 2014. Interim valuations are processed on an annual basis to take into account changes in individual 
property values due to alterations and subdivisions. 

A general rate of R0.0041 cent (2012: R0.0039 cent) in the Rand on both the land and improvement value of residential 
properties is applied to property valuations to determine assessment rates. The first R15,000 (2012: R 15,000) of property 
value is exempted for residential properties. There is a further 10% (2012: 20%) discount / rebate on residential properties. 
 
2013 

From 1 July 2012 the basic rates were adjusted as follows: 
 
- R0.00128 on the value of rateable agriculture property 
- R0.0041 on the value of rateable residential property 
- R1.0728 on the value of rateable government property 
- R0.0128 on the value of rateable business property 
- R0.0096 on the value of rateable day care centre property 
- R0.0045 on the value of rateable vacant property 
 
2012 

From 1 July 2011 the basic rates were adjusted as follows: 
 
- R0.00121 on the value of rateable agriculture property 
- R0.0039 on the value of rateable residential property 
- R1.0121 on the value of rateable government property 
- R0.0121 on the value of rateable business property 
- R0.0091 on the value of rateable day care centre property 
- R0.0042 on the value of rateable vacant property 

The new general valuation will be implemented on 01 July 2014. 

 

21. Service charges 

    

Sale of electricity    32,678,034   29,958,346  
Sale of water    2,715,509   2,850,684  
Solid waste    2,600,148   1,832,118  
Sewerage and sanitation charges    3,947,435   2,754,863  
    

    41,941,126   37,396,011  
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22. Government grants and subsidies 

    

 
   

Equitable share    45,869,000   40,498,000  
Municipal Finance Grant (MFG)    1,500,000   1,250,000  
Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG)    19,939,291   7,191,606  
Municipal Systems Improvement Grant (MSIG)    341,753   790,000  
PMU - Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG)    740,915   680,688  
Department of Water Affairs (DWA)    600,960   3,202,754  
Government Grant - Provincial Cleaning Campaign    62,598   1,324,450  
Public Works Program Grant    1,143,215   18,785  
Library Grant    163,371   210,365  
Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality Grant    7,301,096   4,153,080  
Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality - DBSA Loan Repayment    189,824   189,824  
Integrated National Electrification Program    7,493,025   1,854,926  
Local Government Grant    1,377,406   -  
    

    

    
    

    

    86,722,454   61,364,478  
    

Equitable Share 

In terms of the Division of Revenue Act, the annual equitable share allocated to the municipality is an unconditional grant. A 
portion of this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community members in line with national 
policy. In terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic and administrative services to 
community members. 

All registered indigent consumers of municipal services receive a monthly subsidy of R 138.15 (2012: R 130.33),if the 
household income is below R 2,440(2012: R2,240) per month, which is funded from the grant. 

    

Current-year receipts    45,869,000   40,498,000  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (45,869,000)   (40,498,000)  
    

    -   -  
    

Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG) 

    

Balance unspent at beginning of year    12,352,694   250,600  
Current-year receipts    23,101,150   19,293,700  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (19,939,291)   (7,191,606)  
    

    15,514,553   12,352,694  
    

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17). 

The grant is used to supplement municipal capital budgets to eradicate backlogs in municipal infrastructure utilised in 
providing basic services for the benefit of poor households. The grants was used to construct roads and sewerage 
infrastructure as part of the upgrading of informal settlement areas. 
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PMU - Municipal Infrastructure Grant 

    

Balance unspent at beginning of year    71,612   -  
Current-year receipts    1,215,850   752,300  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (740,915)   (680,688)  
    

    546,547   71,612  
    

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17). 

The purpose of the grant is to be utilised for operating cost of the Project Management Unit (PMU) in regards to the 
Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG).  

Municipal Systems Improvement Grant (MSIG) 

    

Current-year receipts    800,000   790,000  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (341,753)   (790,000)  
    

    458,247   -  
    

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17). 

The purpose of the grant is to assist municipalities in building in-house capacity to perform their functions and stabilise 
institutional and governance systems as required in the Municipal Systems Act, and related Legislation, policies and the 
local government turnaround strategy. 

Municipal Finance Grant (MFG) 

    

Current-year receipts    1,500,000   1,250,000  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (1,500,000)   (1,250,000)  
    

    -   -  
    

The purpose of the grant is to promote and support reforms to financial management and the implementation of the MFMA. 

Department of Water Affairs (DWA) 

    

Balance unspent at beginning of year    287,951   -  
Current-year receipts    600,960   3,490,705  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (600,960)   (3,202,754)  
    

    287,951   287,951  
    

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17). 

The purpose of the grant is to fund bulk connector and internal infrastructure for water services at a basic level of service. 
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Government Grant - Provincial Cleaning Campaign 

    

Balance unspent at beginning of year    68,264   -  
Current-year receipts    -   1,392,714  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (62,598)   (1,324,450)  
    

    5,666   68,264  
    

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17). 

The purpose of the grant is to be utilised for operating cost in regards to the Provincial Cleaning Campaign. 

Integrated National Electrification Program 

    

Balance unspent at beginning of year    1,031,074   -  
Current-year receipts    6,700,000   2,886,000  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (7,493,025)   (1,854,926)  
    

    238,049   1,031,074  
    

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17). 

The grant is used to address the electrification backlog of permanently occupied residential dwellings, the installation of 
infrastructure and rehabilitation of electrification infrastructure. 

Library Grant 

    

Balance unspent at beginning of year    109,635   -  
Current-year receipts    320,000   320,000  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (163,371)   (210,365)  
    

    266,264   109,635  
    

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17). 

The grant is to be utilised for the programme cost of the the library and other costs as per the library proposal. 

Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality Grant 

    

Current-year receipts    7,301,096   4,153,080  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (7,301,096)   (4,153,080)  
    

    -   -  
    

Kenneth Kaunda District Municipality - DBSA loan repayment 

    

Current-year receipts    189,824   189,824  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (189,824)   (189,824)  
    

    -   -  
    

The purpose of the grant is to help the municipality in regards to the repayment of the DBSA loans. 
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Public Works Program Grant 

    

Balance unspent at beginning of year    143,215   -  
Current-year receipts    1,000,000   162,000  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (1,143,215)   (18,785)  
    

    -   143,215  
    

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17). 

The grant is to be utilised for salary expenses in regards to the expanded Public Works Program. The grant is in regards to a 
national cleaning campaign. 

Local Government Grant 

    

Balance unspent at beginning of year    4,200,000   -  
Current-year receipts    -   4,200,000  
Conditions met - transferred to revenue    (1,377,406)   -  
    

    2,822,594   4,200,000  
    

Conditions still to be met - remain liabilities (see note 17). 

The grant is to be utilised for public infrastructure expenses and the funds were provided by local government. 

Changes in level of government grants 

Based on the allocations set out in the Division of Revenue Act, (Act 5of 2013), no significant changes in the level of 
government grant funding are expected over the forthcoming 2 financial years. 

23. Other income 

    

Administration fees    39,786   34,581  
Advertisements sign income    1,811   1,695  
Clearance certificates    9,416   9,360  
Connection fees - Electricity    2,860   4,453  
Connection fees - Water    4,480   9,136  
Exceptional income    -   60,537  
Grave fees    104,712   97,542  
Labour - New connection    51,884   43,278  
Lost books    83   861  
Medical Aid - Continued members income    89,711   73,689  
Membership card fees    4,520   4,662  
Photo copies    148,189   1,754  
Prepaid fines received    2,982   1,050  
Re-connection fees    1,382   5,853  
Renting - Land    41,475   7,500  
Sale of top soil    14,571   2,637  
Selling of stand    67,069   106,886  
Skills development claim refund    -   162,266  
Stock surplus    229,805   852,204  
Tender documents    66,900   117,181  
Town planning / building plans    11,111   14,746  
Valuation certificates    8,713   9,135  
    

    901,460   1,621,006  
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24. Investment revenue 

    

Interest revenue     

Bank    42,797   15,726  
Interest earned on investments    696,148   296,021  
    

    738,945   311,747  
    

25. Employee related costs 

    

Basic    20,134,845   17,474,692  
Acting allowances    716,651   663,435  
Bonus    1,283,502   1,212,458  
Company contributions (UIF, Medical aid & Pension)    5,691,863   4,615,659  
Other short term costs    121,305   112,637  
Overtime payments    1,472,812   1,051,998  
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances    2,188,057   1,496,256  
    

    31,609,035   26,627,135  
    

Remuneration of Municipal Manager 

    

Annual remuneration    815,750   780,000  
Car allowance (Including subsistence and travelling)    125,500   120,000  
Phone allowance    9,600   -  
    

    950,850   900,000  
    

The Municipal Manager was appointed on a five year contract starting 3 November 2011. 

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer 

    

Annual Remuneration    407,371   422,656  
Car allowance (Including subsistence and travelling)    51,000   108,070  
Housing allowance    39,000   -  
Leave    -   7,354  
Phone allowance    4,800   3,000  
    

    502,171   541,080  
    

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) was appointed in January 2013. There were two acting officials between the period July 
2012 to December 2012 who are fulltime employees of the municipality. The first official was acting from January 2011 to 24 
July 2012 while the second official was acting from the 25 July 2012 to December 2012. 
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Remuneration of executive director - Corporate and Human Resources (Corporate Services) 

    

Annual remuneration    433,222   71,387  
Car allowance (Including subsistence and travelling)    147,487   48,703  
Housing allowance    147,487   -  
Phone allowance    8,800   1,600  
    

    736,996   121,690  
    

During 2012 the position was filled only for two months (Until August 2011). The new director was employed from 01 July 
2012. 

Remuneration of executive director - Engineering Services 

    

Annual Remuneration    524,036   477,210  
Car allowance (Including subsistence and travelling)    148,294   135,043  
Housing allowance    118,913   108,287  
Phone allowance    9,600   9,600  
    

    800,843   730,140  
    

Remuneration of executive director - Community Development 

    

Annual Remuneration    471,268   429,157  
Car allowance (Including subsistence and travelling)    171,681   135,043  
Housing allowance    148,294   156,339  
Phone allowance    9,600   9,600  
    

    800,843   730,139  
    

Remuneration of executive director - Strategic Planning & LED 

    

Annual Remuneration    445,991   -  
Car allowance (Including subsistence and travelling)    160,257   -  
Housing allowance    160,257   -  
Phone allowance    9,600   -  
    

    776,105   -  
    

The Strategic Planning & LED director is a new position for the 2013 financial period and therefore no comparative figures 
are available. 

26. Remuneration of Councillors 

    

Mayor    635,442   591,788  
Allowance vehicle councillors    491,635   472,682  
Allowance Councillors     1,473,179   1,454,631  
Allowance cell phone    134,410   129,228  
    

    2,734,666   2,648,329  
    

Details relating to remuneration of Councillors are disclosed in note 38 for  Councillors 
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In-kind benefits 

The Mayor is full-time. She is provided with an office and secretarial support at the cost of the Council. 

The Mayor has use of a Council owned vehicle for official duties and has a full time driver. 
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27. Increase/(decrease) in provisions 

    

Leave provision    1,229,595   943,343  
Landfill site provision    409,302   2,263,692  
    

    1,638,897   3,207,035  
    

28. Depreciation and amortisation 

    

Property, plant and equipment    20,198,139   5,362,744  
    

29. Finance costs 

    

Interest DBSA    106,305   146,379  
Interest penalties and other    3,426,837   2,592,245  
Trade and other payables - Eskom    1,861,309   1,442,844  
    

    5,394,451   4,181,468  
    

30. Provision for bad debts 

    

Provision for bad debts    (2,442,586)   (322,779)  
    

31. Contracted services 

    

Services rendered - BCX Support    628,713   468,121  
Services rendered - Debt manager    -   1,968,072  
Services rendered - Meter readings    246,745   218,483  
Services rendered - Other Contractors    1,396,974   1,390,013  
Services rendered - TMT    1,709,854   2,645,645  
    

    3,982,286   6,690,334  
    

32. Bulk purchases 

    

Electricity    32,853,691   26,745,734  
Water    1,192,708   1,453,176  
    

    34,046,399   28,198,910  
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33. General expenses 

    

Advertising    107,254   170,296  
Auditors remuneration    2,243,415   2,148,715  
Bank charges    234,047   179,079  
Cleaning project Tshing (Mayor)    54,911   1,324,450  
Consulting and professional fees    -   599,451  
Contributions to post employment benefit    380,318   (504,159)  
Education programmes    36,797   -  
Electricity    562,563   737,180  
Entertainment    115,297   68,603  
Fuel    1,504,927   1,144,545  
IDP document    440   56,964  
Insurance    496,202   1,185,500  
LED    41,067   16,303  
Law amendments    -   25,014  
Legal fees    2,695,997   961,697  
Library programmes    129,883   185,141  
Licence fee and licenses cards    190,962   33,109  
MFG project    956,680   828,325  
Material and Equipment    426,475   471,408  
Other expenses    7,391,855   2,832,687  
PMU Expenses    617,493   657,284  
Penalty Fees / Cost for late payments    640,952   927,999  
Postage and courier    243,547   200,293  
Printing and stationery    373,981   238,845  
Refuse    5,439   3,836  
Rental of equipment    1,530,050   1,503,654  
Rental of vehicles    284,101   352,308  
Sewerage and waste disposal    655   567  
Skills development levy    305,951   258,085  
Stock shortage    85,902   43,268  
Subsistance and travelling expenses    525,467   474,831  
Telephone    805,122   882,787  
Training and Development    92,760   50,018  
Water    6,529   4,410  
Workmans compensation    9,605   200,213  
    

    23,096,644   18,262,706  
    

34. Auditors' remuneration 

    

Fees    2,243,415   2,148,715  
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35. Cash generated from operations 

    

Surplus    17,388,798   13,996,650  
Adjustments for:     

Depreciation and amortisation    20,198,139   5,362,744  
Fair value adjustments    (22,416)   (22,948)  
Bad debts provision    (2,442,586)   (322,779)  
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities    380,318   (504,159)  
Movements in provisions    415,744   2,359,475  
Debtors with credit balance(refer to Debtors paying for land)    -   (2,137,474)  
Lease liability brought in    -   (632,853)  
Movement in Housing development fund    (874)   (8,036)  
GRAP 17 Compliant Asset Register adjustments    20,828,472   -  
Prior period errors    -   22,684,081  
Changes in working capital:     

Inventories    (52,425)   (18,206,842)  
Receivables from exchange transactions    (44,919)   12,839  
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions    (6,274,889)   (3,171,710)  
Consumer debtors    (8,792,437)   (8,276,577)  
Payables from exchange transactions    16,549,450   9,223,865  
VAT    (3,598,234)   (1,682,582)  
Unspent conditional grants and receipts    1,875,426   16,621,131  
Consumer deposits    77,797   73,241  
    

   56,485,364   35,368,066  
    

36. Commitments 

Authorised capital expenditure 

    

Approved and contracted for     

 Community   18,595   18,595  
 Electricity   312,082   940,511  
 Roads and storm water   8,173,174   12,625,770  
 Sanitation and Waste Management    626,359   626,359  
    

    9,130,210   14,211,235  
    

    

Approved not yet contracted for      

 Roads and storm water   -   18,794,829  
 Water   1,254,017   1,254,017  
    

    1,254,017   20,048,846  
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37. Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities 

On 21 April 2010 SALGA signed the “Categorisation and job evaluation wage curves collective agreement” (wage curve 
agreement) with IMATU and SAMWU on behalf of municipalities. The agreement established the wage curves and wage 
scales to be used by municipalities in determining the wages of municipal employees, based on an evaluation of employees’ 
jobs per the task job evaluation system.  
 
The municipality has not completed job evaluations for all of its employees, as a result employees were not paid according 
to the wage scales and rates in the wage agreement. 
 
As a result of the uncertainties of the impact of the job evaluations on the wage scales and rates, the municipality may have 
an additional receivable / payable for employee wages depending on the outcome of the job evaluations. It is not practicable 
to reliably estimate the amount of this receivable/ payable prior to the outcome of the job evaluations. 
 
The entity is being sued for some of the following pending claims. All the claims are being contested based on legal advice. 
The certainty and the timing of the outflow of these liabilities is uncertain. The amounts for 2012 have been restated from 
R6,258,000 to R10,009,533 as an amount of R16,824 was not correctly included and INCA longterm loan dispute as per 
INCA statement and calculation accorfing to the municipality(R3,731,709).  The amounts disclosed below are possible 
outflows amounts: 

    

Breach of contracts in respect of contractual agreements in various incidents    6,000,000   6,050,000  
Claims by individuals due to damage of property in various incidents    257,034   120,000  
Claims by individuals due to injuries in various incidents    17,216   53,823  
INCA Loan Agreements - Pay arrears in the form of installments rental agreements    46,695,692   -  
Probable legal costs to be incurred for various matters being handled by various 
attorneys
  

  3,280,598   54,001  

INCA Long term loan dispute between INCA statement and calculation according to 
the municipality as INCA statement does not reflect payments made by the 
municipality
  

  3,738,568   3,731,709  

    

    59,989,108   10,009,533  
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38. Related parties 

Members of key management:     
Mayor  CN Phoyane  
Councillors  AL Jones  
  JL Links  
  M Matinyane  
  MW Matinyane   
  JM Matome   
  MJ Mjuleni   
  NS Moabi   
  Mogwata C  
  MJ Motladiile  
  MT Motshabi   
  VW Qankase   
  SA Sidu   
Municipal manager  BJ Makade  
Chief financial officer  MI Moruti  
Section 57 managers  OG Moremedi (Director - Engineering Services)  
  BMB Mosepele (Director - Community Development)  
  SA Sidu (Director - Strategic  Planning & LED)  
  LD Mcameni (Director - Corporate and Human Resources)  

      

Remuneration of Councillors - 2013  Councillor 
Allowance 

Telephone 
Allowance 

Travel 
Allowance 

Total 

Cllr Phoyane CN    464,451   19,876   151,115   635,442  
Cllr Jones AL    136,003   12,394   45,335   193,732  
Cllr Links JL    111,132   10,329   37,778   159,239  
Cllr Matinyane M    136,003   12,394   45,335   193,732  
Cllr Matinyane MW    136,003   12,394   45,335   193,732  
Cllr Matome JM    136,003   12,394   45,335   193,732  
Cllr Mjuleni MJ    136,483   12,394   45,335   194,212  
Cllr Moabi NS    136,003   12,394   45,335   193,732  
Cllr Mogwata C    136,003   12,394   45,335   193,732  
Cllr Motladiile MJ    136,003   12,394   45,335   193,732  
Cllr Motshabi MT    136,003   12,394   45,335   193,732  
Cllr Qankase VW    136,003   12,394   45,335   193,732  
Cllr Sidu SA    1,535   139   511   2,185  
      

    1,937,628   154,284   642,754   2,734,666  
      

      

Remuneration of Councillors - 2012   Councillor 
Allowance 

Telephone 
Allowance 

Travel 
Allowance 

Total 

Cllr Phoyane CN    429,711   18,840   143,237   591,788  
Cllr Jones AL    128,914   11,748   42,971   183,633  
Cllr Matinyane M    129,015   11,748   42,971   183,734  
Cllr Matinyane MW    129,015   11,748   42,971   183,734  
Cllr Matome JM    129,015   11,748   42,971   183,734  
Cllr Mjuleni MJ    129,015   11,748   42,971   183,734  
Cllr Moabi NS    128,914   11,748   42,971   183,633  
Cllr Mogwata C    128,914   11,748   42,971   183,633  
Cllr Motladiile MJ    164,785   11,748   42,971   219,504  
Cllr Motshabi MT    129,015   11,748   42,971   183,734  
Cllr Qankase VW    129,015   11,748   42,971   183,734  
llr Sidu SA    129,015   11,748   42,971   183,734  
      

    1,884,343   148,068   615,918   2,648,329  
      

Key management and Councillors 

No transactions took place between the entity and key management personnel or their close family members during the 
reporting period. Details relating to remuneration are disclosed in note 25 for key management and above for Councillors. 
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39. Prior period errors 

In terms of GRAP 3 - Accounting policies, Changes in Estimates and Errors:: 

    

39.1 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

An invoice was provided for as a payable and cancelled subsequent to year end. The Municipality is in dispute with the service 
provider regarding the amounts payable and the amount should not have been raised in the prior year. The comparative figures 
for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below:  
     
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and Other Payables    -   138,972  
Decrease in Vat Receivable    -   (17,067)  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Decrease in Contracted services    -   (121,905)  

    

39.2 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

An invoice was provided for as a payable and cancelled subsequent to year end. The Municipality is in dispute with the service 
provider regarding the amounts payable and the amount should not have been raised in the prior year. The comparative figures 
for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below:  
     
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and Other Payables    -   164,690  
Decrease in Vat Receivable    -   (20,225)  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Decrease in Contracted services    -   (144,465)  

    

39.3 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

An invoice was provided for as a payable and cancelled subsequent to year end. DWAF had already refunded the supplier and 
the creditor is thus overstated. The amount should not have been raised in the prior year. The comparative figures for the 
2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below:   
    
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and Other Payables    -   3,108,920  
Decrease VAT Receivable    -   (399,710)  
Decrease in Retention Provisions    -   17,913  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Increase in Accumulated Surplus    -   (2,727,123)  

    

39.4 Prior period errors - Other Receivables from Non-exchange transactions  
 

   

The amount owing by the District Municipality was overstated.  A confirmation from the District Municipality was obtained and a 
reconciliation prepared to reflect the correct balance.  The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have 
been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Other Receivables from Non-exchange transactions    -   (16,613)  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Decrease in Accumulated Surplus    -   16,613  
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39.5 Prior period errors - Mayoral cleaning campaign   
 

   

A debtor was erroneously raised for the mayoral cleaning campaign based on the assumption that funding would be received 
for money spent on the cleaning campaign. The funding was never received and therefore the entry has been reversed. The 
comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised 
below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and Other Payables    -   (150,150)  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Decrease Accumulated Surplus    -   150,150  

 

    

39.6 Prior period errors - VAT Receivable  
 

   

A VAT statement of account was obtained from the municipality and a reconciliation prepared to reflect the correct balance for 
2012.  The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is 
summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in VAT Receivable    -   1,546,610  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Increase Accumulated Surplus    -   (1,546,610)  

 

    

39.7 Prior period errors - Other Financial Liabilities  
 

   

The balance of the INCA Loan was understated in 2007.  The balance has been restated to agree to the INCA statement. The 
comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised 
below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Other Financial Liabilities    -   (87,806)  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Decrease Accumulated Surplus    -   87,806  

 

    

39.8 Prior period errors - VAT Receivable (Year end Sundry reclaim)  
 

   

The Year End Sundry Reclaim VAT balance was overstated in the prior years as VAT claimed against year end creditors was 
allocated to the VAT input account and not against the Year end reclaim VAT account. The comparative figures for the 
2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in VAT Receivable    -   418,785  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Increase Accumulated Surplus    -   (418,785)  
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39.9 Prior period errors - Fruitless and wasteful expenditure   
 

   

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure was condoned as per Resolution 047/2012-2013. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 
financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Other Receivables from Non-exchange transactions    -   (93,517)  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Decrease Accumulated Surplus    -   93,517  

 

    

39.10 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

The DWAF creditor has been reconciled to the 2012 creditors statement and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for 
the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and other Payables    -   (415,515)  
Increase in Vat Receivable    -   151,481  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in Bulk Purchases - Water    -   264,034  

 

    

39.11 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

Various invoices were captured twice in the prior year and these invoices have now been reversed. The comparative figures for 
the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payables    -   42,218  
Decrease in Vat Receivable    -   (371)  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Decrease in Interest expense    -   (39,197)  
Decrease in Auditors fee expense    -   (2,650)  

 

 

    

39.12 Prior period errors - Retentions  
 

   

In the prior period the retention part of a cheque was cancelled prior year adjustment account, the amount should have been 
cancelled against the Retention provision account.  The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been 
restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase VAT Receivable    -   17,913  
Increase in Retention Provisions    -   (17,913)  
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39.13 Prior period errors - Other Financial Assets  
 

   

Other Financial assets were previously stated at cost and been now restated at fair value accordingly to GRAP.  The 
comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised 
below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Other Financial Assets    -   22,948  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in Fair Value Adjustment    -   (22,948)  

 

    

39.14 Prior period errors - Unspent Conditional Grants  
 

   

The VAT portion of prior year unspent conditional grants was previously not brought in as conditions met.  The comparative 
figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts    -   1,506,950  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in Government Grants and Subsidies    -   (1,506,950)  

 

    

39.15 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

A supplier was not accrued for in previous financial year.  The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have 
been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and other Payables    -   (134,074)  
Increase in VAT receivable    -   16,465  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in Contracted services    -   117,609  

 

    

39.16 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

A supplier was not accrued for in previous financial year.  The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have 
been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and other Payables    -   (4,140)  
Increase in VAT Receivable    -   508  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in General expenses    -   3,632  
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39.17 Prior period errors - Compliant Asset Register and Investment Property 
register restatements 
  
 

   

In the 2013 financial year the municipality embarked on a project to reconstruct the asset register and investment property 
register of the municipality.  The Investment Properties, Moveable assets, land and buildings and infrastructure asset figures 
have been restated. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the 
restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Property, Plant and Equipment    -   115,815,346  
Increase in Investment Property    -   13,095,347  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Increase in Accumulated Surplus    -   (128,910,693)  

 

    

39.18 Prior period errors - INCA Rental outstanding  
 

   

Correction of opening balance of INCA rental outstanding.  The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements 
have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payables    -   238,851  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Decrease in General expenses    -   (238,851)  

 

    

39.19 Prior period errors - New connections accounts   
 

   

Clearing of new connections accounts as these accounts should have been cleared in the prior year. The comparative figures 
for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payables    -   16,969  
Increase in Other Receivables from Non-exchange transactions    -   829  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Increase in Accumulated Surplus    -   (17,798)  

    

39.20 Prior period errors - Inventory  
 

   

Unsold Properties Held for Resale was understated in the prior years, restated the balance to agree to the Unsold Properties 
Held for Resale register.  The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the 
restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Inventory    -   17,442,186  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Increase in Accumulated Surplus    -   (17,442,186)  
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39.21 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the supplier balance of Eskom was over accrued. The Eskom creditor has been reconciled to the 2012 
creditors statement and restated accordingly.   The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been 
restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payables    -   2,753,477  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Decrease in Bulk Purchases (Electricity)    -   (2,753,477)  

    

39.22 Prior period errors - Retentions  
 

   

In the prior period the incorrect amount was provided in regards to retentions the restatement was corrected accordingly against 
the Retention provision.  The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the 
restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and other payable    -   (146,832)  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Decrease in Accumulated Surplus    -   146,832  

 

    

39.23 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the supplier balance should have been written off. The creditor has been reconciled to the 2012 creditors 
statement and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The 
effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payable    -   84,469  
Decrease in VAT Receivable    -   (10,347)  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Increase in Accumulated Surplus    -   (74,122)  

 

    

39.24 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the supplier balance was provided however the supplier was paid in the prior year. The creditor has been 
reconciled to the 2012 creditors statement and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial 
statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payable    -   60,594  
Decrease in VAT Receivable    -   (6,292)  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Increase in Accumulated Surplus    -   (54,302)  
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39.25 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the supplier balance was under accrued as not all the invoices have been recorded. The creditor has been 
reconciled to the 2012 creditors statement and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial 
statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and other Payable    -   (45,501)  
Increase in VAT Receivable    -   5,588  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in Repairs and Maintenance    -   39,913  

 

    

39.26 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the supplier balance was not accrued for and the creditor has been reconciled to the 2012 creditors statement 
and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the 
restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and other Payable    -   (90,887)  
Increase in VAT Receivable    -   11,162  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in General expenses    -   79,725  

 

    

39.27 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the supplier balance was under accrued as not all the invoices have been recorded. The creditor has been 
reconciled to the 2012 creditors statement and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial 
statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and other Payable    -   (39,718)  
Increase in VAT Receivable    -   4,331  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in Contracted services    -   35,387  

 

    

39.28 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the supplier balance was provided however the supplier was paid in the prior year. The creditor has been 
reconciled to the 2012 creditors statement and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial 
statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payable    -   39,718  
Decrease in VAT Receivable    -   (4,878)  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Decrease in Contracted services    -   34,840  
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39.29 Prior period errors - Deposits (Eskom securities)  
 

   

In the prior year the deposits in regards of the Eskom security account were incorrect and the opening balance was restated 
accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement 
is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Other receivables from Non-exchange transactions    -   149,488  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in Interest received    -   (11,885)  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Increase in Accumulated Surplus    -   (137,603)  

    

39.30 Prior period errors - Salary Suspense Account  
 

   

In the prior year the medical aid refunds in the salary suspense accounts were not cleared and these refunds have been 
allocated now to the correct accounts. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The 
effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payable    -   4,444  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Decrease in Personnel cost    -   (4,444)  

 

    

39.31 Prior period errors - Salary Suspense Account  
 

   

In the prior year the medical aid contributions in the salary suspense accounts were not cleared and these contributions have 
been allocated now to the correct accounts. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been 
restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and other Payable    -   (6,835)  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in Personnel cost    -   6,835  

    

39.32 Prior period errors - Provision for Landfill sites  
 

   

In the prior year the Provision for Landfill was understated, the provision was restated accordingly. The comparative figures for 
the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Provision for Landfill sites    -   (1,938,533)  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in Increase in provisions (Expenditure)    -   1,938,533  
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39.33 Prior period errors - Unspent Conditional Grants  
 

   

Unspent Conditional Grants for the 2012 financial period were overspent in the prior year, these expense were funded through 
own funds from the municipality and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have 
been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Unspent Conditional Grants and Receipts    -   (105,258)  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Decrease in Government Grants & Subsidies    -   105,258  

    

39.34 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior years the Workmans Compensation Act creditor was understated. The creditor has been reconciled to the 2012 
creditors statement and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been 
restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and other Payables    -   (963,474)  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in General expenses    -   68,352  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Decrease in Accumulated Surplus    -   895,122  

    

39.35 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the supplier balance should have been written off. The creditor has been reconciled to the 2012 creditors 
statement and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The 
effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payables    -   2,349  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Decrease in General expenses    -   (2,349)  

    

39.36 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the supplier balance was under accrued as not all the invoices have been recorded. The creditor has been 
reconciled to the 2012 creditors statement and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial 
statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and other Payables    -   (9,103)  
Increase VAT Receivable    -   1,118  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Increase in Repairs and Maintenance    -   7,985  
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39.37 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the supplier balance was under accrued as not all the invoices have been recorded. The creditor has been 
reconciled to the 2012 creditors statement and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial 
statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Increase in Trade and other Payables    -   (78,645)  
Increase VAT receivable    -   9,658  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Decrease in Accumulated Surplus    -   68,987  

    

39.38 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the supplier balance was over accrued. The creditor has been reconciled to the 2012 creditors statement and 
restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been restated. The effect of the 
restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payables    -   25,000  
Decrease VAT Receivable    -   (3,070)  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Decrease in General expenses    -   (21,930)  

    

39.39 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the creditor was overstated as the supplier was accrued with a quote. The creditor has been reconciled to the 
2012 creditors statement and restated accordingly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 financial statements have been 
restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payables    -   9,145  
Decrease in VAT Receivable    -   (1,123)  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Increase Accumulated Surplus    -   (8,022)  

    

39.40 Prior period errors - Salary suspense account  
 

   

The salary suspense account was cleared for the prior year and restated accordinly. The comparative figures for the 2012/2013 
financial statements have been restated. The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payables    -   47,090  

    

Statement of Financial Performance     

Decrease in Personnel cost    -   (54,793)  
Increase in General expenses    -   7,703  
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39.41 Prior period errors - Year end Creditors  
 

   

In the prior year the creditor was overstated with payment in advance that was not supposed to disclosed in prior year.  These 
amounts were calculated and restated accordingly.  The effect of the restatement is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position     

Decrease in Trade and other Payables    -   1,628,750  

    

Statement of Changes in Net Assets     

Increase Accumulated Surplus    -   1,628,750  

 

40. Comparative figures 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in the  annual financial statements of the municipality. 

The account  for Water and Electricity Deposits with a credit balance was classified under Consumer Debtors in the prior 
year. This account was reclassified to Trade and other Payables. Therefore the following reclassification is made to 
Consumer Debtors. Refer to note 8. 

The effects of the reclassification are as follows: 

    

Statement of financial position     

Increase in Consumer Debtors - Other    -   61,924  
Increase in Trade and other Payables    -   (61,924)  

41. Risk management 

Financial risk management 

This note presents information about the municipality's exposure to each of the financial risks below and the entity's 
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing financial risks. Further quantitative disclosures are included 
throughout the Annual Financial Statements. 
 
The Council has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the entity's risk management framework. 
 
The municipality's audit committee oversees the monitoring of compliance with the municipality's risk management policies 
and 
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the municipality. 
The 
audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by the municipality's internal audit function. 
 
The municipality monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the municipality  through internal risk 
reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. The municipality has exposure to the following financial 
risks from its use of financial instruments: 
- credit risk 
- liquidity risk; and 
- market risk (including interest rate risk and price risk). 
 
The municipality seeks to minimise the effects of these risks in accordance with the municipality's policies approved by the 
Council. The policies provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and in the investment 
of excess liquidity. 
 
Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The municipality 
does 
not enter into or trade in financial instruments for speculative purposes. 
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Liquidity risk 

The municipality’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The municipality manages 
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. 

The municipality manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities 
by 
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 
 
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored. 
 
The municipality has not defaulted on external loans, payables and lease commitment payments and no re-negotiation of 
terms were made on any of these instruments. 
 
Impairment losses - all of the municipality's financial assets have been reviewed for indicators of impairment. Certain 
receivables were found to be impaired and a provision has been recorded accordingly. The impaired receivables are mostly 
due from customers defaulting on service costs levied by the municipality. 
 
The table below analyses the municipality's financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant 
maturity 
groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts 
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying 
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

`   

30 June 2013  Less than 1 
year 

Between 1 
and 2 years 

Other financial liabilities   16,275,571   2,605,243  
Payables from exchange transactions   68,782,973   -  

`   

At 30 June 2012  Less than 1 
year 

Between 1 
and 2 years 

Other financial liabilities   16,989,409   2,688,793  
Payables from exchange transactions   52,233,524   -  

Credit risk 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The municipality only deposits cash with 
major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an 
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, 
risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other 
factors. . 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows: 

`   

Financial instrument  2013 2012 

Cash and cash equivalents   10,710,804   15,585,478  
Receivables from exchange transactions   742,502   697,583  
Other receivables from non exchange transactions   10,761,206   4,486,317  
Consumer debtors   26,602,614   15,367,591  
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Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will 
affect the entity's revenue or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is 
to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. 
There has been no change, since the previous financial year to the entity's exposure to market risks or the manner in which 
it manages and measures the risk. 
 
Market risk consists of the following risks: 

1) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows associated with a financial instrument will 
fluctuate in amount as a result of market interest changes. The entity's policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk 
exposures on long-term financing. Longer term borrowings are therefore usually at fixed rates. The entity's exposures to 
interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed below: 
 
At year-end, financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk were as follows: 
- Call and notice deposits 
- Development Bank of South Africa loans 
- INCA loans 
 
The entity's interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the economic 
entity to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the entity to fair value interest rate risk. Entity 
policy is to make as far as possible use of fixed rate instruments. During 2013 and 2012, the economic entity's borrowings 
at variable rate were denominated in the Rand. 

` 

Carrying amount 

Financial instrument  2013 2012 

Available for sale investments - Listed shares   15,801   15,801  
Available for sale investments - Old Mutual   120,000   120,000  
Call and notice deposits   10,161,249   13,928,780  
Development Bank of South Africa loans   2,605,243   2,688,793  
INCA loans   16,275,571   16,989,409  

` 

Fair Value 

Financial instrument  2013 2012 

Available for sale investments - Listed shares   52,948   44,091  
Available for sale investments - Old Mutual   127,349   114,658  
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42. Going concern 

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2013, the municipality had accumulated surplus of  243,691,668 and that the 
municipality's total assets exceed its liabilities by  243,847,982. 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
 
Although certain going concern ratios may appear unfavourable, the municipality still has the power to levy rates and taxes 
and it will continue to receive funding from government as evident from the equitable share allocation in terms of the Division 
of 
Revenue (Act 6 of 2011). 

43. Unauthorised expenditure 

    

Opening balance    11,628,994   5,783,820  
Unauthorised expenditure - current year    24,447,125   5,845,174  
Approved by Council or condoned    (11,628,994)   -  
    

    24,447,125   11,628,994  
    

Details of unauthorised expenditure – current year 
Incidents regarding 2012/2013 
 

Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings 
 

   

Overspending by the Budget and Treasury 
  

None 
  

  7,973,458    

Overspending by Corporate Services 
  

None 
  

  2,230,609    

Overspending by Electricity Services 
  

None 
  

  13,319,013    

Overspending by Council General 
  

None 
  

  924,045    

     

      24,447,125   
     

Refer to Appendix E(1) and E(2) for more details.. 
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44. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

    

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - opening balance    9,824,926   6,594,441  
Interest on late payments to Eskom    1,850,831   1,442,836  
Penalty interest to various Creditors    96,800   602,600  
Penalty interest payable to INCA    1,611,479   1,185,049  
Interest paid on overdue accounts - AGSA    462,152   -  
Penalty fees paid to Department of Economic Development Environment Conservation 
& 
Tourism
  

  82,000   -  

    

    13,928,188   9,824,926  
    

Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure incidents 
 
 
Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
incidents 2008/09 
 

 
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 
proceedings 
 

    

Penalties and interest paid to SARS for the late 
submission of returns. 
  

None    33,746   33,746    

Interest on late payments to Eskom 
  

None    291,950   291,950    

 
Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
incidents 2009/10 
 

 
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 
proceedings 
 

    

Incorrect VAT claimed on payments made to 
Major Sekopo Trading 
  

None    184,411   184,411    

Penalty interest payable to INCA 
  

None    330,724   330,724    

Penalty interest to various Creditors 
  

None    959,450   959,450    

MIG Project - Tsetse Outdoor Sport Facility 
  

None    93,517   93,517    

 
Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
incidents 2010/11 
 

 
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 
proceedings 
 

    

Penalty interest payable to INCA 
  

None    1,214,103   1,214,103    

Interest on late payments to Eskom 
  

None    1,081,740   1,081,740    

Penalty interest to various Creditors 
  

None    1,004,800   1,004,800    

Project Management - Kings & Associates 
Settlement 
  

None    1,400,000   1,400,000    

 
Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
incidents 2011/12 
 

 
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 
proceedings 
 

    

Penalty interest payable to INCA 
  

None    1,185,049   1,185,049    

Interest on late payments to Eskom 
  

None    1,442,836   1,442,836    

Penalty interest to various Creditors 
  

None    602,600   602,600    
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Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
incidents 2012/13 
 

 
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 
proceedings 
 

    

Penalty interest payable to INCA 
  

None    1,611,479   -    

Interest on late payments to Eskom 
  

None    1,850,831   -    

Interest paid on overdue accounts - AGSA 
  

None    462,152   -    

Penalty interest to various Creditors 
  

    96,800   -    

Penalty fees paid to Department of Economic 
Development Environment Conservation & 
Tourism 
  

None 
  

  82,000   -    

The 2012 figures have been restated from R9,756,574 to R9,824,926 as an amount of R68,352 in regards to various 
creditors was not correctly included.  

45. Irregular expenditure 

    

Opening balance    35,924,382   16,165,506  
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year    29,250,984   19,758,876  
    

    65,175,366   35,924,382  
    

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification 

    

Current year    29,250,984   19,758,876  
Prior years    35,924,382   16,165,506  
    

    65,175,366   35,924,382  
    

Details of irregular expenditure – current year 
 Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings    

Expenditure items identified where the quotation 
process was not 
followed
  

The expenditure was identified during the current 
financial year and still needs to be investigated. 
  

  947,588    

Expenditure items identified where the tender 
process was not followed. 
  

The expenditure was identified during the current 
financial year and still needs to be investigated. 
  

  27,013,769    

Rental of equipment payment debit orders still 
ongoing even though contract has expired 
  

The expenditure was identified during the current 
financial year and still needs to be 
investigated.
  

  1,289,627    

     

      29,250,984   
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46. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act 

Contributions to organised local government 

    

Current year membership fee    400,000   236,933  
Amount paid - current year    (400,000)   (236,933)  
    

Due and payable    -   -  
    

Contributions to organised local government consists of annual subscriptions paid to SALGA. 

Other levies paid 

    

Skills development levy    305,951   258,085  
Motor vehicle license fees collected and paid over to NWPLG    4,475,915   4,317,408  
Amount paid - current year    (4,781,866)   (4,575,493)  
    

    -   -  
    

Audit fees 

    

Opening balance    8,349,144   5,603,679  
Current year fee    3,101,086   2,745,465  
Amount paid - current year    (2,554,145)   -  
    

    8,896,085   8,349,144  
    

PAYE and UIF 

    

Current year deductions and contributions    4,138,417   3,584,854  
Amount paid - current year    (4,138,417)   (3,584,854)  
    

    -   -  
    

Pension and Medical Aid Deductions 

    

Current year deductions and contributions    8,692,078   8,308,181  
Amount paid - current year    (8,692,078)   (8,308,181)  
    

    -   -  
    

VAT 

    

Opening balance    4,614,330   966,460  
VAT Payable    (554,207)   (371,812)  
VAT Paid    554,207   371,812  
VAT Receivable    8,765,439   6,930,242  
VAT Received    (5,167,205)   (3,282,372)  
    

    8,212,564   4,614,330  
    

VAT receivable shown in note 7.  

All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughout the year. 
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Councillors' arrear consumer accounts 

The following Councillors had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days at 30 June 2013: 

    

30 June 2013  Outstanding 
less than 90 

days 
 

Outstanding 
more than 90 

days 
 

Total 
 

Links JL   390   33,147   33,537  
Matinyane M   357   7,368   7,725  
Matinyane MW   354   6,793   7,147  
Matome JM   337   138   475  
Moabi NS   350   3,143   3,493  
Motshabi MT   212   -   212  
    

   2,000   50,589   52,589  
    

    

30 June 2012  Outstanding 
less than 90 

days 
 

Outstanding 
more than 90 

days 
 

Total 
 

Matinyane M   289   5,280   5,569  
Matinyane MW   421   4,413   4,834  
Matome JM   112   -   112  
Moabi NS   284   1,357   1,641  
Motshabi MT   1,251   -   1,251  
Qankase VW   392   3,914   4,306  
    

   2,749   14,964   17,713  
    

It was impractical to disclose the amounts outstanding for more than 90 days at any given point in time. Information was only 
available for amounts outstanding for more than 90 days at year end. 
 

Distribution Losses  

Material bulk water and bulk electricity losses during the year under review were as follows and are not recoverable: 
 
The main reason for incurring water losses relates to burst water pipes, leaks and unmetered water sites. 
 
The main reason for incurring electricity losses relates to heat dissipation when electricity flows through the 
conductors,illegal connections, meter tampering and incorrect metering. 

     

Water distribution losses   Kilo liter Cost per kilo 
liter 

Total loss in 
Rand 

Unaccounted water - 2013    10,381,710   0.0700   726,720  
Unaccounted water - 2012    11,359,703   0.0644   731,565  

     

Electricity distribution losses   KWh Cost per KWh Total loss in 
Rand 

Distribution losses - 2013    16,534,745   0.7507   12,412,633  
Distribution losses - 2012    17,261,252   0.7206   12,438,458  
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47. Events after the reporting date 

No events took place after the reporting date which has an impact on the Annual Financial Statements. 

 

48. Services in-kind 

Assistance from organisations 

 
1) The North West Department of Finance has appointed a professional service provider to institute financial improvement 
measures that will assist in resolving the financial management issues currently being encountered by the municipalities. The 
appointment was made in July 2012 and the first phase of his intervention was to ensure that the Annual Financial Statements 
are submitted within the prescribed timeframe  for the 2012 financial year. Subsequent to the completion of Phase I, the 
Department commenced with Phase II of the initiative, which will be rolled out in the following work streams: 
 
- Work stream 1: Focusing on Fundamental Finance 
- Work stream 2: Framework for Operations 
- Work stream 3: Towards clean audit 
- Work stream 4: Sustainability 
 
Works stream 1 of Phase II has commenced and to date, the North West Department of Finance has paid the professional 
service providers for Phase I and a portion of Phase II an amount of  R2,241,837. 
 
2) The North West Department of Finance has appointed professional consultants to prepare a GRAP 17 compliant asset 
register for both movable and immovable assets.  The project commenced on the 01 March 2013 and was finalised by the 16 
August 2013, at a total cost of R5,488,975. 
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   Schedule of external loans as at 30 June 2013  
          
  Loan 

Number 
Redeemable Balance at 

30 June 
2012 

Received 
during the 

period 

Redeemed 
written off 
during the 

period 

Balance at 
30 June 

2013 

Carrying  
Value of 
Property, 
Plant & 
Equip 

Other Costs 
in 

accordance 
with the 
MFMA 

    Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand 
          

 
Development Bank of South 
Africa 

         

          
Interest rate 12.00%    10559/102   2017/09/30   748,291   -   83,547   664,744   -   -  
Interest rate 8.78%    102014/1   2027/06/30   1,699,467   -   -   1,699,467   -   -  
Interest rate 8.78%    102014/2   2027/06/30   241,032   -   -   241,032   -   -  
          

     2,688,790   -   83,547   2,605,243   -   -  
          

INCA loan          

          
Interest rate 10.80%    6871   2026/12/31   10,157,784   -   313,725   9,844,059   -   -  
Interest rate 10.96%    7459   2022/06/30   6,831,624   -   400,112   6,431,512   -   -  
          

     16,989,408   -   713,837   16,275,571   -   -  
          

Total external loans          

          
Development Bank of South Africa      2,688,790   -   83,547   2,605,243   -   -  
INCA loan      16,989,408   -   713,837   16,275,571   -   -  
          

     19,678,198   -   797,384   18,880,814   -   -  
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 Analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2013  
 

 Cost/Revaluation    Accumulated depreciation  
               

 Opening 
Balance 

Additions Disposals Transfers Revaluations Work In Progress Closing 
Balance 

Opening 
Balance 

Disposals Transfers Depreciation Impairment loss Closing 
Balance 

Carrying 
value 

 Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand 

               

 
Land and buildings               
               
Land (Separate for AFS purposes)   2,351,000   -   -   -   -   -   2,351,000   -   -   -   -   -   -   2,351,000  
Buildings (Separate for AFS purposes)   18,160,300   -   -   -   -   -   18,160,300   (5,773,930)   -   -   (396,461)   -   (6,170,391)   11,989,909  
               

  20,511,300   -   -   -   -   -   20,511,300   (5,773,930)   -   -   (396,461)   -   (6,170,391)   14,340,909  

               

Infrastructure               
               
Electricity Network   185,776,566   -   -   -   -   8,270,303   194,046,869   (78,581,625)   -   -   (9,394,664)   -   (87,976,289)   106,070,580  
Roads and Stormwater   3,234,538   -   -   -   -   34,240,731   37,475,269   (1,735,279)   -   -   (147,616)   -   (1,882,895)   35,592,374  
Sanitation Network   79,111,993   -   -   -   -   1,377,406   80,489,399   (36,386,204)   -   -   (1,507,886)   -   (37,894,090)   42,595,309  
Water Supply Network   103,464,760   -   -   -   -   14,680,593   118,145,353   (50,101,869)   -   -   (6,648,343)   -   (56,750,212)   61,395,141  
               

  371,587,857   -   -   -   -   58,569,033   430,156,890   (166,804,977)   -   -   (17,698,509)   -   (184,503,486)   245,653,404  
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Other assets               
               
Computer Equipment   1,328,742   436,800   -   -   -   -   1,765,542   (683,420)   -   -   (347,751)   -   (1,031,171)   734,371  
Furniture & Fittings   2,030,822   253,796   -   -   -   -   2,284,618   (861,399)   -   -   (380,890)   -   (1,242,289)   1,042,329  
Office Equipment   707,153   160,940   -   -   -   -   868,093   (364,414)   -   -   (171,840)   -   (536,254)   331,839  
Kitchen Appliances   35,315   15,031   -   -   -   -   50,346   (19,793)   -   -   (4,947)   -   (24,740)   25,606  
Motor Vehicles   10,783,728   1,127,933   -   -   -   -   11,911,661   (3,406,260)   -   -   (1,197,741)   -   (4,604,001)   7,307,660  
               

  14,885,760   1,994,500   -   -   -   -   16,880,260   (5,335,286)   -   -   (2,103,169)   -   (7,438,455)   9,441,805  

               

Total property plant and equipment               
               
Land and buildings   20,511,300   -   -   -   -   -   20,511,300   (5,773,930)   -   -   (396,461)   -   (6,170,391)   14,340,909  
Infrastructure   371,587,857   -   -   -   -   58,569,033   430,156,890   (166,804,977)   -   -   (17,698,509)   -   (184,503,486)   245,653,404  
Other assets   14,885,760   1,994,500   -   -   -   -   16,880,260   (5,335,286)   -   -   (2,103,169)   -   (7,438,455)   9,441,805  
               

  406,984,917   1,994,500   -   -   -   58,569,033   467,548,450   (177,914,193)   -   -   (20,198,139)   -   (198,112,332)   269,436,118  

               

Investment properties               
               
Investment property   2,350,519   -   -   -   -   -   2,350,519   -   -   -   -   -   -   2,350,519  
               

  2,350,519   -   -   -   -   -   2,350,519   -   -   -   -   -   -   2,350,519  

               

Total               
               
Land and buildings   20,511,300   -   -   -   -   -   20,511,300   (5,773,930)   -   -   (396,461)   -   (6,170,391)   14,340,909  
Infrastructure   371,587,857   -   -   -   -   58,569,033   430,156,890   (166,804,977)   -   -   (17,698,509)   -   (184,503,486)   245,653,404  
Other assets   14,885,760   1,994,500   -   -   -   -   16,880,260   (5,335,286)   -   -   (2,103,169)   -   (7,438,455)   9,441,805  
Investment properties   2,350,519   -   -   -   -   -   2,350,519   -   -   -   -   -   -   2,350,519  
               

  409,335,436   1,994,500   -   -   -   58,569,033   469,898,969   (177,914,193)   -   -   (20,198,139)   -   (198,112,332)   271,786,637  
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 Segmental analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2013  
 

 Cost/Revaluation    Accumulated Depreciation  
               

 Opening 
Balance 

Additions Disposals Transfers Revaluations Work In Progress Closing 
Balance 

Opening 
Balance 

Disposals Transfers Revaluations Depreciation Closing 
Balance 

Carrying 
value 

 Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand 

               

 
Municipality               
               
Executive & Council/Mayor and 
Council
  

 768,898   156,347   -   -   -   -   925,245   (147,687)   -   -   -   (104,933)   (252,620)   672,625  

Finance & Admin/Finance   6,448,202   471,300   -   -   -   -   6,919,502   (3,126,121)   -   -   -   (973,037)   (4,099,158)   2,820,344  
Planning and Development/Economic 
Development/Plan
  

 70,579   12,214   -   -   -   -   82,793   (32,207)   -   -   -   (18,516)   (50,723)   32,070  

Comm. & Social/Libraries and archives   21,091,808   257,175   -   -   -   -   21,348,983   (6,061,254)   -   -   -   (536,793)   (6,598,047)   14,750,936  
Housing   23,821   3,778   -   -   -   -   27,599   (9,529)   -   -   -   (5,964)   (15,493)   12,106  
Public Safety/Police   398,191   25,633   -   -   -   -   423,824   (146,676)   -   -   -   (52,414)   (199,090)   224,734  
Electricity /Electricity Distribution   133,096   18,859   -   -   -   -   151,955   (71,940)   -   -   -   (26,267)   (98,207)   53,748  
Public Works   378,050,320   1,049,195   -   -   -   58,569,033   437,668,548   (168,318,780)   -   -   -   (18,480,214)   (186,798,994)   250,869,554  
               

  406,984,915   1,994,501   -   -   -   58,569,033   467,548,449   (177,914,194)   -   -   -   (20,198,138)   (198,112,332)   269,436,117  

               

Total               
               
Municipality   406,984,915   1,994,501   -   -   -   58,569,033   467,548,449   (177,914,194)   -   -   -   (20,198,138)   (198,112,332)   269,436,117  
               

  406,984,915   1,994,501   -   -   -   58,569,033   467,548,449   (177,914,194)   -   -   -   (20,198,138)   (198,112,332)   269,436,117  
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Appendix D 
 

Ventersdorp Local Municpality    
Appendix D(1) 
June 2013 

 
 Actual versus Budget(Revenue and Expenditure) for the year ended 30 June 

2013  
 

      
  Current year 

2012  
 Current year 

2012  
   

  Act. Bal.   Adjusted 
budget  

Variance   Explanation of Significant Variances 
greater than 10% versus Budget  

 Rand Rand Rand Var  
      

 
Revenue      

      
Service charges   41,941,126   40,406,339   1,534,787   3.8   

Rental of facilities and 
equipment
  

 64,580   30,000   34,580   115.3   

Licences and permits   2,440,287   1,350,000   1,090,287   80.8   

Fines   3,176,973   4,500,500   (1,323,527)   (29.4)   

Property rates   5,888,452   4,920,000   968,452   19.7   

Government grants & 
subsidies
  

 88,652,791   50,703,850   37,948,941   74.8   

Other income   901,460   446,500   454,960   101.9   

Interest 
received - investment
  

 655,563   290,000   365,563   126.1   

      

  143,721,232   102,647,189   41,074,043   40.0   
      

Expenses      

      
Personnel   (31,609,035)   (34,387,907)   2,778,872   (8.1)   

Remuneration of 
councillors
  

 (2,734,666)   (3,079,480)   344,814   (11.2)   

Administration   (1,638,897)   (373,000)   (1,265,897)   339.4   

Depreciation   (20,198,139)   (2,600,000)   (17,598,139)   676.9   

Finance costs   (5,394,451)   (180,000)   (5,214,451)   2,896.9   

Debt impairment   2,442,586   (4,500,000)   6,942,586   (154.3)   

Repairs and 
maintenance - General
  

 (4,249,964)   (5,746,500)   1,496,536   (26.0)   

Bulk purchases    (34,046,399)   (25,000,000)   (9,046,399)   36.2   

Contracted Services   (3,982,286)   (6,030,000)   2,047,714   (34.0)   

General Expenses   (23,096,642)   (17,372,350)   (5,724,292)   33.0   
      

  (124,507,893
)  

 (99,269,237)   (25,238,656)   25.4   

Other revenue and costs      

      
Fair value adjustments   22,416   -   22,416   -   

  22,416   -   22,416   -   
      

Net surplus/ (deficit) for 
the year 

 19,235,755   3,377,952   15,857,803   469.5   
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Ventersdorp Local Municipality    
Appendix D(2) 
June 2013 

 
  Budget Analysis of Capital Expenditure as at 30 June 

2013  
        
      
 Additions Revised 

Budget 
Variance Variance Explanation of significant 

variances from budget 
 Rand Rand Rand  %  
      

 
Municipality      

      
Executive & Council/Mayor and 
Council
  

 -   -   -   -   

Finance & Admin/Finance   -   -   -   -   

Planning and 
Development/Economic 
Development/Plan
  

 -   -   -   -   

Health/Clinics   -   -   -   -   

Comm. & Social/Libraries and 
archives
  

 -   -   -   -   

Housing   -   -   -   -   

Public Safety/Police   -   -   -   -   

Sport and Recreation   -   -   -   -   

Environmental Protection/Pollution 
Control
  

 -   -   -   -   

Waste Water 
Management/Sewerage
  

 -   -   -   -   

Road Transport/Roads   -   -   -   -   

Water/Water Distribution   -   -   -   -   

Electricity /Electricity Distribution   -   -   -   -   

Other/Air Transport   -   -   -   -   

   -   -   -   -   

   -   -   -   -   

   -   -   -   -   
      

  -   -   -   -   
      
      

Municipal Owned Entities  -   -   -   -   
      
      

Other charges  -   -   -   -   
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Ventersdorp Local Municipality    
Appendix E 
Disclosures of Grants and Subsidies in terms of Section 123 MFMA, 56 of 2003 

June 2013 
                  

 Name of 
Grants  

Name of  
organ of 
state or 
municipal 
entity  

            Reason for  
delay/withho

lding of 
funds  

Did your 
municipality 
comply with 

the grant 
conditions in 
terms of grant 
framework in 

the latest 
Division of 

Revenue Act  

Reason for 
noncomplia
nce  

   Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun  Yes/ No  

 Equitable 
share 

National 
Government 

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
-  

None  Yes  N/A 

 Municipal 
Finance Grant 
(MFG) 

National 
Government 

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
-  

None  Yes  N/A 

 Municipal 
Infrastructure 
Grant (MIG) 

National 
Government 

 8,757,150   11,859,000   2,485,000   -   1,745,231   5,245,881   4,681,258   9,007,865   -   -   -   
-  

National Treasury 
withheld grants 
due to that the 
municipality did 
not utilise all the 
MIG Grant for 
2010/11.  

 No  Did not utilise the 
grant with the 
grant conditions. 

 Municipal 
Systems 
Improvement 
Grant (MSIG) 

National 
Government 

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
-  

None  Yes  N/A 

 PMU - Municip
al 
Infrastructure 
Grant (MIG) 

National 
Government 

 1,215,850   -   -   -   174,174   125,659   95,590   322,706   -   -   -   
-  

None  Yes  N/A 

 Library Grant Provincial 
Government 

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
-  

None  Yes  N/A 

 Public Works 
Program Grant 

National 
Government 

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
-  

None  Yes  N/A 

 Local 
Government 
Grant 

Provincial 
Government 

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
-  

None  Yes  N/A 

                  

    9,973,000   11,859,000   2,485,000   -   1,919,405   5,371,540   4,776,848   9,330,571   -   -   -   
-  

   

                  

Note: A municipality should provide additional information on how a grant was spent per Vote. This excludes allocations from the Equitable Shar
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